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Chairman’s Statement

F RS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited
(the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”), | hereby present the annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the

“Reporting Period”) to all the shareholders of the Company

(the “Shareholders”).
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

FTREIHRE @

In 2018, the external environment was complicated and severe. After having
the growth beyond expectations in 2017, China experienced an economic
slowdown and faced downward pressure in 2018. Against the backdrop of
domestic “supply-side reform” and “de-leveraging” and other policies, the
domestic market was subject to great fluctuations. Enterprises, especially
private enterprises, suffered from a general increase in pressure on their
operations.

2018 was also a year when the Group undertook self-adjustment and self-
optimization in response to the changes in external environment. Following
the announcement of the national macroeconomic control policy on solar
power plants (Fa Gai Neng Yuan [2018] No. 823) on 31 May 2018 (the “5631
Policy”), which clearly stipulated that the construction plan of ordinary solar
power plants would be suspended for 2018, the development of the Group’s
home photovoltaic system business was adversely affected. Faced with
severe challenges brought by such sudden changes in policies, we actively
adjusted business development strategies and investment structure,
integrated various resources, and acquired companies with strong
technological reserves and project reserves in distributed energy and
technical energy conservation. By way of cooperating with advantageous
enterprises, we engaged in investments as well as mergers and acquisitions
with respect to heat, gas and particularly distributed natural gas heating
supply business, and provided relevant energy-saving and technology
consulting services, ensuring the stable business development of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue was approximately
RMB708,493,000 (for the same period of 2017: RMB897,902,000), and profit
attributable to owners of the Company was RMB107,720,000 (for the same
period of 2017: RMB135,197,000), representing a decrease of approximately
21.1% and 20.3%, respectively as compared to the same period of last year,
which was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue and profit of the
home photovoltaic system business of the Group under the impact of the 531
Policy, and the increase in operating costs resulting from the increase in
investments and mergers and acquisitions by the Group during the Reporting
Period.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY IN 2019

According to the forecast of the International Monetary Fund, in view of
tightening global financial conditions, the downside risks of the world
economy will increase. The economic development in China will also face a
more complicated and severe external environment in 2019. Nevertheless,
green and low-carbon is the development trend of global energy. China will
also adhere to the development path of energy conservation and emission
reduction. According to the Chinese government work report in March 2019,
the unit energy consumption of GDP is expected to decrease by around 3%
in 2019, with a further reduction in emission of major pollutants.

In terms of energy structure, China’s energy development is entering into a
new stage of transition from expansion of total volume to enhancement of
quality and efficiency. Under the dual pressures of energy crisis and
environmental protection, the proportion of clean energy and renewable
energy is continually expanding in energy consumption. In particular,
characterized by clean, low carbon, high efficiency and other features,
distributed energy not only achieves an efficient use of energy, but also
reduces costs and carbon emissions, and achieves effective integration of
resources and environment, which helps to form a more stable, reliable and
clean energy system. It is one of the important directions in the energy reform
in China.

According to the 13th Five Year Plan of China’s Energy Development
promulgated by the State Council, development of distributed energy is highly
emphasized, and it is stipulated that the installed capacity of distributed
natural gas and distributed solar power generation shall reach 15,000,000
MW and 60,000,000 MW by 2020, respectively, of which distributed solar
power plants shall account for over 50% in the overall installed capacity of
solar power plants. According to the Clean Energy Consumption Action Plan
(2018-2020) (VBEZBEIREATTENET £1(2018-20204F))) formulated by the
National Development and Reform Commission and the National Energy
Administration, development of scattered and distributed renewable energy is
encouraged with first priority and winter clean heating for northern China
should be promoted. Efforts should be made for the comprehensive
implementation of the requirements under the Winter Clean Heating Plan for
Northern China (2017-2021) (<1t 7 #hl& L 252 EiE 5 £1(2017-20214F))),
in order to accelerate the increase in proportion of clean heating with a clean
heating rate in northern China reaching 50% and 70% in 2019 and 2021,
respectively. Distributed energy will embrace important development
opportunities.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

FTREIHRE @

Looking forward to 2019, we are expected to face tremendous opportunities
arising from the adjustment in China’s energy structure. At the same time, we
are also expected to encounter issues such as slow progress of the power
system reform in China, huge fluctuations in the solar power industry under
the political influences and exploratory application of smart energy, which all
have brought various challenges and uncertainties to the business
development of the Group. In 2019, the Group will adjust and optimize its
industrial structure depending on industry development opportunities.
Leveraging its industry experience, resource advantages and project reserves
built up in the past, and on top of the investment and operation of clean
energy such as electricity, heat and gas, the Group is expected to actively
expand its distributed energy, especially distributed natural gas heating
business, and develop home photovoltaic system business in part according
to the national subsidy policy for the solar power industry. At the same time,
the Group will expand and enrich other clean energy businesses according to
industry opportunities. With respect to the online cloud platform, in
combination of its smart energy cloud platform system, the Group will provide
relevant energy custody, energy-saving modification, technical and consulting
services for electricity, heat, gas and other users. We are expected to
respond to the complex economic situation and changes in the external
environment with our flexible business strategies, so as to achieve long-term
development in the interests of our Shareholders.

Lastly, | hereby extend my sincere gratitude to all Shareholders, investors,
clients, suppliers and business partners on behalf of the Board for their
continual support and to all employees for their tireless efforts and
contribution in 2018.

Wei Qiang
Chairman

29 March 2019

RE-FT-NF HMASHEHETBEERE
HEMELTNEAKSE R bEHEZFASD
BENEBHNEFEREE LRITEXRE
FEMBERANEXRKSHREZREREE
REREBREHRE KAKEEBNRRS
REZHBERTBEL - —T—NF - A&KHE
BRITERRKE ARELCEXLER 8
EFRRNTERLR BREZRBEREE
MERE UE -2 REBREERNKREE
ERER EEHBRDMAERSRED M
ARAREAEL  TRERYALRITED
HUBRBERBOBERFPAARERER
R AEEBRTERSERRNEEEM
BREREL ERLEFEITE KR
SENESIEREFEER RE B RF
RERHEBBNERTE - & eE - &l
FARBE - BRERNKLERE  UEEE
MORBEVBNIIBRENE( BRAR
ARRMNENREER -

Rig AABRREFE BUAMERR -
REE FP HEBNMEBAEBRHRTIR
)RR - R A PR N BT SR MR AT
BTR-Z-NFEELOTBENMER -

E- ¥
S

—E-AF=R=+NH

BERNEBERERAMRAR  FiK 2018



08

Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

The Group was principally engaged in smart energy business and public
infrastructure construction business, with gradual expansion and
diversification to other clean energy business. Adhering to the business
philosophy of “behave with sincerity, do things with honesty and do business
with trust”, the Group aims at becoming a leading comprehensive service
provider of smart energy in China.

The year 2018 was a year of dramatic changes. Against the macro backdrop
of intensifying downward pressure of the national economy, as well as the
severe circumstance under the 531 Policy, the Group actively adjusted
business development strategies, optimized personnel organization structure,
consolidated various resources, undertook investments and mergers and
acquisitions for distributed natural gas heating and urban centralized heating,
and carried out management, analysis and service of big data through its
smart energy cloud platform, ensuring the continued development of the
Group’s businesses.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue was RMB708,493,000 (the
same period of 2017: RMB897,902,000), while the profit attributable to
owners of the Company was RMB107,720,000 (the same period of 2017:
RMB135,197,000), representing a decrease of approximately 21.1% and
20.3% respectively as compared to the same period of last year. The major
reason of the decrease was primarily attributable to () the impact of the
national 531 Policy, resulting in a decrease in revenue and profit of home
photovoltaic system business of the Group; and (i) the increase in
investments and mergers and acquisitions by the Group during the Reporting
Period, resulting in an increase in relevant operation expenses. During the
Reporting Period, smart energy business generated a revenue of
RMB529,258,000 (the same period of 2017: RMB655,948,000), and the
profit attributable to owners of the Company was RMB130,063,000 (the
same period of 2017: RMB118,894,000), contributing to 74.7% of the
Group’s revenue and 120.7% of the Group’s profit attributable to owners of
the Company. The smart energy business remains as the core business of
the Group.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Smart Energy Business

The Group’s smart energy business, positioned as comprehensive energy
services for the user side, mainly sets out to meet the demand of industrial,
commercial and residential clients as well as public institutions; provides
customers with a full range of smart energy comprehensive utilization services
based on various energy resources including electricity, heat and gas by
leveraging on our smart energy cloud platform (the “Cloud Platform”) with
proprietary intellectual property rights, to help our customers improve energy
usage efficiency, reduce energy usage cost, and thus build a rich, clean and
low-carbon energy supply system.

The Group seeks to meet the above business objectives by integrating energy
systems with the internet technology. On one hand, the Group acquires
premium energy assets and projects by expanding its offline business in
comprehensive energy such as electricity, heat and gas, and earns stable
operation and investment revenue from operating and managing such assets
as electricity, heat and gas. On the other hand, the Group uploads the real-
time data of electricity, heat and gas from industrial and commercial
enterprises and residential users to the Cloud Platform, integrates and
analyzes big data, and taps into energy utilization potential of customers to
provide users with other services that cover the entire industrial chain, from
multi-energy complementation of electricity, heat and gas, smart operation,
energy trade, energy efficiency analysis and consultancy management to
energy finance and energy big data.

Offline Energy Business

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s offline energy business mainly
focuses on industrial parks, commercial complexes, public utilities and
residential clients, around electricity, heat and gas industry, and undertook
investment and operation in fields including distributed solar power plant,
distributed natural gas heating, urban centralized heating and incremental
power distribution grids.
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I\/Iana ement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Ed 73 i (am)

Distributed Solar Power Plant Business

Distributed solar power plant business mainly comprises the investment and
operation of industrial and commercial distributed solar power plants, as well
as home photovoltaic system.

In respect of industrial and commercial distributed solar power plants, the
Group mainly holds and operates distributed solar power plants and gains
stable revenue from power generation. During the Reporting Period, apart
from the acquisition of a 10.2 MW industrial distributed solar power plants in
October 2018, the Group did not expand other distributed solar power plants
projects. During the Reporting Period, the Group held a total of 11 solar
power plants, of which 10 were industrial and commercial distributed solar
power plants, and 1 was ground power plant, with an aggregate installed
capacity of approximately 64 MW. During the Reporting Period, power
generation of these 11 solar power plants totaled 75,044 MWh, with all the
power plants running steadily and generating power with grid connection.
Currently, all solar power plants have been included into the National Subsidy
Catalogue, except Guangdong Jiangmen Lingzhi Power Plant (with an
installed capacity of 1 MW) which is expected to be included into the Eighth
Batch of National Subsidy Catalogue.

In respect of home photovoltaic system business, the Group mainly gains
sales revenue from the sale of solar photovoltaic integrating systems. Under
the impact of the 531 Policy, shipments of home photovoltaic system
business of the Group were affected to a greater extent in the second half of
2018. During the Reporting Period, actual shipments of home photovoltaic
system of the Group were approximately 73 MW (the same period of 2017:
121 MW), bringing the number of users to approximately 19,300.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
E 2B 5 5m B 51 @

Distributed Heat Supply Business

With the transformation of China’s energy structure, in particular it was
proposed in the 2017 Chinese government work report that efforts should be
made to win the “War of Defending Blue Sky”, and to accelerate the
resolution of coal-fired pollution problem, by requiring “2+26” cities (“2+26”
cities) in provinces and municipalities including Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Shanxi,
Shandong and Henan to achieve negative growth of total coal consumption.
As a relatively efficient clean energy, natural gas is favored by the government
and the market. As one of the major measures to improve air quality,
“replacement of coal by gas” has been widely promoted and applied.

During the Reporting Period, the Group focused on strengthening its
investment and layout in the field of distributed natural gas heating. The
distributed natural gas heating of the Group mainly focuses on Tianjin, Hebei,
Shaanxi, Shanxi and Shandong etc., where the “2+26” cities are located. The
investment targets are mainly relatively stable public utilities such as schools,
hospitals and governments and some high-quality industrial and commercial
and residential clients. Investment and operation are mainly carried out by
means of energy escrow or energy sharing. The Group earns revenue from
energy operation escrow or from energy sharing. During the Reporting Period,
the Group has invested in distributed natural gas heating projects with an
area of approximately 600,000 square meters. It is expected that the
investment cost in these projects will be recovered in approximately 4 to 6
years, and the Group has around 10 to 20 years of operation and
management rights over the majority of the projects, thereby bringing long-
term and stable income to the Group.

Others

During the Reporting Period, the Group also carried out the operation and
investment of an incremental power distribution grid and an urban centralized
heat supply project, and provided smart operation and management services
for some urban centralized heat supply projects, accumulating relevant
industry experiences.

The Group will take the investment and operation of these distributed solar
power plants and distributed natural gas heating projects as entry point to
fully tap into the energy utilization demands of customers in various energy
fields such as electricity, heat and gas, so as to facilitate the application,
promotion and enhancement of the Group’s comprehensive energy business.
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Man?éement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Online Cloud Platform

During the Reporting Period, with respect to developing and building the
online Cloud Platform, based on the existing system, the Group engaged in
the second phase of transformation and upgrade of home photovoltaic
system by integrating artificial intelligence into the system, to further improve
the system analysis and detection function and reduce the operation and
maintenance cost of home solar power plants. Meanwhile, the Group
rationalized the heating business, developed and launched thermal energy
and distributed thermal energy subsystem. The system aims at resolving the
problem of information island, and through integration of enterprises’
information flow, business flow and data flow achieving information resources
sharing as well as free flow of information, enhancing decision-making
efficiency and thereby realizing value of heat supply data. In addition, during
the Reporting Period, the Group continued to strengthen its technological
research and development and investment in the Cloud Platform, and applied
for and protected patent technologies for relevant research results, so as to
support data access to and business development of the Group regarding
heat, electricity, gas, intelligent operation and maintenance, energy efficiency
analysis, etc.

During the Reporting Period, by leveraging the monitoring and big data
collection and analysis capabilities of the Group’s Cloud Platform system, the
Group achieved unattended and automated control of home solar power
plants and distributed natural gas heating projects, saving manpower costs.

During the Reporting Period, the Group also carried out energy audit services
for several dozen public institutions in Hebei Province, undertaking audit work
on comprehensive energy-saving modification of power distribution grids and
quality enhancement of electricity. We also carried out inspection and
acceptance check of “replacement of coal by electricity” and “replacement of
coal by gas” projects of over 350,000 households in Hebei Province,
accumulating work experience in energy efficiency analysis and gaining a
good reputation in the local area. In August 2018, the Group’s smart energy
Cloud Platform system was awarded demonstration project of new generation
information technology application with special financial support by Hebei
Provincial Department of Industry and Information Technology.
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During the Reporting Period, the smart energy business generated a revenue
of approximately RMB529,258,000 (for the same period of 2017:
RMB655,948,000) for the Group, representing a decrease of approximately
19.3% as compared to the same period of last year. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately RMB130,063,000 (for the same
period of 2017: RMB118,894,000), representing an increase of approximately
9.4% as compared to the same period of last year. The decrease in revenue
was mainly due to the decrease in revenue from home photovoltaic system
business of the Group under the impact of the 531 Policy. The increase in
profit attributable to owners of the Company was mainly due to the share of
net profit from Shandong Hailifeng Clean Energy Joint Stock Co., Ltd. (LI
BT LE 2RI B IR A 7)) (‘Hailifeng”) during the year.

Public Infrastructure Construction Business

Public infrastructure construction business represents the public infrastructure
construction business of the Baoding Donghu Project (the “Baoding Donghu
Project”) and related preliminary investment and post-construction operation
management business. During the Reporting Period, the Baoding Donghu
Project generated a revenue of approximately RMB179,235,000 (for the same
period of 2017: RMB241,954,000) for the Group and the profit attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately RMB15,107,000 (for the same
period of 2017: RMB31,595,000). The decrease in revenue and profit was
mainly attributable to the decline in preliminary investment in such project,
which was affected by the local government’s general plan on the project and
the development progress, resulting in decline in preliminary investment gain
and profit.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK IN 2019

The past year of 2018 was a year with drastic changes and major
adjustments in the global economic layout, trade friction, geopolitics and
normalization of monetary policies in major developed economies have
increased the uncertainty of the global economy and financial markets. It is
expected that the world economy will continue to maintain a weak growth
trend in 2019, and the downward pressure on the Chinese economy will still
be relatively large. However, the green and low carbon development concept
in relation to energy saving and emission reduction, and achievement of
sustainability has reached a general consensus in the whole society. The
development strategy of “promoting energy production and consumption
revolution, building a clean, low-carbon, safe and efficient energy system”
proposed at the 19th National Congress of the Communist Party of China
has also been integrated into practical actions. In the next few years, the
Group believes that China’s investment demand for environmental protection
industries such as energy conservation and emission reduction, green and
low carbon, clean energy and renewable energy will continue to grow.

Looking into 2019, opportunities and challenges coexist. In 2019, the Group
will adopt more flexible operation strategies, and optimize and adjust industrial
structure to cope with the complex economic situation and changes in the
external environment.

In the area of solar power business, 2019 is expected to be a year of
transformation for the solar power industry, also marking the first year of the
industry becoming non-subsidized. In light of the uncertainties during industry
transformation, the Group will slow down its promotion of the home
photovoltaic system business while maintaining its current scale of the
distributed solar power plants. In addition, subject to national subsidy policy
for solar power industry and development opportunities arising in the industry,
the Group will, in conjunction with the promotion of the Company’s distributed
integrated energy business, explore business development models suitable
for the distributed solar power business of the Group by building upon its
primitive accumulation of resources consisting of its industry experience,
advantages in talent and sales network.
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In view of opportunities emerged from China’s energy industry restructuring,
energy conservation and emission reduction as well as prevention and control
of air pollution, in particular, the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei integration strategy and
the construction of Xiong’an New Area have presented favorable opportunities
for clean energy and renewable energy. Especially for distributed energy,
which represents a critical trend for future energy development with its
characteristics such as reasonable energy efficiency, low consumption, low
pollution, flexible operation and positive system economy. From a global
perspective, nations with higher energy utilization rates and higher levels of
environment protection tend to be more enthusiastic in the promotion and
application of distributed energy technology and promulgate more precise
supportive policies. Currently, the distributed energy in China is still at its initial
stage. Reduction of related costs and digitization of energy systems will
present the distributed energy of China with ample development
opportunities.

In 2019, the Group will give full play to the regional and resource advantages
in Hebei Province, focusing on diversified investments and layout in the
distributive energy business, especially in such areas as distributed heating,
distributed gas, technological transformation for energy conservation, by way
of investment, mergers and acquisitions and cooperation with leading
partners, primarily in Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei, Xiong’an New Area and “2+26”
cities and their peripheral regions. According to industry development
opportunities, the Group will select investment targets prudently and improve
the quality of investment, while seeking the diversified development of the
Group’s business, also safeguard the interests of its shareholders as a whole.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Gross Profit

The Group’s revenue and gross profit for the Reporting Period amounted to
RMB708,493,000 (for the same period of 2017: RMB897,902,000) and
RMB243,831,000 (for the same period of 2017: RMB260,480,000),
respectively. During the Reporting Period, revenue from the smart energy
business was RMB529,258,000 (for the same period of 2017:
RMB655,948,000). Revenue from the public infrastructure construction
business was approximately RMB179,235,000 (for the same period of 2017:
RMB241,954,000). Decrease in revenue and gross profit from the same
period of last year was primarily attributable to the drop in revenue and profit
of the home photovoltaic system business under the influence of national
policies.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses incurred by the Group for the Reporting
Period were RMB22,146,000 (for the same period of 2017: RMB24,519,000),
representing a decrease of 9.7% as compared to last year, primarily
attributable to downturn of home photovoltaic system business in second half
year.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses incurred by the Group for the Reporting Period were
RMB89,234,000 (for the same period of 2017: RMB68,190,000), representing
an increase of 30.9% as compared to last year, primarily attributable to the
increase in investments and mergers and acquisitions by the Group during
the year, resulting in an increase in relevant operation expenses.

Financial Expenses — Net

Net financial expenses for the Reporting Period were RMB9,308,000 (for the
same period of 2017: RMB19,235,000), representing a decrease of 51.6% as
compared to last year, primarily attributable to repayment of bank loans
during the year.

Income Tax

Income tax expenses for the Reporting Period were RMB10,386,000 (for the
same period of 2017: RMB22,328,000), representing a decrease of 53.5% as
compared to last year, primarily attributable to the decrease in profit before
income tax of smart energy business.
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Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss

The Group held three financial assets for investment purpose as at the end of
the Reporting Period, which are stated at fair value:

(1)

On 20 July 2018 and 7 September 2018, the Group subscribed for
shares in an unlisted investment fund, Giga Opportunities Fund Ltd., an
independent third party, at the total investment cost of HK$90,000,000
(equivalent to RMB78,859,000). The Group has the intention of holding
it for short to medium term investment and it is redeemable upon
making application to the fund administrator which allows better
flexibility in investment turn, and with an expectation of sharing of profits
and capital appreciation from the investment fund. The investment fund
is stated at fair value, which amounted to HK$78,586,000 (equivalent
to RMB68,858,000) as at 31 December 2018, with fair value loss of
approximately HK$11,414,000 (equivalent to RMB10,001,000)
recognized for the Reporting Period. The carrying amount of the
investment fund represented approximately 3.2% of the total assets of
the Group and approximately 41.9% of the portfolio of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 December 2018.

On 6 September 2018, the Group subscribed for share in an unlisted
investment fund, Yue Xiu Stable Income SP, an independent third
party, at the investment cost of HK$88,800,000 (equivalent to
RMB77,806,000). The Group has the intention of holding it for short to
medium term investment, and it is redeemable upon making application
to the fund administrator which allows better flexibility in investment
turn, and with an expectation of capital appreciation from the
investment fund. The investment fund is stated at fair value, which
amounted to HK$90,642,000 (equivalent to RMB79,420,000) as at 31
December 2018, with fair value gain of approximately HK$1,842,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,614,000) recognized for the
Reporting Period. The carrying amount of the investment fund
represented approximately 3.7% of the total assets of the Group and
approximately 48.3% of the portfolio of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as at 31 December 2018.
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Pursuant to an exchangeable bond subscription agreement dated 8
August 2018 and supplemental agreement dated 10 September 2018,
the Group subscribed for an unlisted exchangeable corporate bond
with the maturity date on 31 December 2020, with the principal amount
of HK$10,000,000 (equivalent to RMB8,762,000) and coupon rate of
13.5% per annum, issued by Supreme Trillion Development Limited, an
independent third party, on 11 September 2018. The Group may
exercise the exchangeable rights to convert whole or part of the
exchangeable bond into the ordinary shares of Asia Interactive Content
Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of Supreme Trillion Development Limited,
representing approximately 8.5% or 10% (as the case may be) of the
issued share capital of it.

The Group has the intention of holding the exchangeable bonds for
long-term investment, with an expectation of stable high coupon
interest return and proposes to convert into ordinary shares in a right
time in order to capture capital appreciation brought to the Group. The
exchangeable bond is stated at fair value, which amounted to
HK$10,000,000 (equivalent to RMB8,762,000) as at 31 December
2018, with no fair value changes for the Reporting Period. The carrying
amount of the exchangeable bond represented approximately 0.4% of
the total assets of the Group and approximately 5.3% of the portfolio of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 December
2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s investments primarily
consist of long-term projects in the area of smart energy and public
infrastructure constructions, which generally take a longer time to generate
positive cash flow. In the event that there is any unexpected event that has
negative impact on the business and prospect of smart energy industry, the
Group’s overall business performance could be affected. In light of above, as
part of the Group’s development plan and risk control, in the financial year
2018, the Board considers that the inclusion of investment in financial assets
will help to diversify its asset and investment portfolio and reduce the impact
of any market risk on the overall business of the Group.
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The strategy of the Group with respect to the investment in financial assets is
not to invest in speculative securities but mainly in lower risk investments,
with the initial investments focusing on investment funds managed by
qualified and licensed investment managers and which invest in low risk
underlying assets with relative low price volatility, higher liquidity, short to
medium terms and/or stable income stream.

Liquidity, Financial and Capital Resources

Cash position

As at 31 December 2018, bank balances and cash were approximately
RMB164,136,000 (as at 31 December 2017: RMB108,701,000), of which
approximately RMB1,219,000 (as at 31 December 2017: RMB1,679,000)
were restricted bank balances and cash (only available for payment of
expenses incurred by the Baoding Donghu Project). The increase on bank
balances and cash was mainly due to proceeds from the rights issue in
March 2018, and collection of receivables from smart energy business.

Total current assets and liquidity ratio

As at 31 December 2018, total current assets and liquidity ratio (total current
assets/total current liabilities) were approximately RMB1,370,646,000 (as at
31 December 2017: RMB1,404,387,000) and 9.75 (as at 31 December 2017:
2.73) respectively. The decrease in total current assets was mainly due to the
decrease in trade receivables, and the increase in liquidity ratio was due to
the net decrease of RMB253,040,000 in the balance of current bank
borrowings in 2018.

External borrowings and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had an external borrowing of
RMB567,600,000 (as at 31 December 2017: RMB933,545,000), of which
RMB282,600,000 was secured by the solar power plant machineries with
carrying amount of RMB303,731,000 and the future receivable collection right
of certain subsidiaries (as at 31 December 2017: RMB310,500,000 was
secured by the solar power plant machineries with carrying amount of
RMB350,730,000 and the future receivable collection right of certain
subsidiaries); and RMB285,000,000 was secured by the undertakings made
by the related parties of the Group (as at 31 December 2017:
RMB295,000,000).
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Gearing ratio
The following table sets out the calculation of the gearing ratio of the Group
as at the date indicated:

BEkE
TRBFIAEERAR B B0 R E RO

s

=

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
+t=ZH=+—-8H +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBFTT
Bank loans RITER 567,600 933,545
Less: Cash and cash equivalents WIRERBEEEBY (162,917) (107,022)
Restricted cash ZR &R e (1,219) (1,679)
Net debt B ¥ 403,464 824,844
Total equity WS 4a %R 1,479,949 774,801
Total capital (Net debt plus total equity) WER(EEFEMEREEE) 1,883,413 1,699,645
Gearing ratio (Net debt/total capital) BELE (BB TR BER) 21.4% 51.6%

As at 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio of the Group was 21.4%,
decreased by 30.2 percentage points as compared with the gearing ratio of
51.6% at 31 December 2017. The decrease was primarily due to repayment
of bank borrowings.

Long-term debts were the principle debts of the Group, accounting for 94.2%
(81 December 2017: 69.3%), in which: the borrowings of RMB282,600,000
of solar power plants were gradually settled by the proceeds of the sale of
electricity, and the borrowings of RMB285,000,000 in relation to Baoding
Donghu Project will be gradually settled via the borrowings used for the
project provided by the People’s Government of Baoding for 2019 and the
subsequent years, therefore, the Group is not exposed to any significant
insolvency risk.
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Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from external borrowings. During
the Reporting Period, interest rates of external borrowings ranged from 5.39%
to 7% per annum (for the same period of 2017: 5.39% to 7.50% per annum).
In particular, the interests on the borrowings incurred by the Baoding Donghu
Project were borne by the government, resulting in no exposure to any
interest rate risk thereon. The interest rate applicable to the borrowings for
solar power plants was 10% to 15% over the same period base lending rate
of the People’s Bank of China. The source of risk lies in the fluctuations in
China’s interest rate policies. Nevertheless, the Group expects that the
interest rate risk would have no material impact on the Group’s consolidated
profit or loss.

Exchange risk

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the PRC, the Group’s
transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi, which is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving
Renminbi must take place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorized to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange rates
adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange
quoted by the People’s Bank of China that are determined largely by supply
and demand.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign currency risk as it had
minimal transactions denominated in foreign currencies during the Reporting
Period and the impact of foreign currency risk on the Group’s operation is
minimal.

Capital commitments and investment commitments

The Group had capital commitments amounting to approximately
RMB148,000 as at 31 December 2018 (as at 31 December 2017:
RMBS5,681,000). Investment commitments amounted to RMB101,600,000 (as
at 31 December 2017: nil), which were mainly the Group’s obligations on
capital contribution to Longyao (Beijing) Clean Energy Technology Company
Limited (E#@(1LR)BRERFXERAF) (‘Longyao Beijing”), an
associate, which shall be payable by 31 December 2021.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (as at 31 December 2017: nil).

2= & bz
REBOFERRBEBREIIIE K RA
RAEHAR - HNIBAE FRIEN F5.39%E7% 2 F
FEFE(ZZE—EFREA: FAE39%E
750%) R RERMBEEERFEAK
FEAEYE - WEERE XTI ERR XK E Ll
EBERFEAEPHARRITRAPERFE £F
10%%E15% ' HEBRIRE 8 HF R B K8 R
B BEASEEFZAERBREANEEGRES
BRIZTEITEE -

& & B

HRAKENTEXHEPEET ~5HE
MZXHETEUARBHE MARELATA
HABRINE - FESPRARBOINERS
BABEBTEARRITHEMEELEITINE
BEENRBET IEXSARANERR
FRARBITEIERBHENSTREEM R
HY B K -

HRABERRANNEHENRHBD - K
SERBLEFNIIERBROEEK BINE
RREAEEEENTER) -

EXAENRERRE

RZZE—N\F+_A=+—H AEBMEX
EEN B ARE14800T(ZE—+F+ =
A=+—H: AR¥5,681,0007T) - #& & & ¥
& AR #101,600,000t(ZZE —tF+ = A
=+—H:8) FEAAEEER_-_T=—
FH+Z A=+ —HRTREHEAFER L
F)ERERRHEARAR(EEBLEZE)HEH

XEARE

RZZE—N\FE+_A=+—"HB AXEBFTE
FHERKEEE(ZE—+F+_A=+—
B:&E)-

BERNEBERERAMRAR  FiK 2018



22

Mana ement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Ed 73 i (am)

RELIANCE ON KEY CUSTOMERS

For the Reporting Period, revenue from the smart energy business amounted
to approximately RMB529,258,000 (for the same period of 2017:
RMB655,948,000), representing approximately 74.7% of the Group’s revenue
(for the same period of 2017: 73.1%). As the revenue from the smart energy
business mainly came from Hebei Zhanyuan New Energy Technology Co.,
Ltd CRERIREeEIRRH%BR A F]) (‘Hebei Zhanyuan”), the key customer
of the Group is Hebei Zhanyuan. Since the receivables of Hebei Zhanyuan
were collected gradually in normal progress, the Group is not exposed to any
significant risk.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL

Material Acquisitions

1. Capital injection into Haitian Fangyuan

On 9 July 2018, Beijing Longguang Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Longguang”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a capital injection agreement (the “Capital Injection
Agreement”) with the original shareholders of Tianjin Haitian Fangyuan
Energy Saving Technology Co., Ltd. (“Haitian Fangyuan”), in respect
of the cooperation on Haitian Fangyuan. Pursuant to the Capital
Injection Agreement, Beijing Longguang injected RMB6,111,000 into
Haitian Fangyuan. The registration of the capital injection in the relevant
administration for industry and commerce was completed on 16
August 2018. Upon completion of the capital injection, Beijing
Longguang held 55% equity interests of Haitian Fangyuan, and Haitian
Fangyuan became an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. As an energy-saving service provider and a PRC high-tech
company registered in the National Development and Reform
Commission, Haitian Fangyuan has extensive experience in the
investment, construction, operation and management of technical
energy conservation and energy performance contracting. It also has
extensive technical expertise and project reserves in the distributed
natural gas heating and related energy conservation services.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 9
July 2018.
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Acquisition of Lightway power plant

On 22 August 2018, Gao Bei Dian City Guangshuo New Energy Co.,
Ltd. (SEETEHFEREREMEAT) (“Guangshuo’, as the
purchaser), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”)
with Baoding Lightway Green Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (fR7E &
GFEiRRIE AR AT) (‘Baoding Lightway”, as the vendor).
Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, Guangshuo conditionally
agreed to acquire the sale asset from Baoding Lightway at a
consideration of RMB30,000,000 (excluding tax). The sales asset is a
10.2 MW distributed solar power plant located at the Lightway
Industrial Park, Hebei Province, the PRC. The power plant has been
connected to the power grid since April 2014 and has been operating
normally since then. The transaction was approved at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 3 October 2018 and
completed on 4 October 2018.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
22 August 2018, 13 September 2018 and 3 October 2018, and the
circular of the Company dated 14 September 2018.
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Acquisition of Baotou Wind Power

On 7 November 2018, Longe International Investment Limited (as the
purchaser), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with China Ruifeng Renewable Energy Holdings Limited (as
the vendor), Suzlon Energy (Tianjin) Company Limited (as a guarantor
of the vendor) and the Company (as a guarantor of the purchaser).
Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, Longe International
Investment Limited agreed to acquire 100% equity interests in Sino
Renewable Energy Holdings Company Limited (the “Target
Company”) at a consideration of HK$195,360,000, which shall be
satisfied by the issuance of convertible bonds of the Company. The
Target Company indirectly holds 100% equity interests in Baotou City
Yinfeng Huili New Energy Investment Ltd. (‘Baotou Yinfeng”). Baotou
Yinfeng has the ownership of a wind power project in Baotou City,
Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, the PRC, and the planned
installed capacity of the project is 200 MW, with 49.8 MW for the first
phase. As the conditions precedent to the acquisition were not fulfilled
on or before 10 January 2019, the Sale and Purchase Agreement has
been terminated and the acquisition will not proceed. All rights,
obligations and liabilities of the Company, the purchaser, the vendor
and the guarantor have ceased and terminated, and none of the parties
thereto shall be liable to the other party save for those relating to the
loan and any antecedent breaches of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
7 November 2018, 9 November 2018, 20 November 2018, 7
December 2018 and 10 January 2019.

Save for disclosed above, the Group had no other material acquisition
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Material Disposal

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no material disposal.
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Significant Investment

1.

Investment in Longyao Beijing

On 4 June 2018, Baoding Yize New Energy Technology Company
Limited (fR e EFREREHE AR AF) (‘Baoding Yize”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a capital
increase agreement (the “Capital Increase Agreement”) with Beijing
Yaohui Hengchang Technology Partnership Enterprise (Limited
Partnership) (It RUBIE1E E R & B X (BRE %) (‘Beijing Yaohui”)
and Longyao Beijing. Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement,
Baoding Yize and Beijing Yaohui conditionally agreed to inject
RMB45,000,000 and RMB55,000,000 into Longyao Beijing
respectively. Prior to the additional capital injection under the Capital
Increase Agreement, Baoding Yize and Beijing Yaohui held 45% and
55% equity interests respectively. Upon completion of the capital
increase, the shareholding structure of Longyao Beijing would remain
unchanged and the total registered capital of Longyao Beijing would
increase from RMB200 million to RMB300 million. The registration of
the capital injection with the relevant administration for industry and
commerce was completed on 27 June 2018. Upon completion of the
capital increase, Longyao Beijing has become an associated company
of the Company.

Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement, the capital increase
together with the original capital injection amount shall be paid by
Baoding Yize and Beijing Yaohui, respectively, within six months from
the date of the Capital Increase Agreement, which was 3 December
2018. Based on the actual operating and funding requirements of
Longyao Beijing, on 4 December 2018, Baoding Yize, Beijing Yaohui
and Longyao Beijing entered into a supplemental agreement to the
Capital Increase Agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”).
According to the Supplemental Agreement, unpaid capital increase
amount and unpaid original capital injection amount shall be paid to
Longyao Beijing by Baoding Yize and Beijing Yaohui, respectively,
before 31 December 2021. All capital contribution shall mainly be used
for heating business related investments and acquisitions, relevant
technical consulting, management and services, and other purposes
considered as appropriate by the board of the directors of Longyao
Beijing according to its actual operational needs.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
4 June 2018 and 4 December 2018.
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Investment in Shandong Hailifeng

On 26 July 2018, Beijing Longguang, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Shengli Qilfield Lifeng Industrial Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Shengli Oilfield Lifeng”) and Hailifeng entered into a acquisition
agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”). Pursuant to the Acquisition
Agreement, Beijing Longguang invested RMB60,000,001 in Hailifeng.
The registration of the investment with the relevant administration for
industry and commerce was completed on 1 August 2018. Upon
completion of the investment, Beijing Longguang indirectly held 40%
equity interest in Hailifeng. Hailifeng became an associated company of
the Company. Hailifeng and its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the
operation and management of distributed clean energy heating and
cooling supply; production, sales and installation of heat pump
products; geothermal engineering construction, and energy
management contract, etc.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
26 July 2018.

In accordance with the terms of the Acquisition Agreement, Shengli
Qilfield Lifeng has provided certain performance undertakings to Beijing
Longguang, under which Beijing Longguang has the right to require
Shengli Qilfield Lifeng to purchase the 40% of the registered capital in
Hailifeng hold by Beijing Longguang (the “Sale Shares”) if Hailifeng fails
to meet performance undertakings (the “Put Option”).

As Hailifeng has failed to meet the performance target for the year
ended 31 December 2018, Beijing Longguang elected to exercise the
Put Option. Shengli Qilfield Lifeng, Beijing Longguang and Hailifeng
entered into a Repurchase Agreement on 29 March 2019 (the
“Repurchase Agreement”) pursuant to which Shengli Oilfield Lifeng
will purchase the Sale Shares for consideration of RMB60,000,001. In
addition, Beijing Longguang is entitled to a distributable profit of
Hailifeng for 2018 of RMB16,000,000.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
29 March 2019.

Save for disclosed above, the Group had no other significant
investments during the Reporting Period.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate
in September 2017

On 28 September 2017, 145,688,000 new shares were placed by Yue
Xiu Securities Company Limited, the placing agent of the Company, to
not less than six placees at the price of HK$1.98 per placing share. The
aggregate gross proceeds from the placing was approximately HK$288
million and the aggregate net proceeds from the placing was
approximately HK$285 milion. The Company intended to use
approximately 65% of the net proceeds from the placing for the
development of smart energy business and the relevant potential
investments and mergers and acquisitions to be identified,
approximately 25% for the development of solar energy business,
especially the home photovoltaic system, and the remaining balance of
approximately 10% as general working capital of the Group.

The analysis of the intended and actual uses of the net proceeds from
the placing of new shares under general mandate as at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2018 is set out below:
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285,000 (240,740) (44,260)
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Rights Issue in March 2018

On 25 January 2018, the Company implemented a rights issue on the
basis of one rights share for every two shares held on the record date
by issuing 459,474,000 rights shares at the subscription price of
HK$1.20 per rights share. The par value of rights shares is HK$0.01
each. The theoretical ex-rights price calculated based on the closing
price of HK$2.05 per share as quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the last trading day, i.e. 25
January 2018, was approximately HK$1.77 per share. The rights issue
financed the requirements of the Group’s development, offering all the
qualifying shareholders equal opportunity to subscribe for their pro-rata
provisional allotment of the rights shares without diluting their respective
shareholding, and providing them with an opportunity to participate in
the future development of the Group.

The Company completed the rights issue on the basis of one rights
share for every two shares by placing and issuing an aggregate of
459,474,000 shares on 22 March 2018. The gross proceeds from the
rights issue were approximately HK$551 million, while the net proceeds
from the rights issue were approximately HK$549 million. The net price
per rights share was approximately HK$1.19.

The intended applications of the net proceeds from the rights issue are
as follows: (a) approximately HK$384 million, i.e. 70% of the net
proceeds, for the development of smart energy and solar energy
businesses; and (b) approximately HK$165 million, i.e. 30% of the net
proceeds, as general working capital of the Group.
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The analysis of the intended and actual uses of the net proceeds from R-ZE—NF+_A=+—8 " #KF
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used from Remaining
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70% for the development of smart ~ 70% F3 72 24 R %5 2 42 0R
energy and solar energy N KI5 g8 275

businesses 384,000 (8347,000) 37,000
30% for general working capital 0% AE—HREEER 165,000 (165,000) 0
549,000 (512,000) 37,000

The remaining balance of the proceeds is expected to be used as
intended in the coming twelve months.

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate
in August 2018

On 27 July 2018, the Company and the placing agent, Golden Rich
Securities Limited, entered into a placing agreement (as amended and
supplemented on 10 August 2018 and 17 August 2018) (the “Placing
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Placing Agreement, the Company
conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and the placing agent
conditionally agreed, on a best effort basis, to place up to 128,000,000
placing shares (the “Placing Shares”) to not less than six placees at
the placing price of HK$1.37 per placing share (the “Placing Price”).
The par value of the Placing Shares was HK$0.01 each. The closing
price of the Company’s shares was HK$1.71 per share as quoted on
the Stock Exchange on 27 July 2018, i.e. the date of the Placing
Agreement. Through the placing, the Group was offered with a good
opportunity to raise additional funds to strengthen its financial position,
diversify its existing business and revenue streams, and broaden its
shareholder base and capital base (the “Placing”).
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The Placing was completed on 27 August 2018, an aggregate of
106,182,000 Placing Shares were successfully placed by the placing
agent to not less than six placees at the Placing Price. The aggregate
gross proceeds from the Placing were approximately HK$145.5 million,
while the aggregate net proceeds from the Placing were approximately
HK$143.3 million. The net placing price was HK$1.35 per Placing
Share. Among the net proceeds from the Placing, the Company
intended to use approximately 52% for repayment of short-term bank
borrowings, approximately 30% for financial investments, and the
remaining balance of approximately 18% for general working capital of
the Group.

The analysis of the intended and actual uses of the net proceeds from
the Placing as at 31 December 2018 is set out below:
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group had 170 employees as at 31 December 2018 (as at 31 December
2017: 302 employees). The decrease in the number of employees was
primarily due to the contraction of the smart energy business, especially the
home photovoltaic system business. Employees were remunerated according
to the nature of their positions, individual qualification, performance, work
experience and market trends, and subject to periodic reviews based on their
performance. Meanwhile, to attract and retain high caliber employees to
ensure smooth operation and cater for the Group’s constant expansion, the
Group offers competitive remuneration and benefit packages to employees at
different levels, including discretionary bonuses, various training programmes,
sponsorship for further study and share option scheme for the benefit of the
directors and eligible employees of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

With smart energy and public construction businesses as its principal
business activities, the Group is committed to environmental protection and
mitigating the impact of its operations on the environment. During the
Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the requirements of the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s
operations.

In the course of developing its smart energy and public construction
businesses, the Group should mainly comply with the requirements and
restrictions under the following environmental laws and regulations, namely,
the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (2% A
REMBIREREZE), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution (2 A R HEMBKFEBTEE),
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution ({3 A REMEI AR5 E%), the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste (4 A B £ FNE & L & 4155 23R 5 [8 %), the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Appraising of Environment Impacts (1
= N RHEFMEIBEZEE%) and the Regulations on the Administration of
Environmental Protection of Construction Projects (i2:&18 B IRIBREE 215
f5ll). The Group affirms the importance of complying with the laws and
regulations on environmental protection. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations on environmental
protection that are of importance to the Group.
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We also recognize the importance of maintaining mutually beneficial
relationships with our stakeholders, namely our employees, customers and
suppliers and local communities whose support is vital to the Group’s
sustainable development. We pay close attention to the needs of all
stakeholders, deliver solutions addressing their needs and we continuously
interact with our stakeholders in way that is conducive to sustainable growth
in the Company, our industry and our communities. For more details of the
Group’s environmental, social and governance report of 2018, please refer to
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the Company to be
issued in April 2019.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group operates its businesses mainly in Mainland China. The
development and operation of the Group’s smart energy and public
construction businesses in the PRC are regulated by the local laws and
regulations on renewable energy, the provision of electricity and construction
project, as well as various policies and industry guidance catalogs issued by
the local governments. There was no incident of non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that had or would have a significant impact on
the Company during the Reporting Period.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are smart energy business, public
infrastructure construction and the related preliminary investment and post-
construction operation management business, with gradual expansion and
diversification to other clean energy business. The principal activities and
other particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
17 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
“Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss” on page 109 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years and the financial key
performance indicators of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out on
pages 219 to 220 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The business review for the Reporting Period and an indication of likely future
development in the business of the Company are set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report. Our risk management system and a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that the Company may be facing are provided
in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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DIVIDENDS POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy (the “Policy”) which can be
downloaded from the Company’s website www.longitech.hk.

1.

Purpose

The Policy is made under the premises that the Company fully
considers and guards the interests of all Shareholders, and starts from
actual business operation, and on the basis of the Company’s various
expenditures, maintaining financial stability and autonomy, and realizing
the Company’s sustained, stable and healthy development.

Policy

2.1

Under the Policy, the Board will consider factors such as the
Company’s annual performance, cash flow performance, future
financing needs, major capital expenditures, business operating
model, industrial development trends, the Company’s
development stage and strategic planning etc,. in order to
decided on cash dividend or stock dividend.

Subject to applicable laws and regulations and the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), the Company may pay out cash dividends when
the Company’s distributable profit is positive and the Company’s
cash flow can cover the Company’s daily operation and
sustainable development requirement. When the Company pays
out cash dividend, the proportion of cash dividend should be or
not less than 20%-50% of the given year’s distributable profit
that belongs to the shareholder. This should serve as a general
but not mandatory standard for the Board when considering
paying out dividend.

In complying with the requirements of the applicable laws, rules
and regulations and the Articles of Association and in order to
ensure the Company in maintaining a reasonable share capital
and shareholding structure, in the case the Company’s
attributable profit is positive, the Company may issue stock
dividend, so as to reward the Shareholders for investment, to
share the profit of the Company and to maintain the valuation of
the Company’s stock within a reasonable range.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2018

ik B B R

AR B BERMIE B ER ([ZBER]) - &R A
R R 7 48 35 (www.longitech.hk) T & °

1.

=Ry

ARBIADERMNEE DB RN G
RERKLZBERLE EREARAE
Ax it REMBREEMBTE - U
RERARAFE RBE BEERD
EfE L BIERBE -

BUR

21 REZBE EFEREEARF
MEFEERR HERERHA -
ARBMEFTR BREAIH ¥
BEERK TEERBELAR
AT BRI N B AR 8%
BR GIERSIREDENHRK
& o

22 EMAEHEAMERERRARQF
MABERRERANTER)D
R THART  EXQRAHS
EmFBEAEERARARNES
RAIAEFBEERERLMA 5
BEFRE  ARAGAETHEESS
oA RNREITREDL B
DHEMEPEE BTN REF
B A E BN R R RS REFDE
B)20%-50% ° It B E T E E IR
MR B 2 —fREIERFIEZAE -

23 EETEAMEREIRALRAAE
RORELREARRBRARRR
MEREEBAENERT  EREB
ARABNMBERLE A7 REBKE
Bt DEEERFNE #RBARA
MEE{REERGERERN AR
BRI AR R -



3. Review

The Board will review the Policy on a regular basis to ensure that the
Policy is in line with market practice and supports the Company’s
continuous development strategy.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain the entitlements to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, 30 May 2019 (the “Meeting”),
the transfer books and register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 27 May 2019 to Thursday, 30 May 2019, both days inclusive,
during which period no share transfers can be registered. In order to qualify
for attending the Meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 24 May 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 15 to the audited consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Details of interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2018
are set out in note 29 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Group, or existed during the Reporting Period.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 28 to the audited consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

ISSUE OF SHARES

A review and discussion of the issue of Shares for the Reporting Period are
provided in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS AND ENVIRONMENTAL
POLICIES

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the Group.

In the course of developing the smart energy and solar energy businesses,
the Group shall comply with the requirements and restrictions under the
environmental laws and regulations, in particular of: the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (| 2£ A R FIEI IR I (R 35%),
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution (FRZE A RHEFEIKT LM AE), the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (/7
#E A RIELFE AT I5L07585%), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste (F2 £ A
RHAMNBEEEY T LBIEN A%, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Appraising of Environment Impacts (Fp 3 A R RIS 2 2 51(E%)
and the Regulations on the Administration of Environmental Protection of
Construction Projects (%18 B IRIZREE IR IEH). The Group affirms the
importance of complying with the laws and regulations on environmental
protection. During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the
laws and regulations on environmental protection that are of importance to
the Group.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro
rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 28 to the audited consolidated financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively in this
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity Shareholders was RMB1,149,044,000 (31 December
2017: RMB525,716,000).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donations during the Reporting Period
(2017: Nil).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transactions

The Group carried out the following connected transactions (other than
connected transactions that were exempted under Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”)) during the Reporting Period:

1

Acquisition of a distributed solar power station

On 22 August 2018, Guangshuo, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an agreement with Baoding Lightway,
under which the Guangshuo conditionally agreed to acquire a 10.2 MW
distributed solar power station located at the Lightway Industrial Park,
Hebei Province, the PRC from the Baoding Lightway at the
consideration of RMB30 million (excluding tax) (the “Acquisition”).

Implications under the Listing Rules

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
Acquisition, when aggregated with the previous acquisitions of the
Company since 10 March 2016, exceeds 25% but all are less than
100%, and as Baoding Lightway is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Lightway Green Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (‘Lightway Green
Energy”), a company held as to approximately 69% by Mr. Wei Qiang,
an executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company, the
Acquisition constituted a connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which was subject to the approval by
the independent Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting (the
“EGM”) by way of poll.

The resolution in respect of the Acquisition was duly passed by way of
poll at the EGM of the Company held on 3 October 2018 and the
Acquisition was completed on 4 October 2018.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
22 August 2018, 13 September 2018, 3 October 2018 and the circular
dated 14 September 2018.
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Provision of services to Longchuang

On 8 October 2018, Guangshuo, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the services agreement (the “Services
Agreement”) with Gao Bei Dian City Long Chuang Central Heating
Company Limited (‘Longchuang”, =% /E & RI&EHHAGRAT),
pursuant to which Guangshuo has agreed to provide technical solution
services and cloud platform services to Longchuang, with service fees
of RMB6,000,000 in total.

Implications under the Listing Rules

Since Longchuang is owned as to 99% by Mr. Wei Shaojun, the non-
executive Director and the controlling shareholder of the Company, and
1% by his daughter, Longchuang is therefore a connected person and
the transactions contemplated under the Services Agreement
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios in respect
of the provision of such services on an aggregated basis were more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions contemplated under the
Services Agreement were subject to the reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements but were exempt from the circular and
independent Shareholder’s approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8
October 2018.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group carried out the following continuing connected transactions (other
than continuing connected transactions that are exempted under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules) during the Reporting Period:

1)

Master Agreement and Supplemental Agreements in
relation to the supply of solar modules

On 16 November 2016, Hebei Longitech Cloud Energy Company
Limited (“Hebei Longitech”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an agreement (the “Master Agreement”)
with Baoding Lightway in relation to the supply of solar modules by
Baoding Lightway to the Group for the period from the date of the
Master Agreement to 31 December 2018. Pursuant to the Master
Agreement, the proposed annual caps (i.e. the maximum annual
aggregate consideration payable by the Group to Baoding Lightway)
for the 3 years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 should not
exceed RMB16,000,000.
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On 19 January 2017, Hebei Longitech entered into a supplemental
agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) with Baoding Lightway
to revise the annual caps (the “Revised Caps”) for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2018 from RMB16,000,000 to RMB420,000,000.
The resolution in respect of the Master Agreement (as supplemented
by the Supplemental Agreement) and the Revised Caps were duly
passed by way of poll at the EGM of the Company held on 10 March
2017.

On 22 December 2017, as a result of the internal business restructuring
of Lightway Green Energy, Hebei Longitech entered into a supplemental
agreement (the “Second Supplemental Agreement”) with Baoding
Lightway and Lightway Green Energy, pursuant to which () Lightway
Green Energy will replace its wholly-owned subsidiary, Baoding
Lightway, as the party to the Master Agreement and the Supplemental
Agreement; and (ii) Lightway Green Energy together with its subsidiaries
(including Baoding Lightway) will continue to supply the relevant solar
modules to members of the Group as contemplated under the Master
Agreement and Supplemental Agreement. Lightway Green Energy,
same as Baoding Lightway, is principally engaged in new energy
technology development and the production and sale of photovoltaics
components.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
16 November 2016, 19 January 2017, 10 March 2017, 22 December
2017 and the circular dated 21 February 2017.

The total amount purchased for the solar modules from Lightway Green
Energy together with its subsidiaries (including Baoding Lightway) for
the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
RMB93,083,000.

Implications under the Listing Rules

Since each of Baoding Lightway and Lightway Green Energy is a
company controlled by Mr. Wei Qiang, an executive Director and a
chief executive officer of the Company, the transactions contemplated
under the Master Agreement (as supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement and the Second Supplemental Agreement) constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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As the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) of the
transactions contemplated under the Master Agreement (as
supplemented by the Supplemental Agreement and the Second
Supplement Agreement) exceeded 5%, the transactions contemplated
under the Master Agreement (as supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement and the Second Supplement Agreement) were subject to
reporting, announcement and the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

First Master Agreement and Second Master
Agreement in relation to the supply of electricity

First Master Agreement

On 10 July 2017, Guangshuo, entered into the master agreement (“First
Master Agreement”) with Longjitaine Property Co., Ltd. (“Longjitaihe
Property’, BEZMEEXABREAR]) in respect of the continuing
connected transactions between members of the Group and
Longjitaihe Property and its subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the terms of the First Master Agreement, members of the
Group will lease roof top and related storage and operation spaces
from Longjitaihe Property and its subsidiaries for the installation of the
solar power plant facilities of the Group, and upon the solar power
plants get connected to the grid, supply electricity to Longjitaihe
Property and its subsidiaries.

No rent is payable by Guangshuo in respect of the leasing of roof tops
and other operational spaces from Longjitaihe Property. This
arrangement is in-line with common market practice and in-line with the
agreement commonly adopted by Guangshuo with independent third
party customers under equivalent circumstances.

In respect of the supply of electricity by Guangshuo to Longjitaihe
Property, the fees will be based on the unit price per kWh as published
by the Provincial Price Bureau of which the power station projects are
located at (which is subject to adjustment from time to time), with a
discount of no more than 20% being offered in comprehensive
consideration of the free rental of roof top and the electricity usage of
the landlord, etc. The transactions under such electricity purchase
agreement are conducted in the usual and ordinary course of business
of the Group on normal commercial terms, and under equivalent
conditions, the terms and consideration are similar to those offered to
independent third party customers.
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The First Master Agreement has a term of 20 years for the leases and a
term of 25 years for the supply of electricity. The annual caps under the
First Master Agreement in respect of the supply of electricity to
Longjitaihe Property during the term of the agreement will not exceed
RMB10,000,000.

Longjitaihe Property is a company controlled and owned by Mr. Wei
Shaojun, a non-executive Director and the controlling shareholder of
the Company. The transactions contemplated under the First Master
Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Second Master Agreement

On 10 July 2017, Guangshuo entered into the master agreement
(the “Second Master Agreement”) with Longjitaihe Industrial Co., Ltd
(“Longjitaihe Industrial”, [ EZ=ME 3 H R A 7)) and Lightway Green
Energy in respect of the continuing connected transactions between
members of the Group and Longjitaihe Industrial, Lightway Green
Energy and their subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the terms of the Second Master Agreement, members of
the Group will lease roof top and related storage and operation spaces
from Longjitaihe Industrial and Lightway Green Energy and their
subsidiaries for the installation of the solar power plant facilities of the
Group, and upon the solar power plants get connected to the grid,
supply electricity to Longjitaihe Industrial and Lightway Green Energy
and their subsidiaries.

No rent is payable by Guangshuo in respect of the leasing of roof tops
and other operational spaces from Longjitaihe Industrial and Lightway
Green Energy under the Second Master Agreement. This arrangement
is in-line with common market practice and in-line with the agreement
commonly adopted by Guangshuo with independent third party
customers under equivalent circumstances.

In respect of the supply of electricity by Guangshuo, the fees will be
based on the unit price per kWh as published by the Provincial Price
Bureau of which the power station projects are located at (which is
subject to adjustment from time to time), with a discount of no more
than 20% being offered in comprehensive consideration of the free
rental of roof top and the electricity usage of the landlord, etc. The
transactions under such electricity purchase agreement are conducted
in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group on normal
commercial terms, and under equivalent conditions, the terms and
consideration are similar to those offered to independent third party
customers.
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The Second Master Agreement has a term of 20 years for the leases
and a term of 25 years for the supply of electricity. The annual caps
under the Second Master Agreement in respect of the supply of
electricity to Longjitaihe Industrial and Lightway Green Energy during
the term of the agreement will not be exceed RMB8,000,000.

Longjitaihe Industry and Lightway Green Energy are companies
respectively controlled and owned by Mr. Wei Shaojun and Mr. Wei
Qiang, both are the Directors of the Company. The transactions
contemplated under the Second Master Agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
27 April 2017, 9 June 2017, 10 July 2017 and the circular dated 22
May 2017.

The transaction amounts under the First Master Agreement and the
Second Master Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2018 were
approximately RMB5,147,000 and RMB494,000 respectively.

Implications under the Listing Rules

As the annual caps in respect of the continuing connected transactions
under the First Master Agreement and the Second Master Agreement
on an aggregate bases are expected to be more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, the First Master Agreement and the Second Master
Agreement are subject to the reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements and exempted from the independent Shareholders’
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules provides that the duration of continuing
connected transaction agreements must be fixed and reflect normal
commercial terms and, except in special circumstances, must not
exceed three years. As both the First Master Agreement and the
Second Master Agreement have a term of 20 years for the leases and
25 years for the supply of electricity, the Company has engaged
Southwest Securities (HK) Capital Limited, an independent financial
adviser, to review and analyse the terms of the First Master Agreement
and the Second Master Agreement and the independent financial
adviser has confirmed and formed the view that it was usual and
normal business practice for agreements in the nature of the First
Master Agreement and the Second Master Agreement to be of such
durations.
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Revolving Loan Agreement

On 13 June 2018, the Company entered into the revolving loan
agreement (the “Revolving Loan Agreement’) with Longjitaihe
Industrial, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to provide
through the Company or any of its subsidiaries to Longjitaihe Industrial
or any one of its subsidiaries, and/or third parties designed by
Longjitaihe Industrial, collectively or individually, a revolving loan in an
aggregate principal amount of up to RMB110 million for the availability
period commenced from 13 June 2018 and ending on 12 June 2019.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
13 June 2018.

The transaction amount for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately RMB109,650,000.

Implications under the Listing Rules

As at the date of the Revolving Loan Agreement , Longjitaihe Industrial
was held as to 99% by Mr. Wei Shaojun, the non-executive Director
and the controlling shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the
Revolving Loan Agreement and the transaction contemplated
thereunder constituted continuing connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transaction under
the Revolving Loan Agreement exceeded 0.1% but were less than 5%,
the transaction was only subject to reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements but were exempt from the circular and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Provision of management service to Longchuang

On 8 October 2018, Guangshuo, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the Services Agreement with
Longchuang, pursuant to which Guangshuo has agreed to provide
management service to Longchuang for the periods (i) between 1
November 2018 to 31 December 2018 (the “Service Year 2018”) and (i)
between 1 January 2019 to 30 March 2019 (the “Service Year 2019”).

The annual caps for the management services under the Services
Agreement are (i) RMB13,100,000 for the Service Year 2018; and (i)
RMB21,900,000 for the Service Year 2019.
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For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8
October 2018.

The transaction amount for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately RMB12,264,000.

Implications under the Listing Rules

Since Longchuang is owned as to 99% by Mr. Wei Shaojun, the non-
executive Director and the controlling shareholder of the Company, and
1% by his daughter, Longchuang is therefore a connected person and
the transactions contemplated under the Services Agreement constitute
continuing connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the provision of such
services on an aggregated basis were more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
the transactions contemplated under the Services Agreement were
subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but were exempt from the circular and independent
shareholder’s approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions set out above and have confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial
terms or better; and (jii) according to the agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified
letter containing the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions above-mentioned in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been submitted by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Save for the connected transactions and the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above, the Board is of the view that those
material related party transactions disclosed in note 37 to the audited
consolidated financial statements as contained in this annual report do
not constitute “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions”, as the case may be, that are subject to the reporting,
announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above connected transactions.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 86%
(2017: 91%) of the total sales for the Reporting Period and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 51% (2017: 56%) of the total sales
for the Reporting Period. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 72% (2017: 57%) of the total purchase for the
Reporting Period and purchase from the Group’s largest supplier included
therein amounted to 32% (2017: 41%) of the total purchase for the Reporting
Period.

Of the five largest customers, Longchuang is a company controlled by
Mr. Wei Shaojun, the non-executive Director and the controlling shareholder
of the Company, and is thus a connected person of the Company. The
Group’s sales to Longchuang amounted to 2.51% (2017: nil) of the total sales
for the Reporting Period. For details, please refer to the section headed
“Connected Transactions” (2) “Provision of services to Longchuang” and the
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” (4) “Provision of
management service to Longchuang” in the “ Report of Directors”.

Of the five largest suppliers, Lightway Green Energy and Baoding Lightway
are the companies controlled by Mr. Wei Qiang, an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company, and are the connected persons of the
Company. The Group’s purchase from Lightway Green Energy and Baoding
Lightway amounted to 32% (2017: 41%) of the total purchase for the
Reporting Period. For details, please refer to the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” (1) “Master Agreement and Supplemental
Agreements in relation to the supply of solar modules” in the “ Report of
Directors”.

Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period, none of the Directors
or any of their close associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of issued
shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The Group
provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the
employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its immediate and long-term goals.
To maintain its brand competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims
at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the products and service
to its customers. During the Reporting Period, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and currently are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Vice-chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 27 April 2018)

Dr. Liu Zhengang

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wei Shaojun

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Han Qinchun
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John
Mr. Han Xiaoping

In accordance with article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at the
forthcoming Meeting to be held, Mr. Wei Qiang, Mr. Han Xiaoping and Dr. Liu
Zhengang will retire from office as Directors, and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election as Directors. At the forthcoming Meeting, ordinary
resolutions will be proposed to re-elect Mr. Wei Qiang, Mr. Han Xiaoping and
Dr. Liu Zhengang.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND OTHER
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and other senior management are
disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all
independent non-executive Directors are being considered to be independent
by reference to the factors stated in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company has not
entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body corporate to
manage or administer the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
Company during the Reporting Period.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors of the Company are set out in
note 39 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the
Company is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Group,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices. The remunerations of the Directors are
determined with reference to the economic situation, the market condition,
the responsibilities and duties assumed by each Director as well as their
individual performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, and 5 highest paid individuals
during the Reporting Period are set out in notes 10 and 39 to the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Company are
set out in note 10 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

CHANGE TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change to information in
respect of a Director is set out below:

1. On 16 August 2018, Mr. Yuen Chi Ping was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Sun Cheong Creative
Development Holdings Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1781).

Save as disclosed above, for the Reporting Period, there was no change to
information which is required to be disclosed and has been disclosed by
Directors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the audited consolidated financial statements
and in the section headed “Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this annual report, neither Director nor entity
connected with the Directors had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the
business of the Group subsisting at any time during the Reporting Period or
at the end of the year to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries was a party.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any
such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or
any of their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

Pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the following current Directors
held share interests and/or directorships in companies engaged in businesses
which compete or likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group:
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Mr. Wei Shaojun holds share interests and directorships in Longjitaihe
industrial (together with its subsidiary “Longjitaihe Group”), Longjitaihe Group
engages in businesses of public infrastructure construction business. As
smart energy business constitutes the Group’s principal business activities,
the Group currently has no plan to further expand public infrastructure
construction business after the Baoding Donghu Project is complete. On this
basis, there does not exist any material competition between the businesses
of the Group and those of the Longjitaine Group.

Mr. Wei Qiang holds share interests and directorships in Lightway Green
Energy and Baoding Lightway which engage in businesses of clean energy,
mainly the production and sales of photovoltaic components and the
development, construction and operation of solar power plants.

As the Group acquired a 10.2 MW distributed solar power plant located at
the Lightway Industrial Park from Baoding Lightway on 4 October 2018,
Lightway Green Energy (including its subsidiary) does not hold any solar
power plants. Therefore, there does not exist any material competition
between the businesses of the Group and those of the Lightway Green
Energy (including its subsidiary).

In the future, the Group will be the main entity carrying out the business of
smart energy and other clean energy, the Longjitaihe Group and Lightway
Green Energy(including its subsidiary) will not participate in the smart energy
and other clean energy business that will be competed with the Group.

Each of the Directors is aware of his fiduciary duties as a Director of the
Company which require, among other things, that he acts for the benefit and
in the best interests of the Company and avoids any conflicts between his
duties as a Director and his personal interest.

As the Board is independent of the boards of the aforesaid companies and
maintains three independent non-executive Directors, the Group operates its
businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of the
aforesaid companies.

Report of Directors (continued)

SSBEWRS @

RIVEEAENREEZNEXCERANE A
AREEFNEEDFERNDESRETE
T MEEFMEEDRETAREREK A
RASBNIEXBEHREZHTR  NR
ERMABEBTHE AEBERARAE®
—HIRARBRES B AKRENEH
HEAFNMEENEBIFEERBF -

RRAAERARBEERERELRSFAK
MESRETESE MZERAANREESZR
BER(EZREREMOEERBEEARER
BUMFE BRLEL)NER -

HRAEER-_Z-N\F+ANBRRKRENL
BRBRBURARTERZ102KE D MAK
Gae B - A RGERR(BEAENBEAR) L
THEEEMIRNEY - Bt REBMHEKE
rRGERR(BEENBAR NERTE
EEARBFE -

RARK B2RBRREMERERELK
ERBAKEET BERNMEBER LRI
ERR(EEENBAR S THB2EEAE
BEESRFNEBRRREMBRERER -

EEREABEBEERARAESTNXER
T A(ERER)ETEANARRNNES
KEELTEARBNKENZR TAELE
EERARAGNEANGZELEFAFHR-

HREFENBIN LA RARNEEEEX

BER-R2BIUNNATES MAKEBYL
RERAREBEAFEELEHET -

BESNSESERERERAT &3k 2018

51



52

Report of Directors (continued)

ESSEHRS@

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 22 November 2011.

1.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the
eligible persons, to provide additional incentive to them and to promote
the success of the business of the Group.

Participants

The Board is authorised, at their absolute discretion and subject to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme, to grant options to subscribe the
Shares to, inter alia, any employees (full-time and part-time), directors,
consultants, advisors, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners or service providers of the Group.

Total number of Shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the number of the issued Shares of the Company as at the
Listing Date. On 12 June 2018, the Company had refreshed the
scheme mandate limit of the Share Option Scheme to 10% of the
aggregate number of the Shares of the Company in issue as at that
date, i.e. a total of 137,842,200 Shares, representing 9.28% of the
number of the Shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this
report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted to any grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme, in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue.

Period within which the Shares must be taken
up under an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.
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6. Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period for
which an option must be held and performance targets that must be
achieved before an option can be exercised.

7. Time of acceptance and the amount payable
on acceptance of the option

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of
the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

8. Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall not be
lower than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option; (i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and (i) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of the option.

9. Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme became unconditional on the Listing Date
and shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing
on 22 November 2011, subject to the early termination provisions
contained in the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2018, the
remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 2 years and
11 months.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme does not exceed 10% of the shares
in issue as at 12 June 2018, the date on which the Company had refreshed
the scheme mandate limit of the Share Option Scheme. The Company may
at any time refresh such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue
of a circular in compliance with the Listing Rules, provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes
of the Company does not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue at the time.
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As at 31 December 2018, details of the movement of the share options under

the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

ATEHBERBEEHNFROT

RZZBE-NF+ZA=+—H BERETZ

Number of Share Options
BREHE
Closing
price Adjusted
preceding exercise
date of Exercise price Exercised Cancelled  Lapsed
grant price  (HKS per Asat Granted  during  during  during Asat
Name and category of (HKSper (HK$per  Share)  1January during the the the the 31 December
participants Date of grant Exercise period share)  Share) (Note 1) 2018 Period  Period  Period  Period 2018
REAH FE]
Ak fEE i
e RE  (BR i “B-N\f
(B8R  (BR  #n) —B-N\F TR
SHREARZRER BHAH fTEHE Br)  Br) (ME1) -B-B HARE BafE HAEH BA%R =t-8
Directors
EZ
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Note 2) 26 January 2018 26 January 2019 to 25 January 2028 (Note 3) 1711 2132 1.779% — 11,008,998 - - — 11,008,998
RETRE M) “E-N\E-f-t+RE ZE-NE-F-tREE
—Z-\E-A=THA(K#F3)
Dr. Liu Zhengang 19 January 2017 19 January 2018 to 21 November 2021 1.603 22 18364 1,198,000 - - - - 1,198,000
(Note 3)
AmEAEL “E-tF-At+hB “E-\¥-AtnBZE
—F--F+-A=+-A (M)
11 May 2018 1 February 2019 to 10 May 2028 242 24 N/A - 780,000 - - - 780,000
“Z-\$nA+-H “E-nF-A-HE% @R
T \fRATA
14 September 2018 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2026 (Note 3) 2 2 N/A — 4,020,000 - - - 4,020,000
“Z-\FnA+RA “E-NENA-BEZTZRE @R
=A=t+-H(K#3)
Dr. Han Qinchun 26 January 2018 26 January 2018 to 25 January 2028 1711 2132 1.77% - 359,400 - - - 359,400
BRERET “Z-\E-fA-+KB ZZ-NE-f-fKRZ
R \E-AZTEE
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John 26 January 2018 26 January 2018 to 25 January 2028 1711 2132 1.771% - 359,400 - - - 359,400
BEALKE “Z-\E-fA-+KXB ZZ-NE-A-fKREZ
R \E-AZTEE
Mr. Han Xiaoping 26 January 2018 26 January 2018 to 25 January 2028 1711 2132 1.771% - 359,400 - - - 359,400
BRETEE “E-\E-A-tR”A ZE-N\E-A-trHEZE
R )\E-AZTEE
Subtotal 1,198,000 16,887,198 18,085,198
s
Other eligible persons 19 January 2017 19 January 2017 to 21 November 2021 1,608 22 18364 11,141,400 - - - — 11,141,400
(Note 3)
EthagRAL ZZ—+E-A+NR —Z—+t5-fthBEZZ=-F+
—A=t—B(f3ts)
26 January 2018 26 January 2019 to 25 January 2028 (Note 3) ~ 1.711 2132 1.779% - 2201799 - - - 22,017,993
“Z-\E-A-+xXB ZE-hNE-A-fixAZ
—Z-\E-A=TEHA(K#*3)
26 January 2018 26 July 2018 to 25 January 2028 1M 2132 1.77% - 233,100 - - - 2,336,100
“Z-\E-A-+xXB ZE-NEtA-fxAZ
“Z-\f-A=+1HR
11 May 2018 1 February 2019 to 10 May 2028 242 24 N/A - 9,360,000 - — (780,000 8,580,000
“Z-\ERA+-8 —E-NE-R-BE-ZT-)N\fE TER
LAt+H
14 September 2018 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2026 (Note 3) 2 2 N/A — 62,625,000 - - — 62,625,000
ZZ-\fhATmA ZZ-NEMA-AEZF=AE TER
ZA=T-B (M)
Subtotal 11,141,400 96,339,093 (780,000) 106,700,493
/J\%f
Total 12,339,400 113,226,291 (780,000) 124,785,691
it
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Notes:

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, adjustments are required for
the exercise price and the number of Shares available for subscription under the
outstanding share options as a result of the Company’s rights issue, with effect
from 22 March 2018. The exercise prices of the share options granted on 19
January 2017 and 26 January 2018 were adjusted to HK$1.8364 per Share and
HK$1.7796 per Share, respectively. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 21 March 2018.

Among these 11,008,998 share options, 5,504,499 share options are beneficially
owned by Mr. Yuen Chi Ping, and the remaining 5,504,499 share options are
held by Dragon Legend Global Limited, which is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr.
Yuen Chi Ping.

These share options granted will be subject to vesting in three tranches within
three years. The vesting of share options is based on the fulfiment of certain
performance targets of the Group, including but not limited to the financial
performance of the Group as well as the grantee’s individual performance.

During the Reporting Period, the fair value of share options granted to the
Directors and other eligible persons was HK$104,468,000 (equivalent to
RMB88,338,000), and recognised as administrative expense was
HK$12,308,000 (equivalent to RMB10,407,000).

Report of Directors (continued)

SSBEWRS @

BIEBRESZOER ARAR B #ITH
BT EERARESRTERRERE
BHe B BEHAZ a-T—N\F=A=
+ZBARER DR ZE—+F—A+ A
BN -ZZ—NF—A-+ HAKRLEHERKR
T EEEAEASETR1.83648 T RER
1779678 T - BEAF B 2B ARARIBHAS
E-NEFE=ZA=-+—HHAE -

% 11,008,998 % f& X 1 # -+ 5,504,499 % & AR
HARETFEEEREES - M3 INE5504,499
1% B A% 7 F Dragon Legend Global Limited# &
RATHREFALEER2EAHE -

ZERHZBRESRIFHRRI=ZHES -
BRENGBEDANEXNEHEAEENE TR
BREE BEEITRARAEENPBRE
AR AEANBARE -

RAFZEHRHE RTESREMAERAL
Y B8 A% 4 2 F1E /& 104,468,00078 7T (FE & A
R #88,338,0007T) * MR AT X &) K
7 H) R 7 E 512,308,000 7T (F & R A R
10,407,0007T) °

BERNEBERERAMRAR  FiK 2018

55



Report of Directors (continued)

ESSEHRS@

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors or
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including any interests which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

() Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of

ESRIFETBRAEREL
=) B 48 B % B /Y B% 49~ 48 FA Bx
g&ﬁ#*ﬁﬁﬂ@ﬂﬁ&"'

RZE-NFE+ZR=+—HB EFFHERQ
AIEETBABR AR E S E M HEEE
(EERBRBEDESNER 75 LB EEH
((BERMEMREG ) FEXVER) &y - 8RR
M REFTEERIEESF KRBT GO EXVEH
FTRDMAMGRNRA LB XM ER R
KE (BREREES RS GROHEREGXRE
ERRAFHE M EM ) RIEFEF LY
B 6 55 362 16 57 TE 78 B R 10 A% 16 P b B T i
MR s MO B - SRR b AR B MY 8%+ AT #R
METETAEELETESF X HNRES A
(BREFADREAME AR A KE RPN
BmEARWT

() RA2T KD RHERRKRDH

Company i
Number of
Shares/ Approximate
underlying Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held shareholding
skt
EEnE B EnitE HERDEE REBNTIL
Mr. Wei Shaojun Founder of a discretionary trust® 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
BOERE —IEHBEEEHRK LA
Interest of controlled corporations® 433,154,756(L) 29.18%
FFr 428 ) 5 B A 2w @
Total 856,027,268(L) 57.66%
it
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Number of
Shares/ Approximate
underlying Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held shareholding
g3 s
EEpE B REmtE HERDEE REMAB L
Mr. Wei Qiang Beneficiary of a discretionary trust® 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
ok —HERNEEENEE A
Dr. Liu Zhengang Beneficial owner® 5,998,000(L) 0.40%
2z M 18 EmERAY
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping Beneficial owner® 71,597,830(L) 4.82%
REFERE EREEAC
Interest of controlled corporation® 5,504,499(L) 0.37%
Fr 2 il 5 B g 25 ©
Total 77,102,329(L) 5.19%
st
Mr. Han Xiaoping Beneficial owner® 359,400(L) 0.02%
BRREET R EREBAC
Dr. Han Qinchun Beneficial owner?” 359,400(L) 0.02%
BREB T ERnfEBE A
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John Beneficial owner(® 359,400(L) 0.02%
=ERALE EmEARAC
Notes: B 5T
1. King River Developments Limited is deemed to be interested in 1. King River Developments Limited 4 1% 4 i& 1B &
422,872,512 Shares through its control over Longevity Investment 7 Longevity Investment Holding Limited &) 5l
Holding Limited and BNP Paribas Singapore Trust Corporation Limited is 7 422,872,51208 IR 19 ¥ B #E &= - & BNP
deemed to be interested in 422,872,512 Shares through its control over Paribas Singapore Trust Corporation Limited 1% 1%
King River Developments Limited, and Mr. Wei Shaojun is deemed to be % % B E A King River Developments Limited )
interested in 422,872,512 Shares as a founder of the discretionary trust. = E R 422,872,512 B R ER R T
The details of which are set out as follows: BOBFEEERBBEIEKRIA)ER AR
422,872 512K &t R E B iR - BB W
T
Direct Number of
Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling shareholder % control  interest Shares
SEHEEER ERRREB ERESLE HEER R&OHE
King River Developments Limited BNP Paribas Singapore Trust Corporation Limited 100.00 N 422,872,512(L)
B
Longevity Investment Holding Limited King River Developments Limited 100.00 Y 422,872,512(L)
=
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Such 419,954,756 Shares are beneficially owned by Lightway Power
Holdings Limited, which was incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
Lightway Power Holdings Limited was wholly-owned by Global Capital
Alliance Limited, which was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Wei Shaojun. In addition, 13,200,000
Shares are beneficially owned by Harvest Oak Holdings Limited, which
was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and directly and wholly-
owned by Mr. Wei Shaojun. Mr. Wei Shaojun is deemed to be interested
in 433,154,756 Shares through its controlled corporations.

Mr. Wei Qiang is deemed to be interested in 422,872,512 Shares as a
beneficiary of a trust.

Dr. Liu Zhengang is interested in 5,998,000 share options of the
Company.

Mr. Yuen Chi Ping is interested in 66,093,331 Shares and 11,008,998
share options. Among these 11,008,998 share options, 5,504,499 share
options are beneficially owned by Mr. Yuen Chi Ping and the remaining
5,504,499 share options are beneficially held by Dragon Legend Global
Limited, which is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Yuen Chi Ping.
Therefore, Mr. Yuen Chi Ping is deemed to be interested in such share
options.

Mr. Han Xiaoping is interested in 359,400 share options of the Company.
Dr. Han Qinchun is interested in 359,400 share options of the Company.
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John is interested in 359,400 share options of the

Company.

The letter “L” denotes the long position in Shares.
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(ii) Interest in the Shares of Associated
Corporations
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(i) RAEBEERADER

Approximate

Capacity/Nature Number of percentage of
Name of Director = Name of associated corporation of interest Shares held shareholding
EEnR HBEE S B/ HattE FEROGHEE RESNBEDL
Mr. Wei Shaojun Longevity Investment Holding Limited  Beneficial owner 1(L) 100%
BOERAE EmEE A
Mr. Wei Shaojun Harvest Oak Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 1L 100%
BOERAE Ema A
Mr. Wei Shaojun Lightway Power Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 1L 100%
BROBRE EmEAA

Note: The letter “L” denotes the long position in Shares.

Save as disclosed above and save for the share options as set out under the
section headed “Share Option Scheme”, as at 31 December 2018, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
position in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
would be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONSOF THE X ERRREMA TR F &
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS ANDOTHER TR K RHEEBEH D E S
PERSONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING BEaRRE

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors, the folowing HR—-—Z—N\E+-_B=+—H8 sEZEFH4 -

persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company as disclosed T3 A+ GEENFAIEEN ARG EFHEE

above) had interests or short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which 17k A B) RIR O S HE RO R EBIBRE B 5

would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the Hﬂ EIE B EXVERE2 KR35 2B H I S8 [A) AN

provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, which were recorded R Al R X IE B M F AR - IR EH

in the register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO: S NREEENEBIKLHENRN ARG BFEN
BEaMeERsAR

(i) Long Position in the Shares and underlying () RBRAREBERONEFES

Shares
Number of
Shares/ Approximate
Name of Substantial underlying percentage of
Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held shareholding
RIS,
FERRER B, EmitE HEROHE REBNEDL
Longevity Investment Holding Beneficial owner!” 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
Limited
EmERAAY
BNP Paribas Singapore Trust Trustee! 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
Corporation Limited
ZFEAD
King River Developments Limited  Interest of controlled corporation 422,872,512(L) 28.48%
AR R
Lightway Power Holdings Limited ~ Beneficial owner® 419,954,756(L) 28.29%
EmEA AP
Global Capital Alliance Limited Interest of controlled corporation® 419,954,756(L) 28.29%
REGEEERP
China Create Capital Limited Beneficial owner 160,090,000(L) 10.78%
ExmlEBA
Haitong International Financial Beneficial owner 100,000,000(L) 6.74%
Solutions Limited
BEEREERBEERAA EmEBA
Haitong International Holdings Interest of controlled corporation 100,000,000(L) 6.74%
Limited
BB ZERERA A REHEEER
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Number of
Shares/ Approximate
Name of Substantial underlying percentage of
Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held shareholding
RS,
FTERRER B, EmitE HERHOEE REBNEIL
Haitong International Securities Interest of controlled corporation 100,000,000(L) 6.74%
Group Limited
BBEREAFAEEERQF] R HEE R
Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled corporation 100,000,000(L) 6.74%
BBEEFRHBERRA X HLEEE R
China Ruifeng Renewable Energy  Beneficial owner® 88,800,000(L) 5.98%

Holdings Limited

[k

FRIGENERIERERAT BEmERAC

Notes: M -

1. King River Developments Limited is deemed to be interested in 1. King River Developments Limited # % &
422,872,512 Shares through its control over Longevity Investment # @ E 5 Longevity Investment Holding
Holding Limited and BNP Paribas Singapore Trust Corporation Limited is Limited 7 122 Il 4 7 422,872,512 1% &% {5
deemed to be interested in 422,872,512 Shares through its control over Fh % B # % & BNP Paribas Singapore
King River Developments Limited, and Mr. Wei Shaojun is deemed to be Trust Corporation Limited # 4% /4 5 38 H i
interested in 422,872,512 Shares as a founder of the discretionary trust. King River Developments Limited FY 12 | 4

422,872,512 IR H HHE B A
LPEEEWEABBERKRLA)HER
R 422,872,512 R IR D R HE A A2 -

2. Such 419,954,756 Shares are beneficially owned by Lightway Power 2. Z 5419954756 B 1 B £ B 2 B

Holdings Limited, which was incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
Lightway Power Holdings Limited was wholly-owned by Global Capital
Alliance Limited, which was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Wei Shaojun. In addition, 13,200,000
Shares are beneficially owned by Harvest Oak Holdings Limited, which
was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and directly and wholly-
owned by Mr. Wei Shaojun. Mr. Wei Shaojun is deemed to be interested

in 433,154,756 Shares of controlled corporation.

B & it Ak 32 Z Lightway Power Holdings
Limited ® #z= ## A ° Lightway Power
Holdings Limited £5 7 1 & & % &% & =1 fif
RITHBLELLEEE2ERER Y
Global Capital Alliance Limited & & # & °
It A+ 13,200,000 A% A% 15 1 £ 2 & B %
HEeEaMi T taRIELEEESD
& i 5 Z Harvest Oak Holdings Limited &
HEB - BRLOBAEWRABBEME
1 5% B 7 433,154,756 B% A% 15 # & &

5o
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Report of Directors (continued)
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3. On 7 November 2018, the Company, Longe International Investment
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (as the purchaser),
China Ruifeng Renewable Energy Holdings Limited (as the vendor) and
Suzlon Energy (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (as the warrantor) entered into the Sale
and Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which, the purchaser agreed to
acquire and the vendor agreed to sell, the target company at
HK$195,360,000, which is to be satisfied by the issuance of the
convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$195,360,000 by the
Company, with the conversion price of HK$2.2 per conversion share. The
Sale and Purchase Agreement has lapsed as the conditions precedent of
acquisition have not been fulfiled on or before 10 January 2019. For
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 7
November 2018, 9 November 2018, 20 November 2018, 7 December
2018 and 10 January 2019.

4, The letter “L” denotes the long position in Shares.

Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2018, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which would be required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not involved in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of material
importance is known to the Directors to be pending or threatened against the
Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s articles of association provide that each Director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in
relation thereto. In addition, the Company has arranged appropriate directors’
and officers’ liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the
Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”), comprising
the three independent non-executive Directors, has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
together with the management and the external auditor of the Company. The
Audit Committee is of the opinion that such statements have complied with
the applicable accounting standards, and the disclosures required by the
Stock Exchange and other relevant legal requirements, and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital,
being the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by the
Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules, are held by the public
at all times during the Reporting Period and as of the date of this annual
report.

Report of Directors (continued)
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period prepared in
accordance with IFRS were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall
retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming
Meeting of the Company.

By Order of the Board

Wei Qiang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hebei Province, the PRC, 29 March 2019
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Qiang, aged 36, joined the Company as an executive Director, the
chief executive officer of the Company and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 11 November 2015. On 29 June 2017, Mr. Wei Qiang was
appointed as the chairman of the Board and chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Board. Mr. Wei Qiang has around 11 years of work and
management experiences in the clean energy industry. Mr. Wei Qiang is the
founder and controlling shareholder of Lightway Green Energy, which mainly
engage in businesses of production and sales of photovoltaic components
and the development, construction and operation of solar power plants. Mr.
Wei Qiang has also been serving as a director of a rural bank initiated by
Chengdu Rural Commercial Bank since 2013. On August 2018, Mr. Wei
Qiang was appointed as the president of Longjitahe Holding Group and head
of the real estate business division of Longjitaihe Property. From 2003 to
2006, Mr. Wei Qiang studied at the University of Auckland in New Zealand
majoring in Finance and from 2007 to 2009, studied business administration
and information strategies at Tsinghua University. Mr. Wei Qiang is the son of
Mr. Wei Shaojun, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and the
non-executive Director.
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Mr. Yuen Chi Ping, aged 40, joined the Company as an executive Director,
the vice-chairman of the Board and the co-chief executive officer of the
Company on 27 April 2018. Mr. Yuen is primarily responsible for the Group’s
strategic development; and overseeing and supervising the capital market
activities, overseas investment and financing, investor relations and risk
management of the Group. Mr. Yuen is a qualified lawyer in both Hong Kong
and England and Wales. Mr. Yuen has over 12 years of experience practicing
as a lawyer in the PRC and Hong Kong, and has extensive experience in
corporate law, China-related public and private mergers and acquisitions, and
capital market transactions. Mr. Yuen obtained a bachelor’s degree in laws in
2001 and completed the PCLL programme in 2002 in the University of Hong
Kong, then undertook his traineeship and worked as a lawyer in various
leading international law firms. He worked as a special counsel in the
Shanghai office of Baker & McKenzie from 2007 to 2014, responsible for the
firm’s securities practice in Shanghai. Mr. Yuen has been a non-executive
director of Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd. (stock code: 6893)
since July 2016; the chief executive officer and an executive director of
Applied Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 519) since September
2016; a non-executive director of China High Speed Transmission Equipment
Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 658) since December 2016 and an Independent
non-executive director of Sun Cheong Creative Development Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1781) since August 2018. Mr. Yuen has also been a
director of Pok Oi Hospital (a charity organisation) since April 2017. Mr. Yuen
was the chief operation officer of Fullshare Holdings Limited (stock code: 607)
from October 2014 to March 2018.

Dr. Liu Zhengang, aged 44, on 29 June 2017, Dr. Liu was appointed as an
executive Director. Dr. Liu joined the Company as the operations vice
president in November 2015. He is primarily responsible for business plans,
market research, technology development and resource-pooling of the
Company’s smart energy business. Dr. Liu has about 15 years of technical
research and management experience in the photovoltaic and clean energy
industry. Dr. Liu joined Lightway Green Energy in June 2012 and was
appointed as vice president of operations. From 2008 to 2012, Dr. Liu
worked at the Institute of Electrical Engineering Chinese Academy of Science
(R RIBE T T F) as a deputy research associate in solar cell technology. From
2005 to 2008, he worked as a senior engineer at Haier Group Central
Research Institute (&% & L55FT) in Qingdao, China. From 1998 to
2000, Dr. Liu studied a master course in Organic Chemistry at the Shandong
University, and began his doctorate in advance in 2000. Dr. Liu obtained his
doctorate in Inorganic Chemistry in 2003. From 2003 to 2005, Dr. Liu began
researching at the School of Physics of Peking University (1t 5 A2 #)18 £257)
as a postgraduate doctor.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wei Shaojun, aged 55 joined the Company as the chairman, an
executive Director, chief executive officer and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee in January 2015. Mr. Wei resigned as chief executive officer on 11
November 2015. On 29 June 2017, Mr. Wei resigned as the chairman of the
Board and chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Board and was re-
designated as a non-executive Director. Mr. Wei is the founder, the controlling
shareholder and the chairman of Longjitaihe Industrial (together with its
subsidiaries collectively, the “Longjitaihe Group”) which is engaged in
integrated diversified industries including real estate development, commercial
operations and new energy and Mr. Wei has more than 22 years of
experiences in real property development business operation, business
management, etc. Mr. Wei is a National Model Worker, and Peking University
Post EMBA. Mr. Wei is currently serving as a director and the chairman of the
board of Jiangsu Tongda Technology Co., Ltd. (Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code: 002576). Mr. Wei is the father of Mr. Wei Qiang, the executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Han Qinchun, aged 60, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee in February 2015. Dr. Han had resigned as the
member of the Nomination Committee, and was appointed as the chairman
of the remuneration committee on 28 June 2016. Dr. Han is currently the
president of Hong Kong Internation Financial Assets Market Limited. Dr. Han
obtained a Doctorate degree in philosophy in urban economics and
management from The University of Hong Kong in 1998. He also obtained a
bachelor’s degree from Xi'an University of Architecture and Technology in
1982. He has rich experience in the PRC property sector, financial
investment, equity capital market and listed companies’ management. He
had worked in securities and investment in Bank of China International
Holdings Limited, Agricultural Bank of China Securities Limited (now known
as Agricultural Bank of China International Holdings Limited) and Everbright
Securities Company (Hong Kong) Limited. Dr. Han was the director of Real
Estate Research Centre of Peking University HSBC Business School from
October 2011 to April 2015. He served as the vice-chairman and co-
president of Hong Long Holdings Limited (now known as Sun Century Group
Limited) from early 2006 to January 2010, a listed company on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1383). Dr. Han has also been an independent non-
executive director of Lingbao Gold Company Ltd., a listed company on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3330) since March 2012.

SSEkSHREEE®

FHITES

ROERE 655 R_ZE-HF—AMAR
RAEEEZE HTESF THRERLERZ
BgXR -BA4ER_ZT—AF+—A+—
BB ETRER R-ZFE—LtF AT
B RELBIEFSIFREFTEREZR
BEeXR UHRERFATEF -RELRE
EZFNEXCERANBRARGHIIEERN
FE)D (A ZXEAFHEER BELENR
MERES THEENEE)MAEIBA  E&K
BREREER URFHEREEE ©XE
BEFERBFEARFNLER BREERD
B EeE LI RAREF BB EFKEKEMBA
RAELBER/IHBEHNIHMERNERR A
(FRINEFZF P Bfn K% 002576) E F
REER - REERRTEZERARATHK
HEVRR AR R -

BIYFHTES

BREEELT 60 R-ZT—AE-AMAKR
AR EABUFRTESE EZXZEECKE
MEREBEREB - BHIRN T —XNFA
AZ+ N\ABEARGBIREEZEESEE I
BEZARAFMEESTHFE BT R AES
FERARBR BIEITR - IAN\FESR
BEABEMEBEMNEBEEEF L2 IR
—NMNZFEALEERNFAREB LB
WETEEWESAL 2R ERE KEE
ATEHEMETAGEE I EALELR - &
EAEFREBEERERAR - BIRESFH
RARGREBRBIERARAR)  KAEFH
(BEB)BRATINEZFHFMNKTETIE - BIFEL
R-E——F+AE_E—HFMWAEEL
FAZELYEEREHWEMREFLET B
—TTEARFEENE_T-TFE—F SIH
AT ETRAREEERAR AR (BH KR :
1383) (ABAGHLEEBR AR EERE K
GERY - BETBE T -——_F=AENA
BMXMERLETARBEESRHBER DA
(B 5% : 3330) 2 B IEHITE S -

BESNSESERERERAT &3k 2018

67



68

Directors and Senior Management continued)

ESERSHEERE @

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John, aged 52, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee, a
member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee on
16 October 2015. Mr. John Wong Yik Chung is a qualified accountant and
has over 29 years of experience in auditing and corporate finance work, with
extensive exposure to the business enterprises in the PRC. He is the founder
of Vantage Group and TMF China, which provide professional outsourcing
solutions to companies investing in the PRC and targeting at international
customers. Mr. Wong graduated from the University of Melbourne. He is a
fellow member of each of the Australian Society of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
also obtained a PRC Certificate of Independent Directorship in 2002. Over the
past three years, he served as independent non-executive directors for the
following companies listed on (i) the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, namely Yang
Guang Co., Ltd. (stock code: 000608) and (ii) the Stock Exchange, namely
KEE Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2011) and Ascent International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 264). He is currently serving as independent
non-executive directors for the following companies which are listed on the
Stock Exchange, namely EcoGreen International Group Limited (stock code:
2341), Perfect Optronics Limited (stock code: 8311), and Beijing Capital Land
Ltd. (stock code: 2868).
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Han Xiaoping, aged 61, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee on 28 June 2016. He worked for the Civil Aviation Administration
of China (CAAC) from 1985 to 1988. From 1989 to 1992, he served as the
vice president for the Saturn Computer System Co. Ltd. He joined Beijing
Falcon Investment Co. Ltd. in 1993 and served as its managing director since
then. He is a committee member of the new technology committee under the
Thermoelectric Committee of Chinese Society for Electrical Engineering (CSEE)
since 1995. He established China Energy Net in 2000 and served as its chief
information officer since then, and he also serves as the chief writer of Energy
Review, Chief Researcher of China Energy Net Research Center. He currently
serves as the deputy director of Financial Enterprises Investment Committee
of Chinese Enterprises Investment Association, Deputy Secretary of China
Venture Capital Association (CVCA), Expert at the Policies & Regulations
Department of National Energy Administration, deputy director and secretary-
general of China Energy Research Society Distributed Energy Professional
Committee, committee member of Industrial Electric Demand Side
Management Expert Advisory Committee under China Electricity Council (CEC),
Visiting Professor of North China Electrical Power University, Expert of China
Smart City Inter-department coordination office, and the executive director of
China Blockchain Innovation and Application Alliance. Mr. Han Xiaoping
awarded as “Top 10 Advanced People of 2010 Energy-saving China”, and “Ten
Years Outstanding Contribution of China Distributed Energy”. Mr. Han
Xiaoping has been an independent non-executive director of Beijing Jingneng
Clean Energy Co., Limited, a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 579) since October 2014. Mr. Han Xiaoping has also
been an independent non-executive director of Tianjin Tianbao Energy Co.,
Ltd., a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1671) since April 2018.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

At the date of this report, the senior management of the Group comprises the
executive Directors above, namely, Mr. Wei Qiang, Mr. Yuen Chi Ping, Dr. Liu
Zhengang and Mr. Wang Yong. The biography of Mr. Wang Yong is set out
below.

Mr. Wang Yong, aged 41, joined the Company as the development vice
president in November 2015. He is primarily responsible for the development
and management of the distributed integrated energy business of the Group.
Mr. Wang has over 11 years of management experience in clean energy
industry. Mr. Wang joined Lightway Green Energy in January 2013 as the
general manager for China. From 2010 to 2012, Mr. Wang served as the
deputy general manager of product marketing at Xie Xin Solar System
Company Limited in Nanjing (122 Y¢ X 28 B R A &). From 2007 to 2010, he
served as the project director of a new energy company at ET Solar Energy
Corporation (2%t EEE) in Nanjing. From 2005 to 2007, he served as
deputy general manager of Jiangsu Hui Xin Credit Consulting Co., Ltd. (T#&k
FEEEAEHNBRAT) in Nanjing. Mr. Wang graduated from Southeast
University in 2000 in Computer and Applications. Mr. Wang is currently
studying in EMBA, School of Economics and Management, Tsinghua
University.

Details of the interests of the Directors in the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS”
under the “Report of the Directors”.
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Corporate Governance Repor't

[FEEBHRS

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in this
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2018.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has complied with the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during the Reporting Period, except for code provision A.2.1 relating to
the role of chairman and chief executive officer. Details of such deviation and
explanation are set out on the section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” below.

The Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code. Set out below is detailed
discussion of the corporate governance practices adopted and observed by
the Company for the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board currently consists of seven Directors with a combination of three
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors. During the Reporting Period and currently, the
composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Qiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (Vice-chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 27 April 2018)

Dr. Liu Zhengang

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wei Shaojun

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Han Qinchun

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

Mr. Han Xiaoping
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Cor gorate Governance Report (continued)

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report. Save as disclosed herein, the
Directors do not have any other relationships with any Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the
Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Functions of the Board

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and the Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the long term
success of the Group by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs and
overseeing the achievement of strategic plans to enhance Shareholders’
value. The Directors are aware of their duties to act in good faith and
expected to make decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The principal functions of the Board are to:

i) convene general meetings and report the Board’s work at general
meetings;

(i) implement the resolutions passed by the Shareholders in general
meetings;

(i) ~ consider and approve strategies, financial objectives, annual budget,
investment proposals of the Group;

(iv)  approve and authorise material transactions, including acquisition,
investment, disposal of assets (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests);

(v)  formulate the proposals for profit distributions;

(vi)  assume the responsibilities of corporate governance of the Group;

(vi)  establish and review the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems through the Audit Committee; and

(viii) exercise other powers, functions and duties conferred by the
Shareholders in general meetings.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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Corporate Governance Report continued)

The senior management is delegated with the authority and responsibilities by
the Board for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management. The Board meets regularly to
review the financial and operating performance of the Company, and
considers and approves the overall strategies and policies of the Company.

All Directors have separate access to the management and are provided with
full and timely information about the conduct of the business and operation of
the Group. A monthly report containing significant events and latest
development of the Group was provided to all Directors. Upon request by the
Board, independent professional advice will be available to the Directors to
facilitate the decision-making process.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has regularly reviewed the
contributions from the Directors and confirmed that they have spent sufficient
time performing their responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Wei Qiang, an executive Director, is both the co-chief executive officer
and the chairman of the Board. Mr. Yuen Chi Ping, an executive Director, is
both the vice-chairman of the Board and co-chief executive officer. According
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Board is of the opinion that, with the Company now
being at a stage of rapid development, the current structure could improve
the Company’s effectiveness and efficiency in reaching its business goals.
The Board also believes that this arrangement will not be detrimental to the
balance of power and authority between the chairman and the chief executive
officer, while a higher ratio of non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) will enable the Board to make unbiased judgments
more effectively.
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Co%gorate(Bovernance Report (continued)

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. After making specific enquiry, all of the Directors who held their
office during the Reporting Period have confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
Reporting Period.

The Company has also adopted its own code of conduct regarding
employees’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
standard set out in the Model Code for the compliance by its relevant
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of the
Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and code of conduct applicable to employees and
Directors, reviewing and monitoring training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management and the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
as well as reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Reporting Period, the Board considered the following corporate
governance matters:

— review of the compliance with the CG Code; and

—  review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group through the Audit Committee.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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Corporate Governance Report continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors. The
Board considers that all independent non-executive Directors have
appropriate and sufficient industry, professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise to carry out their duties so as to
protect the interests of Shareholders. Under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
listed issuers are required to appoint independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the Board. The Company has three
independent non-executive Directors currently representing more than one-
third of the Board and therefore, the Company has complied with Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules.

Prior to their respective appointment, each of the independent non-executive
Directors has submitted a written statement to the Stock Exchange
confirming their independence and has undertaken to inform the Stock
Exchange as soon as practicable if there is any subsequent change of
circumstances which may affect their independence. The Company has also
received a written confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in respect of their independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are being considered to be independent by reference to the factors
stated in the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Wei Qiang, chairman of the Board, held a
meeting with the non-executive Director (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the executive Directors’ presence on 29 March 2018.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a
wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company.

As regards the CG code provision requiring directors to disclose the number
and nature of the offices held in public companies and organisations and
other significant commitments as well as their identity and the time involved to
the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to the
Company in a timely manner.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE
DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has been appointed for a specific term of 3 years,
subject to the provisions on Directors’ retirement as set out in the Articles of
Association and none of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation). All Directors appointed by the Board
shall hold office only until the next general meeting of the Company (in the
case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next annual general meeting of the
Company (in the case of an addition to the Board), and every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every 3 years.

Pursuant to the article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

Mr. Wei Qiang, Mr. Han Xiaoping and Dr. Liu Zhengang will retire from office
as Directors at the forthcoming Meeting, and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) is responsible
for reviewing the Board composition and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-election of Directors and succession planning
for Directors. The Company adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which can be downloaded from the Company’s website. A summary
of the Nomination Policy is set out below:

1. Purpose

To ensure that Board members have the skills, experiences and diverse
perspectives needed by the Company’s business.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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Corporate Governance Report continued)

Selection Principle
The factors listed below would be used as reference by the Nomination
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

7

The Company’s development strategy needs;

Reputation for integrity;

Achievements and experiences in the Company’s major
business;

Time devotion and the representation of relevant beneficial
parties;

Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age
(has to be aged 18 or older), cultural and educational
background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge and
management experiences;

Directorship in other public companies and corporate governance
structures of those companies, etc; and

Independence (for independent non-executive Director).

These factors are for references only and excluded to be exhaustive
and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to
nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Nomination Procedure

3.1

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting
of the Nomination Committee and invite nominations of
candidates from Board members if any, for consideration by the
Nomination Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not
nominated by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall
propose candidates for the Board’s consideration and approval.
For proposing candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting of the Company, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation.
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3.3 The nominated candidate(s) shall not assume that he/she has

4.

been

proposed by the Board to stand for election at the general

meeting of the Company until a circular to the Shareholders is
issued.

In order to provide information of the candidate(s) nominated by
the Board stand for election at general meeting of the Company,
the Company will issue a circular to the Shareholders stating the
candidate’s name, resume (including qualifications and relevant
experiences), proposed remuneration, and other information
required in accordance with applicable law, rules and regulation.

For independent non-executive Director, in addition to the
information listed in clause 3.4 above, the followings should also
be specified in the Shareholders’ circular:

(1)

Process used to identify the individual, reason why the
Board considers that individual should be elected, and
reason why the Board considers that individual is
independent;

If the nominated independent non-executive Director will
serve as a Director for the seventh (or more) public listed
companies, the reason why the Board believes this
individual can still devote enough time to fulfil his/her
director’s responsibilities;

Views and perspectives, skills and experiences that
individual can bring to the Board;

How will this individual promote diversity of the Board; and

Other contents that applicable laws, regulations, listing
rules and regulatory bodies required.

Responsibility

The ultimate responsibility for selecting and appointing Directors is
shared by all Directors of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report continued)

Monitoring and Reviewing

5.1 The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
composition of the Board and succession plan of the Board, and
conduct a review annually.

5.2 The Nomination Committee should regularly monitor and review
formal procedures for the Nomination Policy to ensure that the
Nomination Policy is tailored to the needs of the Company and
reflects current regulatory requirement and good governance
practices.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES

(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 22 November 2011. The
Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely Mr.
Wong Yik Chung, John (Chairman), Dr. Han Qinchun and Mr. Han
Xiaoping, all of the members are independent non-executive Directors.
The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year with the
Company’s external auditors regarding the review of the Company’s
financial report and accounts.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of
auditor, review the financial statements, reports and accounts, and
review and monitor the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by the
Board are in line with the provisions of the CG Code and are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has held 2 meetings
and mainly fulfilled the following responsibilities:

—  reviewing the unaudited interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2018 and the audited annual results for the year ended
31 December 2017, discussing the interim results and annual
results with external auditors (in the absence of the management
of the Company), and forming the opinion that the relevant
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards and regulation, and that
adequate disclosures have been made;
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—  reviewing and assessing the independence of external auditors,
and making recommendations on the change and appointment
of external auditors; and

— assisting the Board in fulfilling the responsibilities for maintaining
effective risk management and internal control systems.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid or payable to the
Company’s independent auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect
of its audit and non-audit services were as follows:
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Type of Services RMB’000
R &3 ARET R
Audit services for 2018 —E - \FZERE 2,500
Non-audit services for 2018 ZE - N\FRIEZERE -
Total st 2,500

The statement of the Company’s independent auditor regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Reporting Period is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 November 2011.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely Dr.
Han Qinchun (Chairman), Mr. Wei Qiang and Mr. Wong Yik Chung,
John, the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors
and one of the members is an executive Director.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year to
discuss remuneration related matters. No Director is allowed to be
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee adopted
by the Board are in line with the provisions of the CG Code and are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee has held 3
meetings, passed two written resolutions and mainly fulfiled the
following responsibilities:

—  reviewing the remuneration policies of the Group for 2018 and
reviewing the remuneration package for executive Directors and
the senior management personnel;

—  discussing the Company’s plan to grant share options of 2018
and making recommendations to the Board; and

—  discussing the remuneration for the appointment of Mr. Yuen Chi
Ping as an executive Director, vice-chairman of the Board and
the co-chief executive officer, and reviewing and making
recommendations regarding the terms of Mr. Yuen Chi Ping’s
service contract.

For the Reporting Period, remuneration of the senior management of
the Company (whose biographies are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report), other than
Directors as disclosed in note 39 to the audited consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, is within the following band for each
person:

Remuneration Band

FoNEE
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Number of Individuals

AH

HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000

1,000,000% 7T % 2,000,000 % 7T

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 November 2011.
The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Wei
Qiang (Chairman), Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John and Mr. Han Xiaoping,
the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors and one
of the members is an executive Director.

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies
on the Board and senior management and to ensure that the
candidates to be nominated as Directors are experienced, high calibre
individuals.
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The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once every year for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
other related matters. In reviewing and recommending the appointment
of new Directors, the Nomination Committee would seek to identify the
competencies required to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities.
The resume or documents of the nominee or candidate will be given to
the Nomination Committee for consideration.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee adopted
by the Board are in line with the provisions of the CG Code and are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has held 1
meeting, passed one written resolution, and mainly fulfilled the following
responsibilities:

—  reviewing the structure, composition and the Board diversity
policy;

— making recommendations regarding the re-election of retiring
Directors at the 2018 annual general meeting;

— nominating candidate for executive Director;

— assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

—  reviewing and recommending the appointment of Mr Yuen Chi
Ping as executive Director, vice-chairman of the Board and co-
chief executive officer, and reviewing and making
recommendations regarding his service contract.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”)
adopted aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. A
summary of the Diversity Policy is set out below:

1. Selection Criteria
Selection will be based on a range of diversity, including but not limited
to gender, age (has to be aged 18 or older), cultural and educational
background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge and
management experiences. When appointing Board members, the
principle is to comply with Company’s development, and the benefit of
diversity of Board members should also fully taken into account.

2. Measurable Objectives
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge
and management experiences. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

3. Monitoring and Reporting
The Nomination Committee will report composition of the Board on
diversification prospect (including gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge and
management experiences) in the “Corporate Governance Report” and
monitor implementation of the Diversity Policy.

4. Review of the Diversity Policy
The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy in a timely
manner to ensure that the Diversity Policy is effective. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any amendments that need to be made and
then propose amendments to the Board for approval.
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5. Disclosure of the Diversity Policy
The Diversity Policy is posted on the website of the Company for public
review.

The summary of the Diversity Policy and measurable objectives and
compliance schedules established to implement the Diversity Policy will
be disclosed annually in the Corporate Governance Report.

In reviewing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee shall
give adequate consideration to the Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee believes that the current composition of the Board is
balanced and diversified with the high-calibre members from different
cultural backgrounds and possessing professional expertise of various
industries, which indicates that the Diversity Policy has been well
implemented.

BOARD MEETING AND ATTENDANCE
RECORD

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly, at
least four times a year, and more frequently as the needs of the business
demand. The Directors can attend meetings in person or by means of such
telephone, electronic or other communication facilities so as to permit all
persons participating in the meeting to communicate with each other
simultaneously and instantaneously, and participation in such meeting shall
constitute presence in person at such meetings in accordance with article
133 of the Articles of Association.

The Board and Committees’ meeting schedule and the agenda of each
meeting are made available to Directors in advance. Notices of regular Board
meetings were served to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings.
For all other Board and Committees’ meetings, reasonable notices were
given. Papers for Board meetings or Committees’ meetings together with all
relevant information are sent to all Directors or Committee members at least 3
days before each meeting to enable them to make informed decisions with
adequate data.

All Directors will also be provided with sufficient resources to perform their
duties, and upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense. All minutes of Board meetings will be recorded in
sufficient detail, including matters considered and decisions reached by the
Board.
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Meetings held and Attendance ERTHEERERE

The Board held 12 Board meetings during the Reporting Period. The A AHEHE EF@RTTNRAEETS @
composition of the Board and the Committees, the attendance records of the % - ZEE @ R EE @AM R AR E BB E
Directors at the Board meetings, committees meetings and general meetings E=@ @3 ZTEee@ZhREAENESHE
during the Reporting Period are set out below: JEASE M

Meetings attended/held

HE BITNEE
Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual Extraordinary
Board Committee Committee Committee general general
Name of Directors meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
EEg EREZEE FMESE REZEEE RREF
EEnA 25 28R 25 25 X8 BRREBIKE
Executive Directors #1TE %
Mr. Wei Qiang Rg s (EE#
(Chairman and TTIAREL)
Chief Executive
Officer) 10/12  N/A RN A 3/3 1/1 1M 1/1
Mr. Yuen ChiPing =& T4
(Vice-Chairman and (3 & J& 3 B &
Co-Chief Executive — 7TIB 44 %)
Officer) (appointed (R =F— /1
on 27 April 2018) mA—-—++H
EZT) 10/10  N/A TN@E N/ATER  NATEA 11 1/1
Dr. Liu Zhengang 20 ¥ I8 £ 12/12  N/A TN E N/ATEA NATES 11 1M
Non-executive FHITES
Director
Mr. Wei Shaojun MOELE 10/12  N/A TN@EH N/ATEA  NATEA 11 11
Independent BIYFHITES
Non-executive
Directors
Dr. Han Qinchun BREML 12/12 2/2 3/3 N/ATRER 1/1 1/1
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, & & f 584
John 12/12 2/2 3/3 11 11 11
Mr. Han Xiaoping BET A 12/12 2/2 N/A i A 11 11 11
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Upon their appointment, Directors are advised on the legal and other duties
and obligations they have as directors of a listed company. Each newly
appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction package designed to
enhance his/her knowledge and understanding of the Group’s culture and
operations. Discussion sessions with key management personnel are also
held.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, we have arranged trainings which
were presented by professional firms to the Directors. Through the course of
their directorship, the joint company secretaries of the Company also from
time to time updated and provided written training material relating to the
roles, functions and duties of a director and all the aforesaid Directors studied
such materials. All Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expense.

We have maintained record of the continuous professional development
participated by the Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
current Directors received the following training with an emphasis on the role,
functions and responsibilities of directors of listed companies through
attending briefings , seminars and reading materials:

AREIBGRERRER

EEERZOERBESAER LT RATESMN
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R ©
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EREFTEEHHE ARAANBELRWET
ETHENTRHEEBESTAC BELBE
EMEEBJNIEN MLi2R8EFEHER
BREEH - ARANHBE2EEES2MNMA
BEAIERIZ BRAA QA AE-

AFRBTEES RS EEERROCH -
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B R E Y

Reading
materials/
regulatory Attending
updates/ briefings/
Name of Director monthly reports seminars
REM R
EEEHER HEGHRS
EEgR BE®RE we
Mr. Wei Qiang Bow it v v
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping REFLE
(appointed on 27 April 2018) (R=ZZF—NFHA-++HEZT) v v
Dr. Liu Zhengang 2R Wl 19+ v v
Mr. Wei Shaojun BOESLE v v
Dr. Han Qinchun BREBLT v v
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BERASE v v
BEBETEE v v

Mr. Han Xiaoping
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s financial
statements for each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules, the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and applicable
accounting standard. The Company deploys appropriate and sufficient
resources to prepare audited accounts. In preparing the financial statements
for the Reporting Period, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities. In addition, the Company provides all
members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Risk Management Structure

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control system, and regularly
assessing and continuously supervising its effectiveness to safeguard the
overall interests of the Group and its Shareholders, and to foster the
sustainable development of the Group. However, the risk management and
internal control system formulated by the Group aims to manage, instead of
eliminate, all risks exposed to the Group. Such system cannot completely
eliminate inherent limitations such as unpredictable risks and events beyond
control (e.g. natural disasters, fraud and judgment errors), and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.
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The Group established an Enterprise Risk Management (the “ERM”)
framework to implement effective risk management. Our risk management
structure is simple and clear, with a defined scope of duties.

Board of Directors

As a body in charge of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system, the Board is responsible for the setting up of clear ERM framework
and risk management policies, aiming to assess and evaluate the business
strategies of the Group and its degree of risk tolerance. With the support of
the Audit Committee, whose authority has been delegated by the Board, the
Board constantly monitors the risk management and internal control system
of the Group, as well as conducts review as to its effectiveness at least once
year.

Audit Committee

As the highest body, second only to the Board, being responsible for the risk
management and internal control system, the Audit Committee provides
advice and support in respect of all risk matters, including on-going
monitoring of the implementation of risk management procedures, reviewing
the Group’s list of major risk exposures, reviewing and approving the internal
control review plans and results.

Management

The management of the Group is responsible for identifying and continuously
monitoring strategic, operational, financial, reporting and compliance risks
associated with the daily operations of the Group. The management reports
to the Board and the Audit Committee on relevant risks and their changes.
The management also designs, formulates and implements various internal
control measures to mitigate the risks, and rectify internal control deficiencies
they identified in a timely manner.

Professional third party internal control advisor

To ensure the independence of the internal control review, the Group has
outsourced the internal audit function to a professional third party internal
control advisor (the “Internal Control Advisor”), who is responsible for
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management procedures and
effectiveness of the internal control systems. The Internal Control Advisor
formulates the internal control review plan based on risk assessment and gets
approval from the Audit Committee, and directly reports the review results to
the Audit Committee.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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Risk Management Procedures

The Group has established the ERM framework so as to effectively manage
all kinds of risks exposed to the Group. The ERM framework defined the
procedures for identifying, assessing, responding to and monitoring risks and
their changes. Through regular discussions with each operating function, the
Group strengthened the understanding of risk management so that all
employees will understand and report the risks timely which enhanced the
Group’s ability to identify and manage risks.

SRR EERE
Assess the level of
importance of risks

RN A EE Rl BT R R

Identify potential risks

Define risk scope
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In the course of risk identification, the management liaises with each operating
function, collects significant risk factors that affect the Group from the bottom
to the top, in various aspects including strategies, operational and financial
matters, reporting and compliances. After establishing risk assessment
scope, the management will assess the potential impact and possibilities of
the risks and prioritise the risks, and make appropriate internal control
measures are then developed to mitigate the risks identified and monitor the
changes of risks in an on-going manner.

Risk Management System

The Group’s risk management system is guided by the three lines of defence:

The first line of defence — Maintain an effective internal
control system (operational level)

The Group has set up a Risk Management Executive Team, comprising
functional centres, various business departments and all staff. In the course
of their daily operations, the functional centres, business segments and
individuals execute the risk management strategies of the Group, gather risks
in a timely manner based on the changes in the business and give the Risk
Management Leading Team feedback on the risks. The Risk Management
Leading Team revises and optimizes the risk management system to confine
risk management of the Group to the first line of defence.
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The major strategies of risk management of the Group include: establish clear
internal control policies and procedures, clearly define the responsibilities,
authorities and accountabilities of each key position; establish code of
conduct, convey to all employee the Group’s requirements on integrity and
ethic; establish whistle blowing mechanism, encourage employees to report
incidents of misconduct or fraud; establish appropriate level of information
technology assess rights, avoid leakage of price sensitive information; and
establish inside information disclosure policy, including reporting channels
and responsible person of disclosure, unified response to external enquiries
and obtain advice from professional financial advisors or the Stock Exchange,
if necessary.

In 2018, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of internal control policies
and procedures, including those related to financial reporting and Listing Rule
compliance and the management also conveyed confirmation of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems to the
Board and the Audit Committee. The Board has considered the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions when
reviewing risk management and internal control procedures.

The second line of defence — On-going risk monitoring (risk
management level)

The Group has set up a Risk Management Leading Team, comprising the
president, the vice-president and the directors of different centres. The Risk
Management Leading Team based on risk management framework and risk
management policies established by the Board designs, implements and
supervises the risk management system to identify, communicate and assess
the significant risks for the Group, and liaise with each operating function and
collect significant risk information that affect the Group from the bottom to the
top and continually monitors changes in risks.

The Group has established a risk register to record the risks identified, the
management will assess the potential impact and possibilities of each major
risk and formulated relevant internal control measures.

In 2018, the Risk Management Leading Team conducted evaluation of risk
management structure and procedures and submitted a risk assessment
report to the Board and the Audit Committee, including a 3-year internal
control review plan, to enable the Board and the Audit Committee to
effectively monitor the major business risks of the Group and know about
how the management responses to and mitigates such risks.
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The third line of defence — Independent review

The Board and the Audit Committee under the Board, which make up the
third line of defence, are responsible for assessing and determining the nature
and level of risks the Group is wiling to take in achieving its strategic
objectives, ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems, and supervising
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis.

The Group has delegated internal control function to the Internal Control
Advisor, independently reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems, and submitted the
internal control review report to the Audit Committee.

In 2018, the Internal Control Advisor has completed the internal control review
for the Reporting Period. The review aimed at the transactions conducted
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018, and the scope of the review
covered the effectiveness of the internal control measures at corporate level
and operational level. The Internal Control Advisor has also reported the
results of the internal control review to the Audit Committee.

The management has established remediation and improvement plan for
internal control weaknesses identified. Nothing has come to the Audit
Committee’s or Board’s attention to believe that risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are inadequate or ineffective.

Principle Risks and Uncertainties

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations of the Group may
affect the Group’s financial conditions or growth prospects. In dealing with
these risk factors and uncertainties, the Group focuses on the control of risks
and uncertainties with the aim of understanding and addressing the concerns
of stakeholders. Such factors are by no means exhaustive or comprehensive,
and there may be other risks in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to
be material in the future.

Compared with 2017, key risks and uncertainties affecting the Group are
summarized below.
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Industry and Policy Risk

The Group’s smart energy and solar energy businesses and public
infrastructure construction business are all located in the PRC. Therefore, the
Group’s development pace and profit growth will be affected by the
macroeconomic conditions and government policies in the PRC. Profit of the
Company will also be significantly affected by the Chinese and global
macroeconomic fluctuations, government’s policy in respect of clean energy,
as well as the extent of subsidy and adjustments. If the Group fails to grasp
and judge macroeconomic and national policy changes, and adjust its
operational strategies in time, or fails to respond to the economic transition
quickly, the development of the Group and realization of its operation targets
may be affected.

Risk compared with 2017 |

The management believes that the general macro economy is lack of strong
growth points, and the downward trend of the Chinese economy will
continue. In addition, the government will soon introduce a new subsidy
policy for the photovoltaic industry, which brings uncertainty to the overall
industry, resulting in rapid changes.

Countermeasures:

o regularly consulted and cooperated with professional consulting bodies.
Conducted analysis, research and prediction of macro-economic
conditions, government policies and industrial policies;

o the management continued to focus on the overall economic and policy
changes and adjust business strategies according to conditions, and
expand diversified business to avoid unnecessary loss; and

° fully considered potential policy risks before undertaking new
investment projects, and avoid investing in projects with uncertain
policy risks.

Market Competition Risk

Competition is keen in the smart energy and solar energy market. The
management expects that market competition will follow a trend of transition
to oligarchs. The Group must correctly judge and grasp the development
trend of the industry. If the Group fails to grasp development of relevant
technology and follow industry standards, and provide innovative products
and technology that satisfy user demands, it may be in a disadvantageous
position in the increasingly fierce market competition.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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Risk compared with 2017 ~——
Competition in the photovoltaic industry is basically confirmed, while smart
energy and distributed energy industry are still in the start-up phase. Industry
policies, market and technological cost level are not yet stable and mature.
Changes and opportunities co-exist.

Countermeasures:

o the management actively monitored dynamics of the industry and
competitors, expand offline resources, accumulate and analyze big
data so as to moderately adjust the services of the entire industry chain
and strengthen the competitiveness of the Group;

o the Group actively expanded diversified businesses such as electricity,
heat, gas and distributed energy, facilitated market layout and
expanded business scale, thereby seizing first-mover advantage; and

° the Group actively developed new technology and service projects, and
maintained the leading position of the Group in the industry.

Information Technology Risk

“Internet+” is the mainstream of various industries, and can enhance efficiency
and save cost in maximum and provide quality user experience through
technologies such as the Internet and big data. If the Group’s technology for
its Cloud Platform and its research and development capabilities fail to
maintain at a high level continuously, if the Group fails to accurately grasp the
trends of technology, products and markets in time, and provide
corresponding support and guarantees in line with the offline business
development, and ensure the safety of the big data, the Group’s market
development scheme, its achievement of business objectives and its
prospects will be adversely affected.

Risk compared with 2017 ~——

Technologies relating to “Internet+” are becoming mature in the PRC and
talents are not lacking in the market. The Group has always closely followed
mainstream technology in the market leveraging on a cloud platform with
independent intellectual property rights as core, and timely undertaken
commercial model innovation and technological innovation. The management
believes that risks in relevant aspect are stable and under control.

Countermeasures:

° a specialized research department was established with teams of
professional talents, and cooperated with external professional
institutions such as university and research institute to continually
enhance the Company’s research level and ability;
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. built related Cloud Platform subsystems and develop new products
and technology that will satisfy market demands, with standardized
management and control system;

o measures including encrypted message, informationalization protection
and private cloud storage were taken to ensure the safety of the data;
and

o strengthened competitiveness of Cloud Platform by introducing artificial
intelligence technology.

Capital Risk

Smart energy and solar energy businesses traditionally require large capital
investment. Financing ability and financing cost of the Group depend on
global economic condition, interest rates and banks’ credit policy as well as
its own financial performance. The Group cannot guarantee that credit line,
cost and terms can be obtained according to the Group’s preference or
project needs, which may affect the expected rewards of business and
projects. Similarly, the direct or end customers of the Group may terminate or
reduce their demand for the Group’s products or services as a result of
financing difficulties. In addition, the Group also cannot guarantee that it can
recover its receivables in time and in full. The Group’s cash flow may therefore
be significantly and adversely affected.

Risk compared with 2017 |

The global economy is entering the cycle of interest rate hike. Liquidity in the
market is not as high as those in the past few years, making banks and other
financing institutions putting greater emphasis on risk management. The
management believes that the Group currently does not have significant
financing pressure, but should pay more attention to risks relating to capital
compared with the past.

Countermeasures:

o made full use of the capital platform and strengthened cooperation with
financial institutions such as banks, actively maintained the stability of
various financing channels, thereby reducing the Company’s financial
costs;

o strengthened the overall management of funds during the daily
operational management process of the Group, conducted wealth
management prudently, clarified various standards of cost and expense
and strengthened budget management; and

o established the collection mechanism of receivables and credit

assessment mechanism, strengthened credit risk management, and
collected amounts in time.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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Integrated Management and Control Risks

The support of well-developed organizational and governance structure is
necessary for business development. If the organizational structure, functions
orientation and capacity of integrated management and control could not
support the development need of the Group, and adapt to various
environmental and risk changes including strengthening of regulation, market
competition and rapid development of business, the Group’s capacity of
realizing its operational and strategic targets would be affected.

Risk compared with 2017 |

With gradual expansion of the Group’s business and asset scale, as well as
changes in organizational structure arising from merger and acquisition of
new business, the management needs to review and optimize organizational
and governance structure to adapt to changes. At the same time, the Group
has to ensure after streamlining the Group’s structure and reducing
employees, the Group still has adequate resources to maintain and monitor
effective implementation of management policies.

Countermeasures:

o the management regularly reviewed development of business,
optimized legal person governance structure and regularly assesses
and reviewed the Group’s organizational structure and each function’s
orientation;

o formulated and implemented refined corporate governance system, set
up appropriate monitoring structures, and made necessary adjustments
according to business development needs;

o regularly reviewed effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control through independent internal control advisor; and

° reviewed new merger and acquisition and financial investment business
in time, and formulated appropriate monitoring and internal control
procedures for new business, so that they are connected with current
business appropriately.

Merger and Acquisition Transaction Risk

The Group needs to support business development through different merger
and acquisitions. If the Group fails to fully grasp real operational, financial and
legal conditions of the targets of the transactions, and accurately evaluates
actual value of the targets of transactions, it may have to pay an exceedingly
high transaction consideration, or may have to bear liabilities for merger and
acquisition targets, or bear the risk of failure of merger and acquisition
transactions.
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Additional risk

The Group is currently in a phase of rapid growth and will frequently carry out
project mergers and acquisitions to support business development. However,
the management has always attached great importance to the management
of merger and acquisition transaction risks and carefully reviewed each
transaction target. Therefore, it considers that relevant risks should still be
acceptable.

Countermeasures

Notes:

for each merger and acquisition project, the Group will first undertake
internal due diligence investigation, and learn about project background,
actual business condition, financial condition and legal compliance, as
the basis of preliminary review;

for each potential merger and acquisition object passing preliminary
project initiation phase, the Group will appoint experienced third-party
professional institutions to conduct detailed, business, financial and
legal due diligence investigation, so as to check the truthfulness of
merger and acquisition projects;

the Group appointed professional evaluation institutions to conduct
value assessment on merger and acquisition projects, to see whether
transaction consideration is too high or not;

the Group set up a specialized investment and merger and acquisition
committee. Committee members are all senior management personnel
experienced in fields including operation, management, finance, legal
affairs and investment and merger and acquisition; and

after completing projects for merger and acquisition, the Group will
regularly supervise its operational performance, financial performance
and other comprehensive performance, and regularly conduct checking
and assessment, to confirm whether it reaches the Group’s investment
performance, and will adopt corresponding measures in time
depending on actual conditions, to lower the Group’s risk of
investments.

Risk level increased |
Risk level decreased |
Risk level mostly unchanged ~——

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited
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The Group’s procedure and internal control measures regarding the handling
and dissemination of inside information are listed below:

The Group is aware of its obligations under the disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information issued by the Securities and Futures Commission in June
2012. The overriding principle is for the Group to make an
announcement as soon as any inside information comes to the
attention of the Group or the Group makes any decision based on such
information.

The Company has formulated its own Guidelines on Management and
Disclosure of Inside Information in accordance with the Listing Rules
and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information, clarifying the
organization for managing inside information within the Company and
the processes for reporting and disclosing inside information, and
ensuring that Board members, the senior management personnel and
specific executive personnel with access to price-sensitive and/or
inside information by reason of their position or employment at the
Company or its subsidiaries are in strict compliance with the relevant
regulations and guidelines.

By way of financial reports, announcements and its website, the Group
discloses information to the public in an extensive and non-exclusive
manner to implement and disclose its fair disclosure policy.

In the course of communicating with any organization or individual
regarding the Company’s operating condition, financial condition and
other operating developments in a variety of formats, including
presentations on results, analyst presentations, roadshows and the
reception of investors for their research purposes, the Company
designates a specific executing entity for information disclosure.

The Company has formulated its Confidentiality Protocol, expressly
prohibiting any unauthorized use of confidential information or inside
information. At the same time, staff members are required to sign a
confidentiality agreement during induction, which means they are
expected to take upon themselves the duty of confidentiality when they
start their job.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zou Yanhong (“Ms. Zou”) and Ms. Ng Ka Man (“Ms. Ng”) are the joint
company secretaries of the Company.

Ms. Zou is the director of securities affairs department of the Company and is
also responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters and
ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and the applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance with
the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company also engages
Ms. Ng, a manager of TMF Hong Kong Limited (a global corporate service
provider), as its Joint Company Secretary to assist Ms. Zou to discharge her
duties as company secretary of the Company. The primary corporate contact
person at the Company is Ms. Zou, the Joint Company Secretary.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, each of Ms. Zou and Ms. Ng has
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RELATIONS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear, timely and
effective communication with the Shareholders and the investors. The Board
also recognises that effective communication with the investors is the key to
establish investor confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore, the
Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure
that the investors and the Shareholders receive accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of the Group by the publication of
financial reports, announcements, circulars and other corporate
communications on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The Company’s website (www.longitech.hk) has been set up as a means to
provide information of the Company to the Shareholders and potential
investors and to communicate with them directly and effectively. Shareholders
are welcomed to make enquiry to the Board or make request for the
Company’s information to the extent such information is publicly available.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2018

BEAFRE

FHERAZLT(BRETDEREZTLL(RK
TDREARRNBERARME

BL+AAAABSFHHAE ARBE
$ELFTMERGRUER BRESY
WA RIER  ERAR REREREHE
-

BRTHEBRENCEERYERNTE TR
AIRBERBEREZLZR ARAMERZERER
BERAB(A—EREERBHEER) HK
BREZLTE/ARANBFEARMWE - Ui
BBLLTBETRARAIRAWMENRE - AR
AARIEBRARARANBFEARME
ML -

HE-F-N\F+-A=+-BALFE B
L+ RRETYERE LT RAEL0GES
ES SEUNTR RS2 EIR

REAERBRRR

EFeRAERRRERKREERFEEHN - RF
MEREENEEH BT NRFPELE
EERTANEBREIKRESRE O RRSIH
HEENBRAT Al REBBARES
FRE BREEERBRERBE M KEA
NAMHFHENMERE 25 BER
Hith b X BAESEERNEE LR FH -
FTEEMmKIENER o NAFE & (www.
longitech.hk) + 1 7 A R 3 &8 £ 1% & & 12 fit
RAFIEM UREFEEEEBERERNE
B-ARBBAOREANEFTSIEHERNRE
KIBEARARAMARAFANER -



Corporate Governance Report continued)

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and the
investment community. Shareholders are also encouraged to attend the
annual general meeting and other general meetings that may be convened by
the Company, for which notices will be served for an adequate period in
accordance with the Listing Rules and articles of association of the Company.
The Directors will be available to answer Shareholders’ questions at the
general meetings.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each issue at Shareholder meetings, including the election of
individual directors.

At any general meetings, a resolution put to vote of the meeting shall be
decided by way of a poll except where a show of hands is allowed under the
Listing Rules and the results of voting by poll will be declared at the meeting
and published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively pursuant to the Listing Rules. At the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 12 June 2018, all resolutions, including the approval of
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017, were passed by poll by the
Shareholders.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting according to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of
Hong Kong) and the articles and association of the Company. According to
article 64 of the articles of association of the Company, extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition.
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As regards proposing a person for election as a director, article 113 of the
articles of association of the Company stipulates that no person, other than a
retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless
notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the Head Office or at the Registration Office. The
period for lodgment of the notices required under this Article will commence
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such general meeting and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7 days. The
procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a director
are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the Company to
the Board could email their enquiries to investor@longitech.hk.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Reporting Period, there is no significant change in constitutional
documents of the Company.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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To the Shareholders of LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of LongiTech Smart Energy Holding
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
109 to 218, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

o [ B
iR, K 1B

BEERNMESRRERERATARRK
(RAEEHEEIME LB BRI )

BER

EMEEFTHAR

BEAFMEZRFRITWERE DA (AT HHE
[B2ADEEWNBRAAUATABIEER])
DIH A E109E 218 E MG A ME®mE  B21F

e RIZ-N\F+tZA=+—HBHHKEAE
EREX:

s HERBULFEMNGABHERK:

«  BERALFENGASEUCGKE

s HERBULFENGARZEHK:

s HAMBBRME BRIZEHER
BME -

EMWER

BMRE ZFHREM BRI RIE(ERE
BmEEN (KERMBREEN)EEM
TERRTESEER-_F-N\F+-A=
T-BENGEAMBRARNREBEZBLFE
MEAMBRARGARENE LEER
BRE(RBARODHORBEREZ BEE -

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com

AR K A8 G it il 2

BWPIRK FARE T
Hat% : +852 2289 8888 » fHH : +852 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:

Recoverability of overdue trade receivables

Key Audit Matter
HRETSE

&7 T?;J(Bﬂiﬁls’(t':(

X Rk K 18
HMAEETPHANEREFEEMPRET

o  AHESEWFRM A WKEIRE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RANETNMEERRETSE

Recoverability of overdue trade receivables

BHESERTEANTHRERE

Refer to note 22 Trade and other receivables to the
consolidated financial statements.
BLHRAMBHRRMF2E 5 R E M EFRIE -

The Group’s overdue trade receivables amounted to
RMB352,352,000 which were exposed to a higher risk of
collectability issue as at 31 December 2018.
RZZE-N\FE+A=+—H8  EXENBHEFTE
Yk TE B A R 352,352,000t © A 78 50E E ER B & &)
] W ] @ g o

The Group makes a provision of RMB18,652,000 on trade
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of
overdue trade receivables as at 31 December 2018.
RZE-NFE+ZA=+—0 REHAHEFTEK
FIEFWEEER RS EREE S RUGRIEEL
B #5 AR % 18,652,0007T °

Our procedures in relation to the recoverability of overdue trade
receivables included:
BMEEHEBRESRRFIENAREEENETEF
BIE

o Understood the key controls in respect of granting credit
to third parties and the impairment assessment
performed by the Group’s management on the Group’s
receivables;

. THRETE=ZFTCEAKESEEEERESEENRK
SIEFTVERE AN ST

° We tested management’s assessment of the expected
credit losses by comparing to supportable evidence
about the collectability of the overdue trade receivables
such as subsequent settlement after the year end date
within ordinary settlement cycle of respective customers,
credit history, business performance and financial
capability of the customers and forward-looking
information;

. BMERBEREEEYEHEESENGESRDH
BESRWHBENHEOEENAZEERREREMN
B NEEEEPNEREEBRARNEREHEB
BETHEEHBEURZEEPNERESL £
RIE RO BEE N A R ATRE B R
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Key Audit Matter
HRETSE

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Yooz

i ok Kk 1A

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RANETONMEERRETSE

The Group calculates the loss allowance for trade
receivables using the credit risk exposure and the expected
loss rate of trade receivables. The Group applies the IFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for trade
receivables. The Group assesses the expected credit losses
associated with its trade receivables on a forward looking
basis. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
EEECREERBRERBESEKRRBENEABIEX
AHESRUFENEREG EEERAEEYB
MEENFORGIE T EZUFEEMEEBE %5
ERESRUFERACENEREERE S5 E
RAEHEETGHRAE SRR RERBNEREE
Eﬁ-%%TT%méﬁﬂﬂﬁi%ﬁﬁmmﬁﬁé
o ﬂ&%%*‘“?ﬁﬁ'uﬁﬁém&mﬁﬁﬁ
HPEERPEBRKRFIBR TN EZERERE -

We focus on this area due to the significant balance of
trade receivables as at 31 December 2018 and the
uncertainty of estimation involved in the management’s
assessment process in respect of the collectability of trade
receivables. Any changes in the circumstances of the
customers may affect the collectability of the relevant
balances.
BRZE-NFT_A=+—HzZEFEKKIELE
HEX BEBRENE S EKFIEN A I E R E G
BERFPREFTOIEEE  BUEMERNETZE
o mEPHEREBAEME/ AT W AERE & H D
AW EREESETE -
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o We also tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the
ageing profile of trade receivables for the purpose of
identifying overdue trade receivables and their overdue
period; and

e HEMTAEMENER FRRESEEFENRENR
o BE#HMNEBEHRUGRIERESHFER &

o We tested the accuracy of the calculation of the
allowance for doubtful debts using the credit risk
exposure and the expected credit loss rate of trade
receivables.

e HEMEREERRBRLESEUFENTAHREERIE
ERBRARRBBAEERIL -

Based on the procedures described, we consider
management’s assessment on recoverability of trade
receivables is supportable by the evidence we gathered.
WEMMET  BMRR IRENBBRENEEERE
$ 2 5 e WK IE #) A] Y B 12 2 PR MR AT A o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

&7 T?sélﬁfﬁﬁﬁt':(

Hfis 2

EE/_\—JEEA\H ,ﬁi:'f'flzl/\_,ﬁ
BERANNFAEEE  BETE
ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ’\]’fﬁﬁkﬁﬂii&% °

H{'H_j,'f:l:\_, B
EiR A MR

ﬁf‘i“fﬁéﬂﬂ‘%#ﬁ%ﬁ’] BERUPMREEAME
CHMTA A AEHZEREMEEEREMNER
E’]%nannnrﬂa °

BERMEHEAMBRERNET  RMANE
1 EHEHEMER  HHBRET  EEHEME

EREGEGAEMBRRAKMERBIESF
BT T RIS RTEEXT&%&%M?@EE
KRR 15
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ng Ping Fai.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F—\E+-A=+—HILFE
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—F-N\F —T £
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b AR®FT ARETT
Continuing operations BEREEL
Revenue Il 5(a) 708,493 897,902
Cost of sales ek DN 8 (464,662) (637,422
Gross profit E2¥ 243,831 260,480
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAX 8 (22,146) (24,519)
Administrative expenses ITHAX 8 (89,234) (68,190)
Impairment losses on financial assets SREEREBERBSE 9 (15,761) -
Other income E g A 6 2,107 —
Other gains — net H fth iy 5 F 58 7 1,211 9,518
Profit from operations RESER 120,008 177,289
Finance income PN 11 7,330 610
Finance expenses BhE R X 11 (16,638) (19,845)
Finance expenses — net BE R F R 11 (9,308) (19,235)
Share of net profit of associates accounted for REEREABRENBE QA
using the equity method B 45 {7 58 18 8,187 -
Profit before income tax R P18 B AT R 118,887 158,054
Income tax expense FRig B X 12 (10,386) (22,328)
Profit from continuing operations BELEEBNRER 108,501 135,726
Discontinued operations ERIEEB
Loss from discontinued operations attributable to 72X A & # 5 A FE(S
owners of the Company BRIEEBHER - (238)
Profit for the year FREF 108,501 135,488
BEFNEZERIERERLT  FIR 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—F-N\F —T £
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b AR®T ARETT
Profit is attributable to: LT EAEER :
Owners of the Company AARER A 107,720 135,197
Non-controlling interests JEFE RS R 2R 781 291
108,501 135,488
Profit attributable to owners of the Company &2 B#H AEERBAEKE :
arises from:
Continuing operations BERESER 107,720 135,435
Discontinued operations 2R IE T - (238)
107,720 135,197
Earnings per share for profit attributable to &2 B A A FE4LH B
owners of the Company (RMB): BEREBEF(AR%T)
Basic earnings per share BREXREF
From continuing operations HEEEER 13(a) 0.0821 0.1712
From discontinued operations B IEET 13(a) - (0.0003)
0.0821 0.1709
Diluted earnings per share SREERF
From continuing operations HEKREER 13(b) 0.0820 0.1709
From discontinued operations B IEETE 13(b) - (0.0003)
0.0820 0.1706

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be read in M F4 A EBEREEBEW O —0FFHE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

HOEBE W

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Profit for the year FREF 108,501 135,488
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Ha2@EWA(EE)
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently Ve mEES D EEREEMER -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of financial BE N E QR B IEREK
statements of overseas subsidiaries FiEEMER =58 14,638 (4.173)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) EREMEEBA(EA)
for the year, net of tax KNBRBIE 14,638 (4,173)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEBANEE 123,139 131,315
Attributable to: AT FEAG
Owners of the Company AKRAREERA 122,358 131,024
Non-controlling interests JEERER 781 291
123,139 131,315
Total comprehensive income for the year AATEEBE AEMN
attributable to owners of the Company FREEWARLERR:
arises from:
Continuing operations BERKSER 122,358 131,262
Discontinued operations BRIFER - (238)
122,358 131,024

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read LA _F 48 & 2 T Uk 25 35 FE B2 B BT &Y BT 3 — G4 )

e

in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

MOBEEBRBRE

At 31 December 2018 R=Z—N\E+=-A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3E AR®T ARBT T
Assets EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE 1t & At (5 R4 14 4,254 1,634
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 15 498,459 480,349
Investment properties "EWE - 9,000
Intangible assets m B E 16 19,698 38,475
Deferred tax assets FERERIBEE 31 3,021 569
Contract assets EHNEE 21 155,440 —
Investments accounted for using the equity RAEREARNEE
method 18 101,587 —
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  #Z A FEHE A HEH)
AN EHEE 24 8,762 —
Other non-current assets HiIFERBEE 19 7,781 17,510
Total non-current assets kARBEELRE 799,002 547 537
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 24,480 25,815
Contract assets EHEE 21 304,350 —
Amount due from customers for contract work EWEFAEXTIERE 21 - 500,316
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H b U 58 22 543,486 769,555
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKATENSREE 23 178,513 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss & A FEHE A HEH)
AR eREE 24 155,681 —
Restricted cash IR HIR 4 26 1,219 1,679
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBESEDY 27 162,917 107,022
Total current assets RBEEAR 1,370,646 1,404,387
Total assets EEHAE 2,169,648 1,951,924
Equity and liabilities EnkBaE
Share capital A% A% 28(a) 12,255 7,629
Reserves & 28(b) 1,154,287 555,658
Retained earnings REBH 307,248 210,300
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZxA T #H A FE/G % 1,473,790 773,587
Non-controlling interests FERER 6,159 1,214
Total equity R 1,479,949 774,801
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Consolidated Balance Sheet [Continued]

noEEBEXE
At 31 December 2018 R=Z—N\&E+=H E+—E|

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2018 2017
—F-N\F —T £
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3E AR®T ARBTF T
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities kFBER
Borrowings EEA 29 534,400 647,305
Deferred government grants i FE U A6 AL 2,386 2,493
Deferred tax liabilities R IEEE 31 12,291 12,654
Total non-current liabilities kRBEEHREE 549,077 662,352
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B RHAMEMNKIE 30 95,041 202,114
Contract liabilities AEHaE 2,184 —
Receipts in advance FE Uk FRIE - 738
Current tax liabilities BNERFT 1S A (& 10,197 25,679
Borrowings = 29 33,200 286,240
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 140,622 514,771
Total liabilities BERE 689,699 1,177,123
Total equity and liabilities EEREERE 2,169,648 1,951,924

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the LA F 4R & & & & & % FE BH s I 69 M 3 — 6t
accompanying notes. 5 o

The financial statements on pages 109 to 218 were approved by the Board #1008 £ #218E B BHRER T — N

of Directors on 29 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf FZAZ+NBEE=SHE LHTIE
ERREZE
Wei Qiang Liu Zhengang
i 24 R
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

Jum () lTl"

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE_-F

SEEE

—N\F+ZA=t—-HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARERAERS
Share-based Non-
Share Share  Statutory compensation  Exchange Other  Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve eamnings Total interests  Total equity
MR %
BA  ROEE ATHE BHEE EiFEE AtHEE RBEEH @t FEkER HER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARWTT ARETRT ARBTR ARETRT ARETR ARETRT ARBTR
Balance at 1 January RZB-tF
2017 -R-A&% 6,002 194,821 11,253 - 1,996 4,187 88,623 306,882 - 306,882
Comprehensive income 2 WA
Profit for the year FRaE - - - - - - 135197 135197 291 135,488
Other comprehensive loss — E 12 E 18 - - - - (4,179) - - (4,179) - (4,179
Total comprehensive Ht2EBA
income - - — - @173 — 135,197 131,024 291 131,315
Transactions with owners 2#HANEEF A
in their capacity as HERETHRES
owners
Placing of new shares EEMBRH 1627 332,722 - - - - — 334,349 — 334,349
Non-controling interests on Y B i & 22 71 &)
acquisition of FiERER
subsidiaries - - - - - — - - 1,960 1,960
Dividends provided foror iR &/ & 5
paid ERRE - - - - - - - - (1,037) (1,087)
Appropriation to statutory ~ AZE AT HE
reserve - — 13,520 - - — (13,520) - - -
Equity-settled share-based 1% 18 25 £ Z bA IR {p
transactions Y2RS5 - - - 1,332 - - - 1,332 - 1,332
Total transactions with ~ REFAETR S
owners, recognised BEERERE AR
directly in equity 1,627 382,722 13,520 1,332 — - (13,520) 385,681 923 336,604
Balance at 31 December R=—Z—-+F+=f
2017 =t-H&H 7,629 527,543 24,773 1,332 2,177 4,187 210,300 773,587 1,214 774,801
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In EqU|ty (Continued)

GEOEDEHFHETm
For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z—Z— \FE+=-A=1+—HIEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRREAER
Share-based Non-
Share Share  Statutory compensation  Exchange Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests Total equity
PY 3B

RE  ROEE AERE  ZBEMEE  EXRE  EHRE  REER ax FERER ags
Notes ~ RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
MiE ARBTR ARMTR AR%TR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARBTR AR®TR AR%T:R

Balance at 1 January 2018 R=-Z-\%-f-H
F3:3 7,629 527,543 24,173 1,332 (2,177) 4,187 210,300 773,587 1,214 774,801

Comprehensive income  2E KA
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - 107,720 107,720 781 108,501
Other comprehensive income £ 41 2 E YA - - - - 14,638 - - 14,638 - 14,638
Total comprehensive 2AUABE

income - - - - 14,638 - 107,720 122,358 781 123,139
Transactions with owners  EHE AN ERAH

in their capacity as BRETHRS

owners
Rights issue i 28(a) 3,699 438,699 - - - - - 442,398 - 442,398
Placing of new shares ReEHKH 28(a) 927 124,113 - - - - - 125,040 - 125,040
Non-controling interests on I B Fif B 2 &1H)

acquisition of subsidiaries FERER 36 - - - - - - - - 4,700 4,700
Contributions of equity BHLE - - - - - - - - 500 500
Dividends provided for or paid 5t % 5. i % & 5

ERBRE - - - - - - - - (1,036) (1,036)

Appropriation to statutory ~~ EEE T EE

reserves - - 10,772 - - - (10,772) - - -
Equity-settled share-based R EENRH L

transactions N5 10() - - - 10,407 - - - 10,407 - 10,407
Total transactions with BREAETRS

owners, recognised ERREZAR

directly in equity 4626 562812 10772 10,407 - - (0772 577,845 4164 582,000
Balance at 31 December R=Z-\£+-f

2018 =+-AkH 12,255 1,090,355 35,545 11,739 12,461 4187 307,248 1,473,790 6,159 1,479,949

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in LA 48 & #E 25 & &) % JE BB T &9 M 57 — 0F B
conjunction with the accompanying notes. & o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

JMK EE%éEIHLEE%F

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b ARBT ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRERESRE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations wERE/ (TR RS 33 482,784 (264,857)
Interest received 2 F B 467 610
Income tax paid ERATEH (28,585) (17,723)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating & EE T8, (FTH)
activities BE&FH 454,666 (281,970)
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHREBEERE
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries, UL RE KT B A B AN R
net of cash acquired R AR 36(c) 1 5,450
Payments for leasehold land and land use rights 8 & + i }z + 0 {# F3 4%
A FRIE (3,077) -
Payments for property, plant and equipment ME - BE MK 1% FENEN (67,169) (100,915)
Payments for intangible assets BREEAESMFHIE (7,820) (14,634)
Payments for investments in associates BB E NN RIE 18 (93,400) -
Payments for financial assets at amortised cost ~ BtiZ#E S5 AT 21
SRS E X T RIE (178,050) —
Payments for financial assets at fair value through  BtiZ A P& 8 B H& g5t
profit or loss ABEENeREESNRIE 24 (182,289) -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR FTERIA 31,702 49,541
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and LEWE  BE K&
equipment Fri8 318 6,039 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at far HEZE AT EIEAHEH)
value through profit or loss FFABRNSREEENK
15 24 16,148 —
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEAJHIEc/mMEE
financial assets Fr 183018 - 3,000
Interests received on financial assets at amortised  #5 1£ IR & & I 89 4% & §4 A A
cost held for cash management purposes E’Jr EMNESMEENE KT E 3,907 -
Government grants received 15 BT 44 b 2,000 —
Decrease/(Increase) in restricted cash = 5E 130 & 8 (38 hn) 460 (1,383)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ ==

HElREREZ@m

—NF+ZA=+t—-HLHFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b AR¥T ARETT
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFMARSTE (471,548) (68,941)
Cash flows from financing activities METHMERESRE
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BT BRATSRIA 28(a) 567,438 242 923
Proceeds from equity contribution of non- JEIERA R ER B E
controlling shareholders Fi 5 5k 18 500 -
Proceeds from borrowings BEMEHRIEA - 380,715
Repayment of borrowings BEEEE (365,945) (286,610)
Interest paid ENFE (40,281) (60,802)
Advances from related parties B 5 2 37 8,060 18,816
Repayment of funds to related parties BEEBATNESD 37 (97,387) (47,392)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests in FRWE AR IEERER
subsidiaries X AR A (1,036) (1,037)
Net cash generated from financing activities BEEZHFESRESFHE 71,349 246,613
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ReRESEEY
equivalents #a, R FE 54,467 (94,298)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning RETNR S RIS EEYD
of the year 107,022 205,037
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash HekReEEWERL
equivalents Wz, (E518) 1,428 (3,717)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end RERNRERBESEEY
of the year 27 162,917 107,022

The above consolidated statement of cash
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

flows should be read in A L4 AR &% E & EEREN AT — 0

-

F=8
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By} ¥55 %k 2% BiY 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

118

GENERAL INFORMATION

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 January 2011 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, the Cayman Islands. The Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 12 January 2012.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in smart energy business and public infrastructure
construction business. The two major shareholders of the Company
are Longevity Investment Holding Limited (“Longevity”) and Lightway
Power Holdings Limited (“Lightway Power”). The ultimate beneficial
owner of the Company is Mr. Wei Shaojun (the “controlling
shareholder”).

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which include all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain
financial assets measured at fair value.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

2.1.1New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for

the first time for their annual reporting period commencing on 1 January

2018:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments,

° IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,

° Amendments to IFRS 4 — Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts,

° Amendments to IFRS 2 — Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions,

° Amendments to IAS 40 — Transfers to Investment Property,

° Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle, and

° Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration.

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 are disclosed in

Note 2.2. The other amendments listed above did not have any impact

on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HILFE

BEAXDEHBREEm

21 mEBEZE @)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2 EXEHHREEm

21 B EZE @)
212 KRB FTE]

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

i

2.1.2New standards and interpretations not yet Al kR
adopted

The following published new accounting standards and interpretations

are effective for the annual reporting period commencing on or after 1

January 2019 and have not been early adopted by the Group:

UTe#EmHet £ RR2BEN —F—
NF-—A-BHZEABNFERSH
MAERR - B R ARERATRA

Effective for annual period
commencing on or after

RERZZ#

RN FERBER

IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
Bl B EERIE 165 MHE —E-NF—-A—H
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
BB B a2 RIS 175 RiBE R —E-—%5—-A—H

Amendments to IFRS 9

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

1 January 2019

BRI BREENEIRNEITEA RABESRANETGH —Z-NE—-A—H
Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement 1 January 2019
Bl Eat EAIE 105 MBI A BB RS EEE —E-NF—-A—H
Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019
Bl &t &R 285 B ET AR REERRIRGERRAINRBAES —E-NE-A—H

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

pi

R 1057 R BIFR

B % S 75 4 5
285 MERT AR

==
[=]
GEHEAS

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture
BEEREBENFKAENAHNEELESTE

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

To be determined

FE

1 January 2019

BB EREEN - AFE2 -2 —+tFRHNFELE —T-h&—R—H
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
B % A FE A 45 B 2355 FTS TR IE R T HEE 1t —E-nEF—A—H

The impact of IFRS 16 on the Group is set out below. None of the
other new and amended standards and interpretations listed above is

B BEREEANEI6RE A RENF
BN XA o PA B H A & IE TR R A

expected to have a significant impact on the Group. BETEB R REEH TS HAEBEK

B2 488
BERTE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in almost all leases

being recognised on the balance sheet by lessees, as the distinction

between operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new

standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial

liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-

term and low-value leases.

The Group has reviewed all of its leasing arrangements in light of the
new lease accounting rules in IFRS 16. The standard will affect primarily
the accounting for the Group’s operating leases.

As at the reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB5,431,000 (Note 34). Of these commitments,
RMB4,722,000 relates to short-term and low value leases which will be
recognised on a straight-line basis as expense in profit or loss.

For the remaining lease commitments the Group expects to recognise
right-of-use assets of RMB369,000 and lease liabilities of RMB369,000
on 1 January 2019. Net current assets will be RMB131,000 lower due
to the presentation of a portion of the liability as a current liability.

The Group expects that net profit after tax will decrease by RMB22,000
for the year ending 31 December 2019 as a result of adopting the new
rules. Operating cash flows will increase and financing cash flows
decrease by RMB141,000 for the year ending 31 December 2019 as
repayment of the principal portion of the lease liabilities will be classified
as cash flows from financing activities.

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z—ZF— \F+-_A=+—HILFE
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ZEFREEF - ARM4,722,0007T #52
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REHEEREMNS  AEEBEFTRZ
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.2New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory adoption date of
1 January 2019. The Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to
first adoption. Right-of-use assets will be measured at the amount of
the lease liability on adoption (adjusted for prepaid lease expenses).

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would
be expected to have a material impact on the Group in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers on
the Group’s financial statements.

2.2.11FRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the recognition,
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of financial
assets and hedge accounting.

The adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1 January 2018
resulted in changes in accounting policies. The new accounting policies
are set out in Note 2.12 below. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in IFRS 9, comparative figures have not been restated. There
was no impact on the Group’s retained eamings as at 1 January 2018
or 1 January 2017.

LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

2.2.11IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group has four types of financial assets that are subject to IFRS 9’s
expected credit loss model:

trade receivables,

tariff adjustment receivables,

contract assets relating to public infrastructure construction
business, and

other financial assets at amortised cost.

The Group was required to revise its impairment methodology under
IFRS 9 for each of these classes of assets. While cash and cash
equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9,
the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

@)

Trade receivables, tariff adjustment receivables and contract
assets

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables, tariff adjustment receivables
and contract assets. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables, tariff adjustment receivables and contract
assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. Note 22 provides for
details about the calculation of the loss allowance for trade
receivables as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018.

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2

ACCOU NTI NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

2.2.11IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(@  Trade receivables, tariff adjustment receivables and contract
assets (Continued)
Tariff adjustment receivables derive from the subsidies in respect
of the sales of electricity. Contract assets relate to unbilled work
in progress in the public infrastructure construction business.
Applying the expected credit risk model did not result in any loss
allowance recognised for tariff adjustment receivables or contract
assets as at 1 January 2018 or 31 December 2018.

(b)  Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include loans to related
parties, loans to third parties and other receivables. Note 23
provides for details about the loss allowance for loans to third
parties as at 31 December 2018. Applying the expected credit
risk model did not result in any loss allowance recognised for
loans to related parties or other receivables as at 1 January 2018
or 31 December 2018.

2.2.2IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

IFRS 15 replaces the provisions of IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11

Construction Contracts that relate to the recognition, classification and

measurement of revenue and costs.
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Notes to the Financ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

2.2.21IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 from 1 January 2018, which resulted
in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts
recognised in the financial statements. The Group elected to use a
modified retrospective approach for transition which allows the Group
to recognise the cumulative effects of initially applying IFRS 15 as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as at 1 January
2018. The Group elected to apply the practical expedient for completed
contracts and did not restate the contracts completed before 1 January
2018, thus the comparative figures have not been restated. In
summary, the following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the balance sheet as at 1 January 2018:

lal Statements (continued)
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IAS 18 & IAS 11 IFRS 15
carrying amount carrying amount
as at as at
31 December 2017  Reclassification 1 January 2018
—E2—+tF
+t=A=+-AH
Bl B & 5 2 A —E-NF
F£185 R E KR —A—H
B ERE11H B PR B 75 3R 5 2 Al
W ERE & Eg ] E15RMNREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT
Contract assets BHEE — 500,316 500,316
Amount due from customers for & B F & #) T2 718
contract work 500,316 (5600,316) —
Contract liabilities EHEE — 738 738
Receipts in advance FE U R IE 738 (738) -
There was no impact on the Group’s retained earnings as at 1 January HWARAEBNR -_ZE—N\E—F—HxK=F

2018 or 1 January 2017.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

2.3.1Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business
combinations by the Group (Note 2.4).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and balance sheet, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

2.3.2Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence
but not control or joint control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting
(Note 2.3.3), after initially being recognised at cost.

2.3.3 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or
loss, and the Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for
impairment in accordance with the policy described in Note 2.11.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.4 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred,

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business,

° equity interests issued by the Group,

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity, and acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the fair value
of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.4 Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the
amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value as
at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing
could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains
or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

2.5 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwiill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The Board of Directors of the Company has identified the senior
executive management as the chief operating decision-maker, who
assesses the financial performance and position of the Group, makes
strategic decisions and allocates resources.

2.7 Foreign currency translation

2.7.1Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”),
which is the Company’s presentation currency.

2.7.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the statement of profit or loss, within finance costs. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement
of profit or loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2.7.2Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.7.3Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

° income and expenses for each consolidated statement of profit
or loss are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

° all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.8 Leasehold land and land use rights

Lease hold land and land use rights are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the approved use periods.

2.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements and
certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter lease term, as follows:

BEAXEHBREEm

28 HEL MR L H{ERRE

HE L%+ E LB RERILE
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HEENRERGEERR D #

Buildings 20 years g3 204
Plant and machinery 5-25 years = R 5ZE 254
Motor vehicles 5-10 years HE 52104
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years FRE -HEEREHE 3E5%F

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and included in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.10Intangible assets
2.10.1Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.4. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs”) for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those CGUs or groups
of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose. The CGUs or groups of CGUs are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments (Note 5).

2.102Patent

Patent acquired in a business combination is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. It has a finite useful life and is subsequently carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

2.103Software

Acquired computer software is stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred.

2104Amortisation methods and periods
The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life using
the straight-line method over the following periods:

Software 5 years
Patent 10 years
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.11Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or CGUs. Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.12Investments and other financial assets

2.121Classification
From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured at fair value (either through profit or loss or
through other comprehensive income (“OCI™)), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI").
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.12Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.12.1Classification (Continued)
The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

2.122Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

2.123Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment
of principal and interest.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2

ACCOU NTI NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.12Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.12.3Measurement (Continued)

(@ Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.

. FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.12Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.12.3Measurement (Continued)

(@) Debt instruments (Continued)

° FVPL
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss
and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.

(b)  Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in
other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

2124Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z—ZF— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 EXEHHREEm

Q2R ERHEMBEMEE @)

212351 £ (@)

@) EEILA#E)

e BRATEINEAHZHIHAEN
THARB R AR R T E
EAHSEHAL MR E KA K
#m§F& FEEEEES
STAEGZE HEEZEAFETE
ﬂﬁk@ﬁAﬁmﬁim1%&
BHRERBENESERLR
HEAHERE bk (EB)
X

b #ETA

AEBEREAVEAEMAEERR
E-MAEEEREREENAME2EK
ARV EERENRAFERERE
B RRERIERR HRITE8A
FENKRBEREEEHOREZER M
78R B RE S WREA SRV R R - A IR
ENBREFEEREMB AR IERNE

X7
o

BATEFEEEZHFABENER
BERATENEINEBEERANEMK
#w/(BR)PTERIAMMER) BEATE
AEREREFHHARMEARAGEN
*Eﬁé?ﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁ@l&ﬂﬁ(&ﬁﬁ%%iﬁé@)
SHEAFENHEGBEHOFER -

2124FE
AEEE-T—N\E—A— ARAENE
EETEREIREERARKRATE
HEREEHH AL EERATIRG
EHTAEBNASEEER . FER
B EBARE SRR 2T EEE
i o

BESNSESERERERAT &3k 2018



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 BEXEHBREE @

ACCOU NTI NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.12Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.1241mpairment (Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables (Note 22).

2.125Accounting policies applied until

31 December 2017
The Group has applied IFRS 9 retrospectively, but has elected not to
restate comparative information. As a result, the comparative
information provided continues to be accounted for in accordance with
the Group’s previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017, the Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories:

o financial assets at FVPL,

° loans and receivables,
° held-to-maturity investments, and
o available-for-sale financial assets.

The classification determined on the purpose for which the investments
were acquired. Management determined the classification of its
investments at initial recognition and, in the case of assets classified as
held-to-maturity, re-evaluated this designation at the end of each
reporting period. See Note 25 for details about each type of financial
asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.12Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.125Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017 (Continued)

(@) Subsequent measurement

The measurement at initial recognition is the same as described in IFRS
9. Subsequent to the initial recognition, loans and receivables and held-
to-maturity investments were subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at FVPL were
subsequently carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value are recognised as follows:

° for financial assets at FVPL — in profit or loss within other gains/(loss),

° for available-for-sale financial assets that are monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency — translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost of the security were
recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the carrying
amount were recognised in other comprehensive income, and

o for other monetary and non-monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale — in OCI.

When securities classified as available-for-sale were sold, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in OCI were reclassified
to profit or loss as gains and other losses from investment securities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.12Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.125Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017 (Continued)

(b)  Impairment

The Group assessed at the end of each reporting period whether there
was objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
was impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets was
impaired and impairment losses were incurred only if there was
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) had an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that could be
reliably estimated. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost was considered an indicator that the assets
are impaired.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss was measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that had
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset was reduced and the
amount of the loss was recognised in profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment had a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss was the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
could measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreased and the decrease could be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in Note 22.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.13Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

2.14Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as impairment
losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the same line item.

Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade
receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade receivables was assessed
based on the incurred loss model. Individual receivables which were
known to be uncollectible were written off by reducing the carrying
amount directly. Other receivables were assessed collectively to
determine whether there was objective evidence that an impairment
had been incurred but not yet been identified. For these receivables the
estimated impairment losses were recognised in a separate provision
for impairment. Receivables for which an impairment provision was
recognised were written off against the provision when there was no
expectation of recovering additional cash.

2.15Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call
with banks.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.17 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to
the Group prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.19Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

2.20Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

220.1Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.20Current and deferred income tax (continued)

2.202Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.21 Employee benefits

221.1Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and
accumulating sick leave that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the
balance sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits

2212Post-employment obligations
The Group’s post-employment schemes are defined contribution
pension plans.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

2.22 Share-based payment

The fair value of options granted is recognised as an employee benefit
expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

o including any market performance conditions (for example, the
Company’s share price),

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time
period), and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees to hold shares for a specified
period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.23Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the contract
and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the asset may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the asset is
transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer,

° creates and enhances an asset (for example, work in progress)
that the customer controls as the Group performs, or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the asset. The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on one of the following
methods that best depict the Group’s performance in satisfying the
performance obligation:

° direct measurements of the value to the customer of the goods
or services transferred to date relative to the remaining goods or
services promised under the contract, or

o the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.24Earnings per share

2.24.1Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year.

2242Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination
of basic earnings per share to take into account:

° the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.25Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are not transferred to the Group, as lessee, are classified as
operating leases (Note 34). Payments made under operating leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the Group,
on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the
end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.27 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.28Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in the net fair
value gains/(losses) on these assets, see Note 7 below.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned from
financial assets that are held for cash management purposes (Note 11).

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets
that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

This note explains the Group’s exposure to financial risks and how
these risks could affect the Group’s future financial performance.

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and concentration risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

3.1.1Market risk

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign
currency transactions, primarily with respect to the HK dollar (‘HK$”)
and US dollar (“US$”). Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is not the functional currency of the
relevant Group entity. The risk is measured through a forecast of highly
probable HK$ and US$ transactions.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk as at 31 December 2018
and 2017, expressed in RMB, was as follows:

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HILFE

MEREER

7 B 5 [ st 7S S 1 T B O B S R BR A B
ZERBRIAEEARERROPBER
R

3.1 B EREZX

AEBMEBEEERZBMEEAR:
miZERR(EEMNERR RERER
RFEMNXRER)  FEAR RBHER
RRkERRR AEBERRERERE
ERETRESHTENTHARE R
NWBEHARERBRANBETHE
@

31115 E &
(a) BB
AEETEHRATSABBET(BE))
RET(ERDNIEXSELAR -
SNERBE A RREER S R IENE
BERNEEEHENCRRAEER
BE - BRUBESHGTENETRET
BT DB -

AEEBRZZE—N\FEZZTE—tF+=
A=+ BAESMINERBR(AARE
27D
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—E-N\F+=ZH=+—-H ZE—tF+=-A=+—H

HK$ uss$ HKS us$

BT E BT =

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

e ARMTT AR¥ETT AR®TT ARETRT

Cash and cash equivalents IR & RIREEHED 27 42,417 5,611 33,053 1,096
Unlisted convertible bond 3k 1 7] # % (& % 24 8,762 - — —
Unlisted investment funds 3 F i EH & 24 - 148,278 — —
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H fh & Ut 318 22 1,886 - 849 —
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1.1Market risk (Continued)

(@  Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As most of the Group’s HK$ and US$ denominated financial
instruments are held by the Group’s subsidiaries whose functional
currency is HK$, the Group primarily exposed to changes in HK$/RMB
exchange rates. The sensitivity of other comprehensive income to
changes in the exchange rates arising mainly from HK$ and US$
denominated financial instruments is as follows:
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AEBMABSUBTRETHENS R
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REHMEXREE - A2 ERARTE
KANBTRETSHENSBIAESR
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-ZA=+—-BLEE

—E-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT

Impact on other comprehensive income H i 2 EKA 8957 &
HK$/RMB exchange rate — increase 10% B A BREAE R — EIN10% 20,696 3,500
HK$/RMB exchange rate — decrease 10% B ARBRER — /B 10% (20,696) (3,500)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings.
Borrowings with variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is offset by cash held at variable rates. Borrowings with
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. For the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s borrowings
were denominated in RMB. The Group did not use any interest rate
swap to hedge its interest rate risk during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, RMB282,600,000 (2017: RMB398,545,000)
of the Group’s borrowings were at variable interest rates. The interest
rates and the terms of repayment of the Group’s borrowings are
disclosed in Note 29. As at 31 December 2018, if the interest rates on
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, profit before income tax would have been
RMB2,826,000 lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)
(b)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, RMB285,000,000 (2017: RMB535,000,000)
of the Group’s borrowings were at fixed interest rates. The fair value of
these fixed interest rate borrowings estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate for similar
financial instruments available to the Group is RMB289,463,000 (2017:
RMB564,925,000).

3.1.2 Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash
flows of debt instruments carried at amortised cost and at FVPL, and
deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to customers,
including outstanding receivables.

In respect of deposit with banks, the Group mitigates its exposure to
credit risk by placing deposits with financial institutions with established
credit rating. Given the high credit rating of the banks, management
does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
the information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates. Normally, the
Group does not obtain any security from its customers. Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in Note 22.

The Group’s investment in debt instruments are regularly monitored for
credit deterioration by management. Loans to related parties are
considered to be low risk investments. Quantitative disclosures in
respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from loans to third
parties are set out in Note 23.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated balance sheet after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does not provide any
financial guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMEREEHE @)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B REREZE @
3.1.3 Liquidity risk 3.1.357% B 14 & B
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their AEFFERZCEATBEEAINREE
own cash management, including the short-term investments of cash B AERcBRNEHREARESE
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, B RETEHIRSER EBETEL
subject to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company when ETEBKINEEELKARNINESE
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The HE NEBRERETHERRHE
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor liquidity requirements and its EERULEBEERZENETIB R UE
compliance with the loan covenants, to ensure that it maintains REFATRSHEUREEZRITHE
sufficient reserve of cash and adequate borrowing facilities from major IR A CEEAREEHERREN
banks to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. mEEEEK-
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities of the TRIWKAAKEER-_E—NFR_ZT—
Group’s financial liabilities as st 31 December 2018 and 2017, which +E+-_A=+—HHNEREESRT
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest ANEEBER  WWREASLOKRTIRY
payments computed using contractual rates or, if variable, based on HeRhe(BREBEDTOFRY (ER
current rates at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date RF B )R EBARNIRITHXR:TE
the Group is required to pay: B9 F B AT RO DA R A & [ A] 4 SR R
T BBRIERDITERE
Within 1 year or 1 year to 2 years to 5 years
on demand 2 years 5 years above Total
R
BEERX —FEWMF WMEERF EFERE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARBFT ARETRT ARBTT ARETT
As at 31 December 2018 R=-Z—N\&E+=-H=+-—H
Borrowings g’E 68,707 318,780 108,279 187,034 682,800
Trade and other payables & 5 & £ # & (< Z0 18 82,080 - - - 82,080
150,787 318,780 108,279 187,034 764,880
As at 31 December 2017 W=Z—+F+=-A=+—H
Borrowings TE 341,609 87,120 465,991 218,222 1,112,942
Trade and other payables & 5 K E 4 & (< 708 187,481 — - — 187,481
529,090 87,120 465,991 218,222 1,300,423

3.1.4 Concentration risk

For the year ended 31 December 2018, 76% (2017: 83%) of the total
revenue of the Group is derived from two customers (2017: two
customers), of which one is from smart energy business and the other
is from public infrastructure construction business (Note 5(a)).

3145 @b
HE2_Z—N\F+_A=Z=+—HLHF
B AEBRRBRUBANTR(ZE—LF:
83%) REBERREBRABRER?
B (M5 MMEERF(ZE—+F
MERF) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management

The objectives of capital management of the Group are safeguarding its
ability to continue as a going concern to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintaining an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of gearing ratio, which is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash.
Total capital is calculated as total equity plus net debt.

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy level
to support its business. The main strategies adopted by the Group
include, without limitations, reviewing future cash flow requirements
and the ability to meet the debt repayment schedules when they fall
due, maintaining a reasonable level of borrowing facilities from banks
and adjusting investment plans and financing plans, if necessary, to
ensure that the Group has a reasonable level of capital to support its
business. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the gearing ratio was
calculated as follows:

3
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EREEERRARRSEBYRER
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FE e
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BAa(nmEE) UBRAEEHEAA
BKRKIMEAZRFEB - R_T—N\F
rFZE—ttF+_A=+—HHEER
RIF :

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2018 2017

ZE-N\F T LF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

Total borrowings EEEE 567,600 933,545
Less: cash and cash equivalents BWRERREEEY (162,917) (107,022
restricted cash PR H13R & (1,219) (1,679)

Net debt B F 5 403,464 824,844
Total equity W 4R R 1,479,949 774,801
Total capital PN 1,883,413 1,599,645
Gearing ratio BELE 21.4% 51.6%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

3.3.1 Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
assets measured at the end of the reporting periods on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

° Level 1: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs —
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

° Level 2: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs — observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.
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BUHTMET -
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° Level 3: Fair value measured using significant unobservable ° FE=HEE: AT EFBEEETHE
inputs. FBEEABSEHE

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair
value hierarchy levels at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s assets measured at
fair value are as follows:

AEEZEBRERN RS B ARES
FEERNEARES -

N

TREBIWAEEAEZR -_Z—N\F+=A
=+—-HBF-ZT—+tF+-A=+—8H

WAFEFENEE
Level 2 Level 3
BEZR B=R
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz AR®FRT ARBTFT
As at 31 December 2018 R-EB—-NE+=-HA=+—8H
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss &\ F B2 8 A A & 82 A
Bamh s B EE
Unlisted investment funds FEMBERES 24 148,278 —
Unlisted convertible bond LA E 24 8,762 —
Put option over shares in associate b= A AR D R4 A 24 — 7,403
As at 31 December 2017 R-EB—+ttHE+=-HA=+—8H
Investment properties wEWE 9,000 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3.3.1 Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group did not measure any financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value on a non-recurring basis as at 31 December 2018 or 2017.
There were no transfers among level 1, level 2 and level 3 for recurring
fair value measurements during the year ended 31 December 2018 or
2017.

(@) Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

For unlisted investment funds, the Group obtains net asset value of the

funds (i.e. the fair value of the portfolio included in the funds) from the

fund manager.

For unlisted convertible bond, the Group obtains independent
valuations. At the end of the reporting period, the Directors of the
Company updated their assessment of the fair value of the convertible
bond, taking into account the most recent independent valuation
results. The fair value of the convertible bond has been derived using
the binomial model. The key inputs in this model include the profitability
of the issuer and the possibility of a successful initial public offering of
the issuer.

(b) Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair
value measurements

The Group owns a put option over the equity of its associate,
Shandong Hailifeng Clean Energy Joint Stock Co., Ltd. (Note 18(q)),
which permits the Group to put its shares in the associate back to the
controlling shareholder of the associate at a predetermined price if the
associate fails to fuffill its performance commitment to the Group. The
amount receivable under the option on exercise is recognised at the
present value of the redemption amount as at 31 December 2018.

3.3.2 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at

cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values

as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 since either the instruments are

short-term in nature or the interest receivable/payable is close to

current market rates.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed
below.

(a) Business combinations

Accounting for acquisitions require the Group to allocate the cost
of acquisition to specific assets acquired and liabilities assumed
based on their fair values at the date of acquisition. The Group
has undertaken processes to identify all assets and liabilities
acquired, including acquired intangible assets. Judgements
made in identifying all acquired assets, determining the estimated
fair value assigned to each class of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, as well as assets’ useful lives, could materially impact
the calculation of goodwill and depreciation and amortisation
charges in subsequent periods. Estimated fair values are based
on information available near the acquisition date and on
expectations and assumptions that have been deemed
reasonable by management. Determining the estimated useful
lives of tangible and intangible assets acquired also requires
judgements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Estimation of the fair value of certain
financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key
assumptions used see Note 3.3.1.

Estimation of the useful lives of property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for the property, plant and
equipment with reference to the estimated periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of
these assets. Management will revise the depreciation charges
where useful lives are different to previously estimated, or it will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment for trade receivables

The loss allowances for trade receivables are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. As
at 31 December 2018, a provision of RMB18,652,000 was
provided for impairment of trade receivables (2017:
RMB3,791,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e) Income taxes and deferred taxes

(f)

There are certain transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will be reflected in the income
tax expense and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made. In addition, the realisation of income
tax assets is dependent on the Group’s ability to generate
sufficient taxable income in the future years to utilise income tax
benefits and tax loss carry-forwards. Deviations from estimates
of the future profitability or the income tax rate would result in
adjustments to the value of income tax assets and liabilities that
could have a significant effect on the income tax expenses.

Withholding taxes arising from the
distributions of dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
according to the relevant tax jurisdictions is subject to judgement
on the timing of the payment of the dividends. The Group
considered it's probable that the profits of the subsidiary in the
PRC will not be distributed in the foreseeable future, therefore no
withholding taxes were provided.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HILFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 W&E %33 E

(@) Revenue (@ W=

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTF T
Continuing operations: FEEE S
Sales of home photovoltaic system and HEPAXKESRR
provision of smart energy service REHEERRRAE 465,470 594,268
Sales of electricity HEEN 63,788 61,680
Public infrastructure construction business NEEZES (ME21)
(Note 21) 179,235 241,954
708,493 897,902
Discontinued operations: BRIEER
Sales of doors and windows HEME - 15,713
Provision of construction and engineering REER R TERSE
services - 110
- 15,823
708,493 913,725
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s transactions with HEzE-_Z—-N\NF+=ZAR=+—8H
two customers (2017: two customers) have exceeded 10% of the HEFE AEEEMEERL(ZZ
Group’s total revenue respectively, of which one customer is relating —tF WMB)ETHR S D AME
to the sales of home photovoltaic system and the other is relating to AEBKEATEIONA - Efh—
public infrastructure construction business. For the year ended 31 EEPHIEEPAXAREAGAER
December 2018, revenue derived from these two customers MBaE—RENEERXEKER - &
amounted to RMB539,716,000 (2017: RMB741,035,000). 2-FE-NF+=-A=+—81

FE RAZMEEPMKZEEE
A AR #539,716,0007T (=& —+
F: AR®741,035,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 W&E Y33 Eum

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (b) 2 EBHKE

160

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines (products and services). In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following two reportable segments:

o Smart energy business, and

° Public infrastructure construction business.

Public infrastructure construction business refers to the public
infrastructure construction and the related preliminary investment
and post-construction operation management business of the
Baoding Donghu Project.

No geographical information is shown as substantially all of the
assets and liabilities, revenue and profit from the operations of
the Group are derived from the business activities in the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HILFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 W&E Y33 Eum

(Continued)
(c) Segment results, assets and liabilities (c) 7H%E BEERERE
Public
infrastructure
Smart energy  construction
business business Others Total
BERREL QABRERER Hit Fy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT AREFTRT ARET
For the year ended BZ-Z2-N\E+=A
31 December 2018 =t+—-HLEE
Revenue from external customers HINEP W TS 529,258 179,235 — 708,493
Reportable segment profit/(loss) after tax 7] £ 5 5 2k 1%
M, (&) 130,844 15,107 (37,450) 108,501
Finance income (Note 11) BEMA (FTEE11) 3,722 1,855 1,753 7,330
Finance expenses (Note 11) BMEREZ (MaE11) (16,638) - - (16,638)
Depreciation and amortisation (Note 8)  #7 & F # 4 (P35 8) (34,894) (84) (845) (35,823)
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZZ-N\F
+=ZA=+—H
Reportable segment assets AERSHEE 1,561,178 463,048 574,618 2,508,844
Additions to non-current assets during £ RRE R B EE
the year 74,886 - 1,633 76,519
Reportable segment liabilities AE®RNPBEE 758,314 360,393 188 1,118,895
For the year ended BZz-Z2—-t&5+=A
31 December 2017 =+—BALEE
Revenue from external customers HINE P 655,948 241,954 15,823 913,725
Reportable segment profit/(loss) after tax 7] £ ¥k 75 4 Bk Ft &
A/ (E18) 119,185 31,595 (15,292) 135,488
Finance income (Note 11) BEMA (FTEE11) 110 305 195 610
Finance expenses (Note 11) BER S (aE11) (15,199) (4,646) - (19,845)
Depreciation and amortisation (Note 8)  #7 & & # $ (Fft 37 8) (26,848) (84) (145) (27,077)
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tHF
+t=ZA=t-H
Reportable segment assets AERDBEE 1,699,202 753,608 144,820 2,597,630
Additions to non-current assets during £ RRE R B EE
the year 269,077 — 219 269,296
Reportable segment liabilities A2HnHERE 1,154,577 667,918 334 1,822,829
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 W&E Y33 Eum

(Continued)
(d) Reconciliations of reportable segment d AE2H D HU =S BRH
revenue, profit after tax, assets and liabilities ‘_BRndN BEEREEY
BR
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—HILEE
2018 2017
—E-NE  —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREEF T
Revenue I 2
Reportable segment revenue Al 2o U 708,493 913,725
Elimination of discontinued operations B R IEET - (15,823)
Consolidated turnover MEEER 708,493 897,902
Profit after tax BRBi& BRI
Reportable segment profit after tax A2/ H EBRBIERER 108,501 135,488
Elimination of discontinued operations HEHERIEER - 238
Consolidated profit for the year from REFBEREELH
continuing operations FREZEE G 108,501 135,726
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AIEHoHAEE 2,598,844 2,597,630
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 8 9 20 8 e U F R (429,196) (645,706)
Consolidated total assets RAEEERT 2,169,648 1,951,924
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities AEHRoHAEE 1,118,895 1,822,829
Elimination of inter-segment payables K 85 5> 30 18 FE A~ FE (429,196) (645,706)
Consolidated total liabilities FEBEEHE 689,699 1,177,123
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6 OTHER INCOME

6 HkA
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F—\E+-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—-HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AR¥TFT
Government grants R % B 2,107 _
7 OTHER GAINS — NET 7 HthlkR B8

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEF T
Net fair value losses on financial assets at FVPL ~ 1Z A F{Ei & B &8st A
(Note 24) BEamemEERATEER
528 (MY 5E24) (9,101) -
Interest income on non-current financial assets at 2 A F{EH 8 B H & &t AlExE
FvPL #3Em B & R E E RS WA 350
Fair value gain on put option over shares B QA IR ROE B A A
in associate g 7,403 -
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) &5 (F518) #5 1,005 (1,061)
Net gains on disposal of property, LEME BELRRBREFHE
plant and equipment 730 —
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HENB QR MK 962 —
Bargain purchase gain BRI GEAlES - 7,943
Fair value gains on investment properties REMENFEKZE - 2,125
Others EAfh (138) 511
1,211 9,518
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 BMEHSMMAX
The cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and administrative SEBERPEEKRK HERDHEEA
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are listed as T RITHRESEEEEI DT

follows by nature:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tf

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT T AREEF T

Changes in inventories of finished goods Bl MM FEEE) 366,675 410,044

Subcontract costs SO NN 76,595 201,053

Employee benefit expense (Note 10) B B@RFIAZ (FE10) 58,675 45,654

Depreciation and amortisation T8 N B 35,823 27,077

Transportation and travelling expenses BN ERMAX 9,220 11,491

Rental expenses HemxX 4,384 6,743

Promotion and advertising expenses HENMNESRX 4,642 6,496

Consulting and legal fees BHRREREER 7,954 5,852

Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 Bl = BA

— Audit services — &R 2,500 2,400

— Non-audit services —EEZRE - -

Write-downs of inventories (Note 20) 7 & BB A (M 5£20) 255 -

Bad debt provisions AR - 3,791

Others HA 9,319 9,530
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution HEKRAR HERDHMXZ

expenses and administrative expenses RITHRHAZ 858 576,042 730,131
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F—\E+-A=+—HILFE

9 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL 9O EMEIERERE

ASSETS
Year ended 31 December
BEZ+t-A=1+—HLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBEF T
Loss allowance for trade receivables (Note 22) Z SRR IEE B EE (WiEe2) 14,861 -
Loss allowance for financial assets at amortised IR #E84p AEt EM S R A E
cost (Note 23) 5 18 B (M9 3% 23) 900 -
15,761 -
10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 10 EREFIAX
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—-HBLEE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F T+
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFTT
Wages, salaries and allowances TE  Frek#ERK 41,575 38,169
Post employment benefits (a) BEBEET @) 6,693 6,153
Equity-settled share-based payment expense (b) 24 &5 45 & AR XA HY
FIEF X (b) 10,407 1,332
58,675 45,654
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

(@)

(b)

Post employment benefits

Pursuant to the relevant labor rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal government authorities whereby
the Group is required to make contributions to the Schemes at
the rate of 19% and 20% of the eligible employees’ salaries. The
local government authorities are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group has no other material obligations for the payment of
pension benefits associated with the Schemes beyond the
annual contributions described above.

The Group has joined a Mandatory Provident Fund (‘MPF”)
Scheme for its employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising
from the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represent contributions payable to the funds by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

Equity settled share-based payment

On 26 January, 11 May and 14 September 2018, the Company
announced to grant 36,441,291, 10,140,000 and 66,645,000
share options (the “Options”), respectively, under its share
option scheme adopted on 22 November 2011. The Options
entitled the eligible participants to subscribe for up to a total of
113,226,291 new shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company. The expense arising from share-based payment
transactions recognised during the year as part of employee
benefit expense was RMB10,407,000.
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued) 10 EREFAZm

(c) Five highest paid individuals (c) AfuESEHF AL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Bz N\F+-_A=+—H
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 include three (2017: ITEE  AEEBWNAUESHAT
three) Directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis REE=N(ZE—tF: =)=
shown in Note 39. The emoluments payable to the remaining two EOHFSFREME9HM M &
(2017: two) individuals during the year are as follows: BN (ZZE—EF: ML) FREF
BHIE R T

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBF T

Wages, salaries and allowances T4 - #a MR 1,213 1,159

Social security costs HERER A 250 165

Equity-settled share-based payment expense 1% 1 %5 45 & LA IR 15 2 1~ 89

IBR X 851 —

2,314 1,324

The emoluments of the two (2017: two) individuals fell within the ZMU(ZE—tF M) &S
following bands: ATHEF B R T #0S

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—-HLEE

2018 2017

—2-N\F  ZB—t%E

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AH AE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 % % 1,000,000% 7T - 2
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,000% 7T Z 2,000,000/% 7T 2 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

11 FINANCE EXPENSES — NET 11 MERAX — 38

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F  —E—tf
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Finance income & WA
Interest income from financial assets SREERERSER
held for cash management purposes (Note 23) 2 F| & U A (Ffi 53 23) 6,863 —
Interest income from bank deposits HRATF R B M A 467 610
Total interest income PSRN L 7,330 610
Finance expenses & B s
Interest expense incurred BEELEFERAX (40,281) (60,802)
Less: interest expense capitalised in the cost of &« 5T AEE A #75E TA A
contract work HERNEFBHAEZ 23,645 40,961
Net interest expense FE = F58 (16,636) (19,841)
Other finance expenses HihmERAX (23] (4)
Finance expenses — net REMY —F8 (9,308) (19,235)
12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12 R RBX
Year ended 31 December
BE+t=-A=1+—HILEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEF T
Current income tax BERFTIS i 13,101 22,365
Deferred income tax RIEATE (2,715) 37)

10,386 22,328
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HILFE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12 8RB
The reconciliation between the income tax on the Group’s profit before RNREBEBBIENNTER B AEB
tax and the theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax REAERBRNNNEZTHEFESED
rates applicable to the profit of consolidated entities are as follows: BT BEAEENT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\E Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBEF T
Profit before income tax bR BT 15 8 A& F1 118,887 158,054
At applicable statutory tax rates BEREERE ‘+’ A E 29,722 39,514
Effect of preferential tax rates BERNENTE (16,708) (20,449)
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax WEBAELEHMEHEE
asset was recognised KB IEE R 7,588 8,567
Previously unrecognised tax losses WEARNFEERERBEEE
recouped to reduce current tax expense (AR BN ERFE T R S2) (5,007) -
Recoverable income tax of public infrastructure AR 2 75 a] W @ AT 15 5
construction business (4,447) (3,318)
Research and development tax credit EE EHBER (762) —
Bargain purchase gain not subject to tax BARB M ZE W E RS - (1,986)
Tax charge B 10,386 22,328
The expiry date of the tax effect of unused tax losses is as follows: NEBHEBENT BT ENEH A H
LN

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\HF —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETF T

Year 2020 —EC-EHFE - 1,155
Year 2021 —E-—FE 98 3,950
Year 2022 B FE 8,567 8,567
Year 2023 —EC=FF 7,588 —
16,253 13,672

EESNESRIERERAT 1R 2018 169



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12 Fr SRS

170

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
these jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong profit tax was made as the Group does
not have assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

For the year end 31 December 2018, the statutory tax rate of entities
registered in the PRC is 25% (2017: 25%), except for certain
subsidiaries entitled to tax exemption or preferential rates.

On 30 November 2017, Hebei LongiTech Cloud Energy Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Hebei Cloud Energy”) was certified as a High-Tech
Enterprise of Hebei Province, effective from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2019, during which Hebei Cloud Energy enjoys a preferential
income tax rate of 15%.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Tianjin Haitian Fangyuan
Energy Saving Technology Co., Ltd. (“Haitian Fangyuan”) was
certified as a High-Tech Enterprise of Tianjin City, effective from 23
November 2018 to 23 November 2021, during which Haitian Fangyuan
enjoys a preferential income tax rate of 15%.

Subsidiaries operating solar power plants are exempted from corporate
income tax for the first three years and are entitled to a 50% tax
reduction for the subsequent three years (=% =3F¥) since their
respective first revenue-generating years.

From 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2022, Hoboksar Mongol
Autonomous County Sifang Dianjin Energy Co., Ltd. is exempted from
corporate income tax for the first two years and are entitled to a 50%
tax reduction for the subsequent three years (FR % = J5iK).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z—Z— \FE+=-A=1+—HIEE

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 BEREF
(@) Basic earnings per share (@ BEREXRER
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit EREANBFHIEAANREES A
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average FEERIBRUAREEDRITER
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. By INAEF BT E -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
Profit from continuing operations attributable AN A Al #E A A FE(R 148
to owners of the Company (RMB’000) REEBERH
(ANREETIT) 107,720 135,435
Loss from discontinued operations attributable 7x A T A A JE(H B 42 1E
to owners of the Company (RMB’000) EHHNEER(ARETIT) - (238)
107,720 135,197
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 3% 17 & 38 R% Al # 7 15 &
in issue (thousands) (FR) 1,311,614 791,225
Basic earnings per share (RMB) FREXRBR(ARET)
— Continuing operations —RHEKEED 0.0821 0.1712
— Discontinued operations —BRILER - (0.0003)
0.0821 0.1709
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13 BB m
(b) Diluted earnings per share b) ERESER

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted SREERNNDIRABREERFT
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume BETHELTRARMARE ZEIT
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. During the year ETEROMEFHEAE - HE—
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company had TZ-NFEERZT—tF+=-A=
outstanding share options. The resulting number of shares issued T—HIEFEE NAREBRITHE
for no consideration is included in the weighted average number BRE A EEBRTHOROEE
of ordinary shares as the denominator for calculating diluted Thst AT EAE INRE L 8 ERE
earnings per share. EEREERMNGMANSE -

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F  —F—t#F

Profit from continuing operations attributable 78 A T B A JE{h 15 4&

to owners of the Company (RMB’000) £ TR

(AREFT) 107,720 135,435

Loss from discontinued operations attributable 7 2 &4 B A JEAE B 4% 1F

to owners of the Company (RMB’000) E¥BEHERARETT) - (238)

107,720 135,197

Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 2% 77 & 3@ i% fn 4 ¥ 15 &

in issue (thousands) (FR) 1,311,614 791,225
Effect of deemed issue of shares under the [BAERIBEAR A

Company’s share option scheme for no AR 2 ;BT

consideration (thousands) A0 B 2 (FR%) 1,557 1,352
Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary & i% 1 58 22 K| i) I 3 f%

shares for diluted earnings per share KR ME T

(thousands) (F1%) 1,313,171 792,577
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) FRBEERF(ARET)

— Continuing operations —RHEREES 0.0820 0.1709

— Discontinued operation —BRILER - (0.0003)

0.0820 0.1706
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F—\E+-A=+—HILFE

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13 SREH @
(b) Diluted earnings per share (Continued) b) EREBFER @
The number of shares issued for no consideration is the number mERTHRMNEE BHBETE
of shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of BRERERITHRDEE @ BE
the share option less the number of shares that could have been AR ERBAEBEIRR AN FE
issued at fair value (determined as the average market price per ER2EERIFITEmMSE) RE
share for the year) for the same total proceeds. BITHORMEBBEEEL -
14 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 14 TR T ihEHE
RIGHTS

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—-HLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT AREF T

At 1 January n—H—H 1,634 8,240
Additions INE 3,077 —
Disposals of subsidiaries HEH B AR - (6,163)
Amortisation 8 (457) (443)
At 31 December Bn+=—A=+—8 4,254 1,634
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 MK -WERRME
Furniture,
Plant and Motor fixtures and Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
HE #£8
BF BEREM "E kR EEIR Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARBTRT ARETRT AR®FT ARBTT ARETRT
Cost A
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—A—H 19,468 247,113 2,592 8,776 9,588 287,537
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W BB I B A A 14,210 208,239 3 2,151 276 224,879
Additions nNE 140 4,348 1,551 15,763 6,744 28,546
Transfers i - 309 - 3,216 (3,525) -
Transfers to investment properties & Z R E W E (8,051) — - — — (8,051)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMERR (9,345) 677) (608) (1,417) (4,083) (16,130)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=-RA=+—H 16,422 459,332 3,538 28,489 9,000 516,781
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-NE—-A—H 16,422 459,332 3,538 28,489 9,000 516,781
Acquisitions of subsidiaries 15 5% B B8 8 B (ME 3£ 36)

(Note 36) — 8,735 237 59 74 9,105
Additions nE 564 32,538 620 5,375 13,016 52,113
Transfers i — 18,251 - 3,149 (21,400 -
Disposals of subsidiaries HEWB QT - (1,189) (1,120) (8,463) (103) (10,875)
Disposals of assets HERE - (4,130) (224) (8,271) - (12,625)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NF+ZA=+—-H 16,986 513,537 3,051 20,338 587 554,499
Accumulated depreciation Rt E
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—Hf—H 2,865 10,663 1,221 962 - 15,711
Charge for the year FRXH 333 15,092 504 8,878 - 24,807
Transfers to investment properties  EE E iR B ¥ (1,176) - - - - (1,176)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEWMB QT (1,730) (315) (585) (280) - (2,910)
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+FE+ZA=+-H 292 25,440 1,140 9,560 - 36,432
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NF—A—H 292 25,440 1,140 9,560 - 36,432
Charge for the year FAZE 794 22,152 594 6,230 - 29,770
Disposals of subsidiaries HEWRB QR - (370) (380) (2,096) - (2,846)
Disposals of assets HERE — (100) (60) (7,156) - (7,316)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF+ZA=+—-H 1,086 47,122 1,204 6,538 - 56,040
Net book amount REFEE
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NFE+ZA=+-H 15,900 466,415 1,757 13,800 587 498,459
At 31 December 2017 R=ZT—tF+=-A=1+—H 16,130 433,892 2,398 18,929 9,000 480,349
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HILFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 3% - BB B il )

(Continued)

(@) For the year ended 31 December 2018, depreciation of (@ IE ARK2,.877,000C(=%F —
RMB22,877,000 (2017: RMB14,012,000) has been charged to 44 AR¥14,012,0007T) 5 A8
cost of sales and RMB6,893,000 (2017: RMB10,795,000) to ERA - A RITE ARB,893,000
administrative expenses. T(ZZE—+F : AR%10,795,000

TO)RTATTHA X »

b REMHABERAEH R-2F-N

(o)  Pursuant to the relevant pledge contracts, certain machineries of F+-_A=+—BETHREEAE
the solar power plants of the Group with a carrying amount of A K #303,731,0007C B KX B5 8¢
RMB303,731,000 (2017: RMB350,730,000) were pledged as BHEREBREREAAEEE
security for the Group’s borrowings as at 31 December 2018 (Note THER(ZE—LHF: ARK
29(a)). 350,730,0007T) (Fff 5E29(a)) °

2 A
16 |WELEE
16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill Software Patent Total
BmE B =R st

RMB'0O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBETT ARBTIT ARBTIT ARBTRT

At 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—+tHFE+=-A=+—8H

Cost B AKX 9,508 30,801 — 40,309
Accumulated amortisation ety — (1,834) — (1,834)
Net book amount BREEE 9,508 28,967 — 38,475

Year ended 31 December HZ=-ZT—-—N\H&+=-BF=+—H

2018 IEEE
Opening net book amount IR F1E 9,508 28,967 — 38,475
Acquisitions of subsidiaries 4% 8 Fff B8 2 &) (Bt 5£36)

(Note 36) 366 — 4,038 4,404
Additions NE — 7,820 — 7,820
Amortisation charge By — (5,428) (168) (5,596)
Disposals of subsidiaries HE M B A Al (6,613) (18,792) — (25,405)
Closing net book amount i 5 Bk [ /& & 3,261 12,567 3,870 19,698
At 31 December 2018 R-—ZE—-—NE+=-HA=+—H
Cost R AR 3,261 17,240 4,038 24,539
Accumulated amortisation X — (4,673) (168) (4,841)
Net book amount REFE 3,261 12,567 3,870 19,698
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16 | T E w)

176

For the year ended 31 December 2018, amortisation of RMB5,587,000
(2017: RMB1,788,000) has been charged to administrative expenses
and RMB9,000 to cost of sales (2017: RMB39,000 to selling and
distribution expenses).

The Group’s goodwill of RMB686,000 was recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as a result of the acquisition of Gao Bei
Dian City Guangshuo New Energy Co., Ltd. during the year ended 31
December 2017.

The Group’s goodwill of RMB366,000 was recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as a result of the acquisition of Tianjin
Haitian Fangyuan Energy Saving Technology Co., Ltd. during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The Group’s goodwill of RMB8,822,000 arose from the acquisition of
Hebei Fakai Energy Development Co., Ltd. (“Fakai”) and its two wholly-
owned subsidiaries, Hebei Fakai Scientific Power Consumption
Services Co., Ltd. (“Scientific Power Consumption”) and Hebei
Fakai Energy Monitoring Services Co., Ltd. (“Energy Monitoring”)
during the year ended 31 December 2016. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group sold its 100% shares in Scientific Power
Consumption and Energy Monitoring, which resulted in a disposal of
goodwill of RMB6,613,000, based on the respective recoverable
amount of goodwill attributable to Fakai, Scientific Power Consumption
and Energy Monitoring, using the value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use free cash flow projections based on the financial
forecast prepared by management covering a seven-year period. The
key assumptions, revenue growth rate and discount rate used in the
value-in-use calculations as at 31 December 2018, are as follows:

LN R
BRI AT IR X

Revenue growth rate
Pre-tax discount rate

Revenue growth rate is based on current industry trends, including
inflation forecasts. The before-tax discount rate of 13% reflects specific
risks relating to Fakai, Scientific Power Consumption and Energy
Monitoring.

No impairment is recognised based on the management’s impairment
assessment of goodwill as at 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HILFE

17 SUBSIDIARIES 17 B AT
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December TRWER=ZZE—NFE+_A=+—8
2018: MESHBEAR
Equity
Place of interest held

Name of company incorporation Registered capital by the Group Principal activities

NCIECR = i B 3L 3 2 ERER AEERERE TEXEK

Hebei Longitech Cloud Energy the PRC RMB300,000,000 100% Smart energy service
Technology Co., Ltd.

AR E R ERRE AR AR + A R #300,000,0007T 100% & E#ERRS

Gao Bei Dian City Guangshuo the PRC RMB125,708,800 100% Operation of solar
New Energy Co., Ltd. power station

SRR BN EEREREERA] H AR #125,708,800 7T 100% &8 K588

Hoboksar Mongol Autonomous County the PRC RMB10,000,000 100% Smart energy service
Sifang Dianjin Energy Co., Ltd.

MhRERE LB RRNTES # AR #10,000,0007T 100% & EZ 2R RS
BEIRAMR A

Hebei Fakai Energy Development the PRC RMB50,000,000 100% Smart energy service
Co., Ltd.

bR RAEEREERA + A R #50,000,0007T 100% 2 Z82RR T

Zhongneng Hexin Longhua County the PRC RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of solar
Solar Power Generation Co., Ltd. power station

FREMEEICFEAIGEEE FE A R 10,000,000 7T 100% & KN5HE
BREFRTA

Tianjin Haitian Fangyuan Energy Saving the PRC RMB111,111,100 55% Smart energy service
Technology Co., Ltd.

REBGRFEESREREMERA A HFE AR#®111,111,1007T 55% BEERRE

Hebei Yuedu City Construction the PRC RMB120,000,000 100% Public infrastructure
Investment Co., Ltd. construction

AL RBEA T R E AR AR # A R #120,000,0007T 100% REREF

Baoding Qiantai Investment Co., Ltd.  the PRC RMB120,000,000 100% Public infrastructure

construction
RELRRERRAR # A R 120,000,000 7T 100% AEEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 18
THE EQUITY METHOD

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December
2018. The entities listed below have share capital consisting solely of
ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group. The country of
incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business, and
the proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of
voting rights held.

RRAEREARDERE

LNTEINAEERZ=ZZFT—-NFE+=A
—t+—HOBE AR THEEHRAE
EREBEKAER BAEEEEZS -
ARAIEMRIHBERLREETEL ¥
BB EREOLEMEZENREE
LE IR R o

% of
ownership Carrying
Name of entity Place of incorporation interest amount
FREEER
AR BB o 3t B BoL IREE
Shandong Hailifeng Clean Energy Joint Stock Co. Ltd. (a) the PRC 40% 68,597
IR BFLERERRND ERAE] H
Longyao (Beijing) Clean Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (b) the PRC 45% 32,990
RO R)ERREREH AR AR [
Total equity-accounted investments RAEDEARNIEEESE 101,587

(a) On 26 July 2018, Beijing Longguang Energy Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Beijing Longguang”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an acquisition agreement with
Shengli Qilfield Lifeng Industrial Group Co., Ltd. (the “vendor”),
an independent third party to the Group, and Shandong Hailifeng
Clean Energy Joint Stock Co., Ltd. (“Hailifeng”), under which
Beijing Longguang acquired 29.41% of the shares of Hailifeng
from the vendor, at the consideration of RMB1. As the capital
contribution in respect of 29.41% shares of Hailifeng had not
been made by the vendor, Beijing Longguang assumed the
capital contribution obligation of RMB30,000,000. Beijing
Longguang has also agreed to contribute an additional capital of
RMB30,000,000 to Hailifeng. Hailifeng and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the operation and management of heating
and cooling supply, production, sales and installation of heat
pump products, geothermal engineering construction and energy
management. Upon completion of this transaction, Beijing
Longguang held 40% of the shares in Hailifeng, and Hailifeng
became an associate of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQU'TY METHOD (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

In accordance with the terms of the acquisition agreement, the
vendor has provided certain performance undertakings to Beijing
Longguang, under which Beijing Longguang has the right to
require the vendor to purchase the 40% of the shares in Hailifeng
if Hailifeng fails to meet performance undertakings (the “Put
Option”).

As Halilifeng has failed to meet the performance target for the
year ended 31 December 2018, Beijing Longguang has elected
to exercise the Put Option. The vendor, Beijing Longguang and
Hailifeng have entered into a repurchase agreement on 29 March
2019, under which the vendor will purchase the 40% of the
shares in Hailifeng from Beijing Longguang for a consideration of
RMB60,000,001. In addition, Beijing Longguang is entitled to a
distributable profit of Hailifeng amounting RMB16,000,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

On 4 June 2018, Baoding Yize New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Baoding Yize”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Beijing Yaohui Hengchang Technology
Partnership Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (“Yaohui”), an
independent third party to the Group, entered into a capital
increase agreement (as amended and supplemented on 4
December 2018) to make additional capital injection to Longyao
(Beijing) Clean Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (‘Longyao”), a
limited company established by Yaohui and Baoding Yize in the
PRC. The capital increase amount of RMB45,000,000 and the
original capital injection amount of RMB90,000,000 shall be paid
by Baoding Yize before 31 December 2021. Longyao is
principally engaged in the provision of technology promotion
services. Baoding Yize has paid RMB33,400,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HILFE

18 FAEGEARNKEmw

(@

(b)

(%)

RBFWEHZENEF BT @I
RESRMEE TEOARE Bt
BN FEREBHARETHE
kR BEABERERESBEIL
RE XA 0B 240% 1) B #
([RBLsmEl -

HREFLE2REBEEZE-_ZT—N\F+
AT BHLEFEREENRE
HBERE L REXEEITEREE
EoBR I REXRENER=
T-hE=ZA-+NABFTOH
e It BB ML RE
BHEHBANERF40%H/KE R
& A A R #:60,000,0017T : I 4
ERBEAERESESNEHEC
E-NE+-_A=+—BILEE
®) 7] 5 B F B A K % 16,000,000
5o

RZZ—NFEXAEA XA RM
BE2EMBRRRE R EHMER
MEERAF(RERE]) EARE
EBVYE= It T REESRE
ERCEBREE) (BB
BEHRHFR _ZE—N\FE+_-_ANW
BT k7)) mERGLR)E
2R EBRAR(TER] (—
fl 2 48 B R JE U 02 70 P B AK 32 MY
ERETARD D RIBINFEE - 1B
e RERER_T_—F+
AT HAAIMNEEEA
R #45,000,0007C & R 2 EFEA
R #90,000,0007T - BB EZ | E
RERMHEEER - RERENE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FORUSING 18 B8 A AENEZTm
THE EQU'TY METHOD (Continued)

() Commitments in respect of associates (c) HEe& N TAIE
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Investment in associate REEE QAR E 101,600 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HILFE

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FORUSING 18 B8 AEMNEZTm
THE EQU'TY METHOD (Continued)

(d) Summarised financial information for (d BEQXRMBKEEBM

associates

The table below provides summarised financial information for REEBEQNRTBEE MMM TR
Group’s associates. The information disclosed reflects the ToWENEERMMERS AR MK
amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant MERPERN TS MIEAEBE(EZ
associates and not the Group’s share of those amounts. They EoHEMNE ZERBREEETTE
have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the Group AIARMAEEERBEDERTED
when using the equity method, including fair value adjustments HAE BHEATEARLRETBE=RE
and modifications for differences in accounting policy. HE R -

As at 31 December 2018
R=ZZ-—NE+=AR=+—8H

Hailifeng Longyao
B 237
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Summarised balance sheet EESEBERHR
Current assets BN & B 275,723 109,003
Non-current assets ERBEE 238,221 35,704
Current liabilities mEEE (306,521) (71,395)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (35,931) -
Net Assets FEE 171,492 73,312
Reconciliation to carrying amounts of REEARREREE
investment in associates H AR
Opening net assets HMFEE 150,000 74,222
Profit/(Loss) for the period BN A, (E8) 21,492 (910)
Closing net assets HRFEE 171,492 73,312
Group’s shares in % A& E R D LI 40% 45%
Group’s shares in RMB REERKMDIAARBIR 68,597 32,990
Carrying amounts of investment in associates ~ FA Bk & N 5138 & BRHEE 68,597 32,990
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQU'TY METHOD (Continued)

18

(e) Reconciliation of the aggregate carrying
amounts from opening to closing balances

The table below provides the reconciliation of the Group’s
aggregate carrying amounts of investments in associates from

BHRESEAENEREmw

e WARHMAREEARESH

A

TREHAFEREERANK
EREHNIEREENREHRY

opening to closing balances: ¥ EE -

RMB’000
AREEF T
At 1 January 2018 R-—ZE—-NE—A—H -
Cost of investments AR AN 93,400

Share of net profit of associates for the year HE_Z—N\F+-_A=+—BItFZE
ended 31 December 2018 Bk & N A B 4B A ) BB 8,187
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NE+=-A=+—H 101,587

19 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 19
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s other non-current

assets represent the recoverable value-added tax that is expected to

be utilised after one year.

H it IF K B B E

RZE-—NEFR-_ZE—+tF+=-A=+
— B AEBMHEMIETE E E T8
R—FREBNSFENGER#EBH
@o

20 INVENTORIES 20 &8
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREEF T
Finished goods EK 24,480 25,815

Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value amounted to
RMB255,000 (2017: nil), which were recognised as an expense during
the year ended 31 December 2018 and included in cost of sales in
profit or loss.

182 LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2018

1715 BB 1 B A R ¥ 255,00070 (=
B RBE-E—NET-A
SH-BULEERRANY  HEHE
WA A B -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F—\E+-A=+—HILFE

21 CONTRACT ASSETS/AMOUNT DUE 21 EHEE BKREFRSH
FROM CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT ITERE
WORK
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profit FTEEE LA N EE#ER

less recognised losses i FR B R E R 1,325,073 1,199,607
Less: progress billings o EE R (865,283) (699,291)
Net balance sheet position for ongoing contracts  ##EA& K RKFEE BB RN 459,790 500,316
Analysed for reporting purpose as: HBEEMMATA -

Amount due from customers for contract work ~ JEREF & 4 T2 %18 - 500,316
Contract assets EREE 459,790 -
Less: long-term portion of contract assets B ARNEERBSS (155,440) —

Contract assets/amount due from customers for RBIEEH & L EE ek

contract work in current assets BEPAHNITIEZRE 304,350 500,316
For the year ended 31 December 2018, total contract revenue RBE-ZE—-\F+ZA=+—HL
recognised is RMB179,235,000 (2017: RMB241,954,000). FE DHRRBAHDUALEAARE

179,285,000 ( Z T —+F: AR
241,954,0007T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22 RARRMEKRKRER

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—8
2018 2017
—E-NF  —F—+t%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Trade receivables 5 ER s 431,790 475,845
Tariff adjustment receivables BEMHMERFIE 45,725 44,785
477,515 520,630
Bad debt provisions SRR (18,652) (3,791)
Total trade receivables B 5 RN BB 458,863 516,839
Notes receivables e =i 300 712
Prepayments AR 6,328 11,980
Other receivables H b B U ZR08 77,995 240,024
543,486 769,555
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HILFE

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continved) 22 % 5 Kt H fth FE U #% 18 ()

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the collection rights of the RZE—N\FR_E—+F+=-A=+
receivables derived from industrial and commercial distributed power —B ImFEsmRAEMRAEESRE
plants and public infrastructure construction business were pledged as o B EDIEFIEALRER
security for the Group’s borrowings (Note 29). &R R (M 5£29) -

Ageing analysis of trade receivables in gross basis is as follows: B RWHRIBEENORR>ITOAT

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+-—H
2018 2017
—ZE2-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREFT
Within 1 year R—FRA 433,029 503,106
Over 1 year —F 44,486 17,524
477,515 520,630
As at 31 December 2018, RMB23,795,000 of trade receivables aged R-_ZE—NFE+_-_A=+—8" Rk —
over one year represents tariff adjustment receivables (2017: FP FiE ARB23,795000t 0 E 5 E
RMB17,524,000), which derives from the subsidies in respect of the WHEAEBMGLEKRZE(ZZE—+
sales of electricity. Applying the expected credit risk model did not F . AR ®17,524,00070) - BB HIA R
result in any loss allowance recognised for tariff adjustment receivables BEHEENEM -ERBHEERRE
as at 31 December 2018 or 31 December 2017. AyEEsnh _—_E2—-\F+-_A=+—H

N —_E—+FF+ A=+ —HWEEH
Bh pE Uy FRIE B T SR B -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22

Trade receivables are due within 180 days from the date of billing. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The loss allowance for trade receivables as at 31 December 2018
and 1 January 2018 was determined as follows:

More than More than
1day 180 days
Current  pastdue pastdue

BEOREMEBEKRZRE@

BoREKREDRERHRLIBORAE
H-RAEEHEEER BRESK
ERBAAGEERRE#A ISP AT
Ko R —NF+_A=+—H
KZZE-NE—-A—-—B BHREWKA
MR EREBETAT

More than More than More than

1.5years 25years 3.5years
pastdue pastdue pastdue Total

AHER RHRE AYEE BHEE BAHEB
I 10 180H 1.5% 25%F 35% @t
As at 31 December 2018 R=Z—N\F
+=A=+-8
Expected loss rate HEEFEEX 0% 5% 10% 20% 50% 100%
Gross carrying amount IREARE
(RMB’000) (AREFT) 79,438 331,661 20,691 - — — 431,790
Loss allowance (RMB'000) 518 &
(AR®F ) — (16,583) (2,089 — — — (18,652)
As at 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\F
—RA—8
Expected loss rate HEETEEX 0% 5% 10% 20% 50% 100%
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB’000) (ANREFT) 400,039 75,806 - - - — 475845
Loss allowance (RMB’000)  [& 18 #¢ &
(ANRBFT) - (3,791) - - - - (8,791)

The loss allowance for trade receivables as at 31 December 2017
reconciles to the opening loss allowance on 1 January 2018 as follows:

RIB—tHF+-_A=+—HNEZE
WHREBEREER T - N\F——
BB ERENHERINT

RMB’000
ARBETT

As at 31 December 2017 — calculated under IAS39 R-ZE—+F+ - A=+—H—LEHE
SR ERIFE AT E 3,791
Amounts restated through opening retained earnings 5t A BB ¥R B B eAm = i & 58 —

Opening loss allowance as at 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\F—-A-BHTEERE
— calculated under IFRS 9 —BEREM RS ENFEIRAE 3,791
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements in the loss allowance of trade receivables were as follows:

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z—Z— \FE+=-A=1+—HIEE

22 ¥ 5K HMEKRE @

BHRUAAERRENESHOT

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T—-RLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

At 1 January n—HA—H 3,791 —
Provision for bad debts EERE S 14,861 3,791
At 31 December R+-_A=+—8H 18,652 3,791

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, trade receivables are analysed as

R-E-NER-_ZTE—+E+-_AF=+

follows: —B BS5EKFEINET
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8
2018 2017
—®E-N\F  —F—t#F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT T AREEF T
Neither overdue nor impaired I 4% 36 B SR B 125,163 444,824
Overdue and impaired BaH kR E 18,652 3,791
Overdue but not impaired B HE R E 333,700 72,015
477,515 520,630

BERNEBERERAMRAR  FiK 2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

22 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continved) 22 % 5 K H fth FE U #% 18 ()

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are REEE 5 & MW IR R E A
denominated in the following currencies: THEEEETE

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFTT
HK$ BT 1,886 849
RMB AR 541,600 768,706
543,486 769,555
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the carrying amount of trade and RZE-NEFRZE—+tF+=ZA=+
other receivables approximated their fair values. —H - B 5 K&E i fEUEIE ) BR (B A

HAFEMBE -

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED 23 REMBFHENERNE
COST E
As at
31 December
2018
R=ZFB-NE
+=—A=+-—H
RMB’000
ARET T
Loans to related parties (a) AT B (@) 111,872
Loans to third parties (b) FE=ZFHEKD) 67,541
Less: loss allowance for financial assets at W RBEKNAFENSREEBERE
amortised cost (900)
178,513
These amounts generally arise from transactions outside the operating ZERBE—MRREAEBLEFHLAIN
activities of the Group. Interests are charged at commercial rates and B 5 o N B 1R 5 R EUE - 5F A&
included in finance income for the year ended 31 December 2018 (Note 2R - N\FEF+ZA=T—HILEFED
11). AhE W AR (1) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED
COST (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s financial assets at amortised
cost were denominated in RMB. Due to the short-term nature of these
financial assets, their carrying amounts are considered to be not
materially different from their fair values.

Movement in the loss allowance of financial assets at amortised cost
was as follows:

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HILFE

23 BREEBBFEHENEMNSE
E (@)
R-E—N\F+-A=+—-0B A&£HE
BB A B MEE AR
B-mREEeRMEENBENE &
BEEERLATELEEALR -
BBERKAS BN REAEERRES
BERMT :

Loans to third

parties

E=ZHERK

RMB’000

ARBFIT

At 1 January 2018 R=ZZF—NF—HF—H -
Loss allowance recognised during the year FAEBRBERE 900
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NFE+ZA=+—H 900

(@  On 20 December 2018, the Company and Longjitaihe Industry
Co., Ltd. (“Longjitaine Industry”), a company controlled by the
controlling shareholder and established in the PRC, entered into
a loan agreement, pursuant to which Heibei Cloud Energy, an
indirect subsidiary of the Company, had provided a loan of
RMB109,650,000 to Longjitaihe Industry. The repayment of
principal amount and interests, at a rate of 9% per annum, are
due on 19 April 2019. As at 31 December 2018, the accrued
interest of the loan amounted to RMB222,000.

On 6 December 2018, Baoding Yize and Longyao, an associate
of the Company, entered into a loan agreement, pursuant to
which Baoding Yize had provided a loan of RMB2,000,000 to
Longyao for the period from 6 December to 5 March 2019. The
interest rate of the loan is 9% per annum.

(b)  As at 31 December 2018, RMB10,000,000 of the Group’s loans
to third parties is pledged by the borrower’s assets and jointly
guaranteed by an independent third party, RMB8,000,000 is
pledged by the equity interest in the borrower and jointly
guaranteed by the borrower’s controlling shareholders and
RMB33,536,000 is pledged by the borrower’s assets, the equity
interest in an independent third-party company and jointly
guaranteed by one of the shareholders of the borrower and
independent third parties.

@ RZE-—N\F+ZA=Z+H AR
A) B S AR RS BR P ) A 54 R B AR
VHARIBRERMEEXERA A
(BERMEBEEDILERH:E
AR AIEENB QRN EER
AEREERTRERNEE &
% A5 AR #109,650,0007T © B B A
SRAMERZZE-—NFEAT I
BRIEN ERXRFEEXRE% K
—E—-NF+A=+—H EBX
K FERTH B A AR 222,0007T °

RZZE—NEFE+-_AXH REHR
BHEANABERNRBRIIVE
Pz RERERER=2Z—N
F+_AANHEZZ—NF=A
AEHERHERTER €8 A
AR #2,0000007T - ERFBRAE
9% °

) RZZE—NF+ZA=+—8"
AEBERMEZFTRENDARE
10,000,000 7T E X A &8 KA & E K
BIABYIE=FHFRER AR
#8,000,0007T F f& 5% A B IR #E 3K
R E KA BT AR R R R
& AR #33,536,0007T B f& 7 A
BERKE MBI HOBRER
HITHERANBRRERBLE =
FHEREER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 24 BAFEAEAREBH
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS AREHEMEE
As at
31 December
2018
R=ZZ-N\&F
+=ZB=+-—H
RMB’000
AR T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Unlisted convertible bond (a) LT AR EH () 8,762
Current assets REBEE
Unlisted investment funds (b) FLETEEES D) 148,278
Put option over shares in associate (Note 3.3.1(b)) B N B AR 19 58 0H B4 (BT &E 3.3.1(b)) 7,403
155,681
Total financial assets at FVPL BEATEAEEEZHAABEN
THEERTE 164,443

The Group held three financial assets for investment purpose as at 31
December 2018, which were all stated at fair value:

(@)

Pursuant to the convertible bond subscription agreement dated
8 August 2018 and the supplemental agreement dated 10
September 2018, the Group subscribed for an unlisted
convertible corporate bond with the maturity date on 31
December 2020, the principal amount of HK$10,000,000
(equivalent to RMB8,762,000) and the coupon interest of 13.5%
per annum, issued by Supreme Trillion Development Limited on
11 September 2018, an independent third party to the Group.
The Group can exercise the exchangeable rights to convert the
whole or partial amount of the bond into 10% or 8.5% (as the
case may be) ordinary shares of Asia Interactive Content
Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of Supreme Trillion Development
Limited.
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AEER-_ZE-N\F+_A=+—HF
E-EeREERE HRAVEIEK:

(@)

BEBHA-ZT—-NFNANR
WA RBEEFREBRE R = —
NEFENLATENETERE  ~A%E
REBUFE=FEKRBEREBERA
Al-RZE-NFNLA+ AT
MFELEmABRAGES B
BRZE_TF+A=+—H K
% % 410,000,000 7T (4 5 7 A
R #8,762,0007t) A ZEF X &
13.5% c AL B A {TERBREF
BEESET LA RRESS
BREEZXERBRAAFZRZH
BAR mNEBEEERERA
AlZEBBRBKRGD  HEEBET
&% 2N 2 8.5% 3% 10% (4% & ] 15 5% M
FE) °



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ ==

24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROF'T OR LOSS (Continued)

@)

(Continued)

The Group has the intention of holding the convertible bond for
long-term investment, with an expectation to propose to convert
into ordinary shares in a right time in order to capture capital
appreciation brought to the Group. As at 31 December 2018, the
carrying amount of the convertible bond approximated its fair
value.

On 20 July and 7 September 2018, the Group subscribed for
shares in an unlisted investment fund, Giga Opportunities Fund
Ltd. (“Giga”), an independent third party, at the total investment
cost of HK$90,000,000 (equivalent to RMB78,859,000). The
Group has the intention of holding Giga for short-term
investment, as it is redeemable upon the application made to the
fund administrator which allows better flexibility in investment
turn. Giga is stated at fair value amounting to HK$78,586,000
(equivalent to RMB68,858,000) as at 31 December 2018, with a
fair value loss of HK$11,414,000 (equivalent to RMB10,001,000)
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2018.

On 6 September 2018, the Group subscribed for shares in an
unlisted investment fund, Yue Xiu Stable Income SP (“Yue Xiu”),
an independent third party, at the investment cost of
HK$88,800,000 (equivalent to RMB77,806,000). The Group has
the intention of holding Yue Xiu for short-term investment, as it is
redeemable upon the application made to the fund administrator
which allows better flexibility in investment turn. Yue Xiu is stated
at fair value amounting to HK$90,642,000 (equivalent to
RMB79,420,000) as at 31 December 2018, with a fair value gain
of HK$1,842,000 (equivalent to RMB1,614,000) recognized in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

—NF+ZA=+t—-HLHFE

rEERBEzZIULKRESARH
REEW HELBERBERR
m@ﬂxﬁxfﬁ'%$§%.hmﬁ$ia
BElzm RZE—NF+ZA=+
—H ’TTQHXE%*E’\JEEE@E@ﬁ@
FEEE

R-_ZE—NF+LtA-_+tHEZ-Z
—NFNLAtR AEEREBL
% = 7 Giga Opportunities Fund Ltd.
(lGigal ) IEETMIREESKMD - &
¥ & B 7K /90,000,000 7T (48 &
» AR #78,859,0007T ) ° A& £
EERIEEEE B mzEs
EEARIEORG KEBEEL
BKReoGgalhiEAFEINER R
Z—NF+_A=+—HHAQAF
8 578,586,000 T(HER AR
#68,858,0007T ) REBEZF —
NEFTZA=Z+—RALEFEZE
SCELXHABBBEZAFTERAE
#911,414,000%8 T(HE R AR
10,001,0007T) °

RZZE—N\FNLANB AEER
BEYE-FELTRERES
fEH BEEBTEERES(BFE
% |) - &% & B 7 /588,800,000 T
(HHZE N AR #77,806,0007T) ° A&
SEAERERPRE  BAMZ
ECEBARLBEORD KEE
MHBEK - BFEES TR QFET
Bk RZFE—-N\F+=ZA=+—H
#) A F {8 £90,642,0007% T (18 &
M AR #79,420,0007T) REE =
T-NF+_A=+—HLFE
ZECEABRABREZAFAE
Ui 25 #91,842,00078 7T (FBE RO A
R #1,614,0007T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 24 #
THROUGH PROF'T OR LOSS (Continued) l
(b)  (Continued) b)

On 28 June 2018, the Group subscribed for an unlisted
investment fund from an independent financial institution with the
investment cost of HK$20,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB16,862,000). The Group has the intention of holding for
short-term investment.

On 31 December 2018, the Group redeemed this investment at
the amount of HK$19,185,000 (equivalent to RMB16,148,000)
with a fair value loss of HK$815,000 (equivalent to RMB714,000)
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are denominated in the following currencies:

RZZE—NF~AZ+NAB"
AEBRE-—EE LS R KE
WIELTREES BREXLA
20,000,000 T (#H F K AR ¥
16,862,0007T) - AEE B EFER
HIRA& -

RZE—-NF+ZA=+—8"
AEBELDZERESEA
19,185,000 (B F M A B #
16,148,0007T) ' HE=ZFT—NF+
AT HLEFERRAER
Z A F{AEEIE 48150008 T (HHE
B AR®T714,0007T) °

AEERAFAEFELEEHFAERS
MEMEENKEEBENATERE:

As at

31 December
2018
R=ZZF—-NF
t=A=t-8
RMB’000
AR¥F T

Us$ ETT
HK$ BT
RMB AR

148,278
8,762
7,403

164,443
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z—Z— \FE+=-A=1+—HIEE

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

25 dMT AR

AEEHETHEHIA:
@ =REE

As at 31 December 2018
R-ZZE-—NE+=ZA=+—H

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

(a) Financial assets

Financial
assets Financial
at amortised assets
cost at FVPL Total
RAFEFER
REBERAST HBHITABRR
ENSREE HemEE et
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR%FT R AR%EFT R ARETF
Financial assets at REBEBENAETEDN
amortised cost TRMEE 23 178,513 - 178,513
Financial assets at FVPL R A FETE B HE
it AlEE TR
AE 24 — 164,443 164,443
Trade and other receivables 2 5 & E b F& I 50 18 537,158 — 537,158
Restricted cash 2R HR e 26 1,219 - 1,219
Cash and cash equivalents R4 RIS ZEY 27 162,917 - 162,917
879,807 164,443 1,044,250
As at
31 December 2017
RZE—tF
tZA=+t—~H
Loans and receivables
B & B W IE
Notes RMB’000
M 52 AREFT
Trade and other receivables E 5 K E bW TE 757,575
Restricted cash Z R HIR e 26 1,679
Cash and cash equivalents HekREEEY 27 107,022
866,276
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (Continued)

(b) Financial liabilities

25 dMT AR

b) cREE

Financial liabilities at amortised

cost
REBERAITENSHREE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR ARBEF T
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk EAhENFRIE 82,080 187,481
Borrowings & 567,600 933,545
649,680 1,121,026
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F—\E+-A=+—HILFE

26 RESTRICTED CASH 26 FRHWWRE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s restricted cash amounted to R-ZE—NF+_A=+—HH K&£EH
RMB1,219,000 (2017: RMB1,679,000), representing the deposits HAEYRHIHE S AREK1,219,0007T (=
made according to the terms of loan agreements between the Group T—+F: AR®1,679,0007T)  FEIRIK
and the lenders, whereby the Group is required to deposit the entire NEBEBERARMGI L ERHEDNER
proceeds of the loan into restricted bank accounts. This restricted cash e FER - AEEBEILE2HERHME
can only be used to finance the development of a designated public REFAZREIBETEPL - R &|3H
infrastructure construction business. CENERARNBENEREETEAEER
BHBEES -
27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27 BlEeRBAEERDY
As at 31 December
Rt+t=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —ET—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Cash at bank RITF K 162,916 107,005
Cash on hand FHEE S 1 17
162,917 107,022
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 27 ﬁﬁ& ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ(a)

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are denominated in RWeMBEeEBEYHNETREN Y S
the following currencies: A :

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
HK$ BT 42,417 33,053
Us$ e 5,611 1,096
RMB AR 114,889 72,873
162,917 107,022
28 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28 BX & K & (e
(a) Share capital (@ B
Authorised and issued share capital: EERBBITRA:
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—tF
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
BB EE k-l & & B Gk}
’000 HK$°000 '000 HK$’000
F B’ FET T FAET
Authorised: SETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 G A& E {H0.017% T 1
each T A 2,000,000 20,000 2,000,000 20,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HILFE

28 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 28 B% 25 Bt & i ()

(@) Share capital (continued)

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

(@) B2 m

Emi - BEETAEDHR

2018 2017

—E-N\F Tt F
No. of RMB No. of RMB
shares Amount  equivalent shares Amount equivalent
RO#E £ SEARY® RNOHHA &E FEAREK
’000 HK$°000 RMB’000 '000 HK$'000 RMB’000
TR TET AR®TR Tk TET ARETT
At 1 January n—HA—H 918,948 9,189 7,629 728,440 7,284 6,002
Rights issue (i) R () 459,474 4,595 3,699 - - —
Placing of new shares (i) &2 & #7 A% £ (i) 106,182 1,062 927 190,508 1,905 1,627
At 31 December wt+=-—A=+—H 1,484,604 14,846 12,255 918,948 9,189 7,629

On 22 March 2018, the Company completed a rights issue on the
basis of one rights share for every two shares held on the record
date. 459,474,000 ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.01 each
were issued at the subscription price of HK$1.20 per rights share,
with net proceeds of HK$549,529,000 (equivalent to
RMB442,398,000), of which HK$4,595,000 (equivalent to
RMB3,699,000) and HK$544,934,000 (equivalent to
RMB438,699,000) were credited to share capital and share
premium, respectively.

On 27 August 2018, the Company completed the placing of
106,182,000 ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.01 each. The
aggregate net proceeds were HK$143,276,000 (equivalent to
RMB125,040,000), of which HK$1,062,000 (equivalent to
RMB927,000) and HK$142,214,000 (equivalent to
RMB124,113,000) were credited to share capital and share
premium, respectively.

(i)

RZEBE-NE=A=-+=-8 AQFZL
Rtk B HEEEmMBR RGO ERE K
ARG M E TR ER - R RER
& 15 3R (B 1.20 7% 7T 8 17459,474,000 1%
SREECOIB T LR - FTEHE
H#E 2549,529,000/8 T (HHE R AR
442,398,000t ) * £ 74,595,000/ 7T (18
B AR #3,699,0007T) & 544,934,000
7 70 (A8 & M A R #438,699,0007T ) &
BIET AR AR R IR 15 5 18 o

RZE—NENA=-_+tB &4
7] 5t Ak fic & 106,182,000% & i& m &
001 T L BB ATEREFHES
5T 5143,276,000/8 T (HHE R AR
125,040,0007T) * £ #1,062,0007% 7T (A8
B A AR #927,0007T ) 142,214,000
B (B E RN AR %124,113,0007T) 7
B ETF AR AR R AR % (B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

28 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Reserves

(i)

Share premium

The excess of the issued price net of any issuance
expenses over the par value of the shares issued has been
credited to share premium of the Company. On 22 March
and 27 August 2018, HK$544,934,000 (equivalent to
RMB438,699,000) and HK$142,214,000 (equivalent to
RMB124,113,000) were credited to share premium,
respectively.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in share premium are distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve

The PRC statutory reserve were established in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations of the PRC and the
articles of association of the companies in the Group. The
companies in the PRC are required to transfer certain of
their net profits (after offsetting prior-year losses), under the
approval by the Board of Directors, to general statutory
reserve. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
RMB10,772,000 was credited to statutory reserve (2017:
RMB13,520,000).

General statutory reserve can be used to reduce prior-year
losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-in/share
capital by issuing new shares to shareholders proportionate
to their existing percentage of equity interests provided
that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of
the registered capital. General statutory reserve is non-
distributable other than in liquidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z—Z— \FE+=-A=1+—HIEE

29 BORROWINGS 20 &
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREFT
Long-term borrowings RHEEE
— Pledged and guaranteed (a) —BEEHRREER@) 282,600 638,545
— Guaranteed (b) — 2R (D) 285,000 295,000
567,600 933,545
Less: current portion of long-term BRBESNHES
borrowings
— Pledged and guaranteed —2ERREER (23,200) (36,240)
— Guaranteed —BER (10,000) (250,000)
(33,200) (286,240)
Non-current borrowings FENEHEE
— Pledged and guaranteed —BEERREER 259,400 602,305
— Guaranteed — B ER 275,000 45,000
534,400 647,305
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

29 BORROW'NGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s borrowings were
repayable as follows:

29 &8

RZE-NEFER-ZZB-—F+-A=+
—B - AEEEEEEEWT

As at 31 December

Rt+t=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
Within 1 year —%FR 33,200 286,240
Between 1 and 2 years —FEWF 299,000 46,620
Between 2 and 5 years FE 2 RF 74,900 414,385
over 5 years AFUE 160,500 186,300
567,600 933,545

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s secured bank borrowings
amounting to RMB282,600,000 (2017: RMB638,545,000), with
the interest rates ranging from 5.39% to 5.64% per annum, were
jointly guaranteed by the controlling shareholder, his spouse and
a fellow subsidiary under the common control of the controlling
shareholder. Pursuant to the relevant pledge contracts, certain
machineries of the solar power plants of the Group with a
carrying amount of RMB303,731,000 (2017: RMB350,730,000)
and the collection rights of the receivables of certain subsidiaries
of the Company were pledged as security (Note 35).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s secured bank borrowing
amounting to RMB285,000,000 (2017: RMB295,000,000), with
the interest rate of 7.00% per annum, was jointly guaranteed by
the controlling shareholder, his spouse and a fellow subsidiary
under the common control of the controlling shareholder.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2018
and 2017 since the interest payable is close to current market
rates.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s borrowings
were denominated in RMB.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z—Z— \FE+=-A=1+—HIEE

30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30 BHRHAMEMRER
As at 31 December
Rt+t=-—A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Trade payables 2 5N RE 36,154 123,534
Accruals and other payables JE:t E R R H b fE IIB 45,926 63,947
Tax payables FE B I8 12,961 14,633
95,041 202,114

Ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: ESENFEBHERRSNOT

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\EF e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFTT
Within 1 year —F LR 35,073 123,424
Over 1 year —F L 1,081 110
36,154 123,534
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s trade and other RZE-NEFRZE—+tF+=ZA=+
payables were denominated in RMB and the carrying amounts of the —HB AEENE S &HMFERFIEL
balances approximated their fair values. ARBE BAEKEEERAQNTE

BE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 31 iRERRTER
(a) Deferred tax assets () EXEHEBEEE
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E2—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Deferred tax assets to be recovered within #1218 A R Uk [l #Y
12 months EERBEE 3,021 569

Movements on deferred tax assets were as follows: BEEHREBEEAENEHNOT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB TR ARBFIT

At 1 January n—HA—H 569 -

Bad debt provisions AR B 2,229 569

Write-downs of inventories FELKEEHE 38 -
Provision for financial assets at amortised cost % #4 §4 5 78 5T 2 89 % §t

BERE 185 —

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 3,021 569
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F—\E+-A=+—HILFE

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 31 iEBEEEFR R @
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (b) ELEBIEEE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8
2018 2017
—E-N\F  —E—t#F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREEF T
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered within -~ #7121 A A1k [B] &9
12 months EERIBAEE 225 49
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after BRBB12E A B KE R
more than 12 months EERBAEGE 12,066 12,505
12,291 12,554
Movements on deferred tax liabilities were as follows: RETEABENZEHNAT
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—-BLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT T
At 1 January n—HA—H 12,554 9,856
Fair value adjustments relating to acquisitions  E8 I & it /8 A Rl B B 19
of subsidiaries N EHAE 468 2,167
Reversal of accumulated fair value gains of EHEREMERSAFE
investment properties disposed W g 2 # 8] (731) -
Fair value gains on investment properties EYEDN N FERZ — 531
At 31 December R+=A=+—8H 12,291 12,554
32 DIVIDENDS 32 KRR
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has not REBE-_ZT-N\F+-_A=+—RHI#F
declared any dividends to the shareholders of the Company (2017: ni). B ARAWERARGREETIREM

BE(ZT—tF: |-,
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =%

—N\F+ZA=t—-RLFE

33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 33 &REEH

EXRBMBRS

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

(@) Cash generated from operations (a) &=

204

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARE T ARBT T
Profit before income tax from: BT EJJIE BB EHA
B
Continuing operations FEQEET 118,887 158,054
Discontinued operation B IEET - (238)
Profit before income tax including BED %53 IEEBHBRATE
discontinued operation 5 B % A 118,887 157,816
Adjustments for: KAENTEE
Amortisation of leasehold land and land A& + 3 [z + i ﬁ i 14
use rights 8 457 443
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BREIREEE 15
equipment TE 29,770 24,807
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 16 5,596 1,827
Bad debt provisions =2 AR 22 14,861 3,791
Impairment of financial assets REHK AT 2 23
at amortised cost SREERE 900 -
Write-downs of inventories FEBEEE 20 255 —
Net gains on disposal of property, HEWE  BELEKE 7
plant and equipment By Uk 2= F 5B (730) —
Gains on acquisition of subsidiaries U BE BT /B R B A IR 2R 7 - (7,943)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries i B A Al A Y e 7 (962) (483)
Net fair value losses on financial assets AT HIEEHEH 7
at FVPL AR EeRMEE
NEEBIEFE 9,101 —
Interest income on non-current financial & A F{EEE B E & &) 7
assets at FVPL FFABEEBIERE
CREEMBWA (350) -
Fair value gain on put option over shares B 4 /A 7] B% 1 325 27 18 7
in associate N ERE (7,403) —
Fair value gains to investment properties & & ) 2% A T E g 5 7 - (2,125)
Share of net profit of associates JE i B & X B 45 18 (8,187) —
Equity settled share-based payment TR RE TS 5 E DARR ) S A 10
expenses B 3R I8 R S 10,407 1,332
Deferred income from government grants 2K 8 B /7 @ B &9 I & Yg A (107) (107)
Finance expenses &R 12,774 19,235
Foreign exchange losses on operating R ETEIE R BE
activities 1,428 (3,717
Changes in working capital: EIBEBENEE
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERA (L) 2,984 (21,931)
Decrease in contract asset/amount due & W& & TERE P
from customers for contract work BT ERER D 40,526 104,430
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other B 5 N H {th fE UL T IE
receivables A, (38 ) 359,650 (554,625)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other 5 N H b fE 5
payables R A>),/ 38 in (107,073) 12,393
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &% &4+ (FTA)IR & 482,784 (264,857)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z—Z— \FE+=-A=1+—HIEE

33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 33 HH&RmEEHmW
(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) B FEHER

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\HF —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT R ARBTF T

Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 162,917 107,022
Restricted cash SR HIIR 4 1,219 1,679
Borrowings — repayable within one year EBEE-—R—FANEE (33,200) (286,240)
Borrowings — repayable after one year BE-R—FBESZ (534,400) (647,305)
Net debt B FR (403,464) (824,844)
Cash and cash equivalents ReLBHEEEY 162,917 107,022
Restricted cash IR Hl 3R & 1,219 1,679
Gross debt — fixed interest rates B ATE — EEF X (285,000) (535,000)
Gross debt — variable interest rates EEEEE — FEA =R (282,600) (398,545)
Net debt B FE (403,464) (824,844)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 33 HeRETHW
(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued) (b) EHFELHER@®
Liabilities from financing
Other assets activities
HttEE HRETINAR
Cash and Borrowings Borrowings
cash Restricted due within due after
equivalents cash 1 year 1 year Total
BeRRE R—FR R-F#
ZEY STRERE IHEE IHEEHE @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTE ARBTT ARBTIT ARETT

Net debt as at R=-ZB—t&E—-HF—H

1 January 2017 2EEFE 205,037 206 (35375)  (668,864)  (498,906)
Cash flows Bene (94,298) 1,383 35,375 (129,481) (187,021)
Acquisitions — borrowings WiE-—EE - - - (135,200)  (135,200)
Foreign exchange adjustments & ¥, 5§ % (3,717) — - — (3,717)
Other non-cash movements HIER 28 — - (286,240) 286,240 —
Net debt as at R-ZZE—t&E+=H

31 December 2017 =t+-HZEBEE 107,022 1,679 (286,240) (647,305) (824,844)
Cash flows Bene 54,467 (460) 286,240 79,705 419,952
Foreign exchange adjustments & ¥, 3§ & 1,428 - - - 1,428
Other non-cash movements HiIER S L8 - - (33,200) 33,200 —
Net debt as at R-ZE-NF+=ZA

31 December 2018 =t+-HZEEESE 162,917 1,219 (33,200) (534,400) (403,464)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z—Z— \FE+=-A=1+—HIEE

34 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for but not yet incurred are as

34 i

(a) BEARAEIE
BB ARBEEARFAIZWOT :

follows:
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H

2018 2017
—®E-N\%  —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Contracted but not yet incurred BEIHEREE 148 5,681

(b) Investment commitments

See Note 18(c) for details about commitments in respect of
associates.

(c) Operating lease commitments

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

(b) WEASE

REERAINEAEFBEBZLHN
£18(c) °

(c) ReEHEAE

REBEFAAHBELLEEENRRE
EHENREBEOT :

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBTF T
Within 1 year —F R 4,722 8,442
After 1 year but within 5 years —FBRERFRN 709 6,205
5,431 14,647
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

35 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 3B EEHEEHRERSR
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings are EREEEERRNEENETRES
as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREEF T

Machineries of solar power plants K5 6L 2% B uh #E AR 303,731 350,730
Contract assets/Amount due from customers for & X EE/ BWEF A X

contract work T8 459,790 500,316

Trade receivables Z 5 W FRIA 62,198 56,334
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36 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(@) Summary of acquisition

On 9 July 2018, Beijing Longguang entered into an agreement
with the original shareholders of Haitian Fangyuan, who are
independent third parties. Beijing Longguang committed to inject
capital of a total of RMB61,111,000 into Haitian Fangyuan by
stages. On 1 August 2018, Beijing Longguang injected
RMB6,111,000 into Haitian Fangyuan. Upon completion of the
capital increase, Beijing Longguang held 55% of the shares of
Haitian Fangyuan, which had become an indirect non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and the remaining 45% of the
shares of Haitian Fangyuan continued to be held by the original
shareholders. Haitian Fangyuan is mainly engaged in energy-
saving service business.

Details of the purchase consideration, net assets acquired and
goodwill are as follows:

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z=—F—\E+-A=+—HILFE

36 kBB
(@) WEBE

RZZ—NFE+ANA ELFEEX
BB RSERBRER LHH 2%
R BBILE =77 o 48 R S &
moBBRASRAFEEEARA
R #61,111,000c c R =ZZ — J\F
NA—R dtmREXREXFEE
& AR #6,111,0007T ° T K I &
& - b R & S35 B 8 K 77 [B155% iR
B BXFEEKAEARRNME
FE2EWMB AR M HEEr45%K %
HERFERBRERZEE - BXHE
TENEEERBER -

WHERE UBEEFELEE
HBEWT

RMB’000
AR®ET

Purchase consideration: WERE
Cash Paid YR E 6,111
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

36 BUS'NESS COMB'NAT'ONS (Continued)

(@) Summary of acquisition (continued)

The fair value of assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the

acquisition are as follows:

36 X¥ St
(@ WEHSEm

AKEEIANEERAGENRTF
BT :

RMB’000
AREF T

Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment L E PN 9,105
Intangible assets mEEE 4,038
Inventories FE 1,466
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& E A FE W GRIE 6,856
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED 6,112
27,577

Liabilities a8E
Deferred tax liabilities B IEEE (641)
Trade and other payables B 5 I H fth B OB (15,420)
Current tax liabilities BNEAFEIE B & (1,071)
(17,132)
Net identifiable assets acquired BT Uk B8 A 3 Bl & B SRR 10,445
Less: non-controlling interests W FEPE AR (4,700)
Add: goodwill m: s 366

Net assets acquired kB EEFR 6,111
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36 BUS'NESS COMB'NAT'ONS (Continued)

(b) Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenue of RMB9,545,000
and net profit of RMB2,990,000 to the Group for the period from
1 August to 31 December 2018.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2018, consolidated
pro-forma revenue and net profit of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 would have been RMB720,769,000 and
RMB99,008,000, respectively.

The pro-forma revenue and net profit of the Group derived from
the acquisition of Haitian Fangyuan is for illustrative purpose only
and does not necessarily reflect the Group’s revenue and
operating results if the acquisition had been occurred on 1
January 2018 and could not serve as a basis for the forecast of
future operation results.

(c) Purchase consideration — cash inflow

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HILFE

36 X¥ St

(b) Wz K iz 7 & R

RZE-—NFNA—BE+=ZA
=+ —HIE8HE TREEES
BAEEERMKE REFMARE
9,545,0007T M A £ %2,990,0007T °

WKER=_ZE—N\NF—A—HB%
¥ BHEZZE-NF+=ZA=+
—ALEFEMNAEBR(BEHEX
FENGZRABEE Wz RAH D5
B AR #720,769,0007T & A R
99,008,0007T ° .

REBKREESRTEMGHHAE
EEE RS RAFEEHARS
TAEERBEKBER ZF—
NE-—A-—RBBELEZBRATAE
Ba i E R RERE RTREIER
RRBERETRR 2 ELE -

c) WIBEREBE—BEARA

RMB’000

AREFIT

Cash balance acquired Fri 8 35 & 4 4 6,112

Cash consideration ReRE ®111)
Net cash inflow — investing activity FRERA—KEGE 1

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly
or indirectly, to control or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operation decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control.
Members of key management and their close family members are also
considered as related parties of the Group.

37 MBABRH

M- ARENEEIMERESRAEED
MBREERREHS - AHMEKREY
B RAETHAAEMBE- KEZH
ERNTRGEABELT AEETEER
ABFRBEEBETYVNRENE HBKE
RAEEEET
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37 BB 53X 5 ()

(a) Related party transactions (continued) (@ BBLERXSE @

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—2-N\FE  ZB—t#F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTT

Funds received from parent company W"EAIRMEES 3 2,793
Funds received from fellow subsidiaries under 7 1% B& B% 55+t [&] 122 &1 T~ &9

the common control of the controlling RZEKMEARINMEE S

shareholder 3,807 11,000
Funds received from fellow subsidiaries under  #t — {7 #1717 % = @425 T &Y

the common control of an executive Director Rl R B A A E & 4,250 5,023
Funds repaid to parent company BEESTHALA (63) (227)
Funds repaid to fellow subsidiaries under the EE & & TR KR

common control of the controlling =T R [E R B A A

shareholder (18,888) (13,160)
Funds repaid to fellow subsidiaries underthe (& & & T — I 1TES

common control of an executive Director HEES TR RN B A T (78,436) (34,005)

Loans provided to a fellow subsidiary under 324 & 5% T 1% A% A% 5 £ [

the common control of the controlling 2 NN I ) =N

shareholder (109,650) —
Loans provided to an associate REERT —EHE QT (2,000) -
Sales of goods or services HEBERIIRERY 29,086 14,784
Purchases of goods or services received BEERIEXRE 93,083 356,727

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders [ B /& 23 &) 3k 12 A% A% 58

of subsidiaries XA E (1,036) (1,087)
As at 31 December 2018, bank borrowings of RMB567,600,000 RZZE—NF+_A=+—H" #
(2017: RMB933,545,000) were jointly guaranteed by the 1718 B A R #567,600,000 T (=&
controlling shareholder, his spouse and a fellow subsidiary under —+ & AR ¥933,545,0007T) B
the common control of the controlling shareholder (Note 29). PRBEREREEREBULE —FESE

P B SR AR ) B B F Y B 2 R
HRFER (P FE29) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z—Z— \FE+=-A=1+—HIEE

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37 BB 75 3 5 ()

(b) Key management personnel compensation b) TEEEEAEHMH
Remuneration for key management personnels of the Group, REBTITEEEBAEBNHIN(E
including amounts paid to the Directors, is as follows: BXfFEENRB)OT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2018 2017

—E-N\HF —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

Wages, salaries and allowances TE - e kEah 6,871 6,133
Social security costs HERERAR 553 461
Share-based payments AR e shE 2,412 239
9,836 6,833
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37 BB 53X 5 ()

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) BB S REREGLE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8
2018 2017
—E-NE  —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT T AREEF T
Amounts due from: WL T RRIE
Parent company NS - 3
Fellow subsidiaries under the common control 5 A% f% B 3t [ 4% &l T Y
of the controlling shareholder —MERRKE QA 12,875 5,541
Fellow subsidiaries under the common control — {7 &1 17 & == 4t [7 % %] T &9
of an executive Director —HRZEMNME A A 4,452 4,790
Subsidiary of an associate — M= AR E A T 2,000 -
19,327 10,334
Amounts due to: B LT RRIE -
Parent company A A 70 133
Directors 5% 1 1
Fellow subsidiaries under the common control 122 % i% B8 £ @ 22 % T 89
of the controlling shareholder —HRREMB AT 1,182 18,888
Fellow subsidiaries under the common control — {7 #1172 = £ RS TH
of an executive Director —HRRNE AR 2,171 78,490
3,424 97,512
Loans to: BEXRXRE:
A fellow subsidiary under the common control  #5 i% i% B8 t [&] 3% &I T~ &)
of the controlling shareholder (Note 23) — R XM B F (M 5E23) 109,872 —
An associate (Note 23) — B & 2 R) (FsE23) 2,000 -
111,872 -
Amounts due from and due to related parties, of which there are R EEMNEEREFNREL RS
no fixed terms of repayments, are interest free and unsecured. R WEEFEERAAR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_ZT— \F+-A=1+—HILFE

38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 3B EAFIHNETEAREKR
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY s & &
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (@ ARAPEEREER
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mg 5E ARET T ARBEF T
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMKE 1,329 546
Intangible assets mLERE 10 2
Investment in subsidiaries KRB RARMEE 342 -
1,681 548
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk EH A ERFE 944,555 505,910
Financial assets at fair value through profit 1% A F{Ezt & B E &&=t
or loss ABZHNEREE 24 148,278 -
Cash and cash equivalents BHEMNREEEDY 37,189 32,207
1,130,022 538,117
Total assets EEHAE 1,131,703 538,665
Equity and Liabilities EEREE
Equity attributable to equity holders A G EXRREELERS
of the Company
Share capital B& AR 12,255 7,629
Reserves & 1,149,044 525,716
Accumulated losses/Retained earnings £ it 518, 1R B B #4 (29,678) 4,983
Total equity B 1,131,621 538,328
Current liabilities RBERE
Trade and other payables B REMENKE 82 337
Total equity and liabilities EEREERE 1,131,703 538,665
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board ARAMEERBERR-_Z— X
of Directors on 29 March 2019 and was signed on its behalf. FZA-thAKESTGHE T
HTIEEREREE -
Wei Qiang Liu Zhengang
5 X BRG]
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE B EANFIEERRERME R
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continued) B85
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) xXATREEE
Accumulated
Reserves losses
& B
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

k=3 ARETT ARBTT

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF—A—H 197,049 (29,377)
Profit for the year F A ) — 34,360
Other comprehensive loss HivzmEE (4,0595) -
Share premium from placing of new B & #7 i% (7 i% {7 % (&

shares 332,722 —
At 31 December 2017 R-ZFE—+tHFE+=-A=+—8H 525,716 4,983
At 1 January 2018 R-_ZE—N\F—HF—H 525,716 4,983
Loss for the year FAEE - (34,661)
Other comprehensive income H2mEmEA 60,516 -
Share premium from rights issue AR AR 19 5 B 28 438,699 —
Share premium from placing of new  fit & 7 i% 15 B& 15 3 (& 28

shares 124,113 —
At 31 December 2018 R=-B-NE+=-A=+—H 1,149,044 (29,678)

216 LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited ~ Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

81} ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z—Z— \FE+=-A=1+—HIEE

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 9 EFMRIIRER
DIRECTORS
The remuneration of Directors of the Company for the years ended 31 BE—_ZE-NER-ZE—+tF+-A=
December 2018 and 2017 is set out below: +—BULFERARRNESTHHFMOT :

Year ended 31 December 2018
BE-Z-N\F+ZA=Z+-RALFE
Other emoluments paid or
receivable in respect of
Employer’s director’s other services in
contribution to connection with the
aretirement management of the affairs of
benefit the Company or its subsidiary
Name "E Fees Salary scheme undertaking (c) Total

RESRUABEEAQAAR
BREANGE HMEARWHGREmS S

e e HEEHAK RERNEMBHS () @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥TxR AR TR ARBTR AR%®TR
Chairman &
Mr. Wei Qiang gL - 2,368 15 - 2,383
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping () REFEE@ - 1,926 10 2,207 4,143
Mr. Liu Znhengang B0 7 A - 1,168 - 161 1,329
Non-executive Director EHITES
Mr. Wei Shacjun BOERE - - - - -
Independent non-executive Directors B #HTES
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BERLAE 211 - - 167 378
Dr. Han Qinchun BRERL 211 - - 167 378
Mr. Han Xiaoping BEREFRAE 211 - - 167 378
633 5,462 25 2,869 8,989
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B ¥5 ¥ 22 B 5 ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ_—Z— \F+=-A=1+—HIFE

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

39 EEMRIIRES @

DI RECTO RS (Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z—t+tF+A=+t-BItEE
Other emoluments paid or
Employer’'s  receivable in respect of director’s
contributionto  other services in connection with
aretirement  the management of the affairs of
benefit the Company or its subsidiary
Name "4 Fees Salary scheme undertaking (c) Total
REFRAFAERALDR
RAERNGE HMBLAAHEBREMEN
e e f1E 4% o & W) E A Bl () st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTT AREFR AREFT AREFT ARBTRT
Chairman -4
Mr. Wei Qiang b - 2,413 - - 2,413
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Liu Zhengang 2RI % & - 1,294 - 239 1,633
Mr. Wang Hui (o) FEEED) - 1,503 - - 1,508
Mr. Li Haichao (b) FEHEA () — — _ _ _
Ms. Zhen Xiaojing (o) HEEL (b - 460 - - 460
Non-executive Director: FHITES
Mr. Wei Shaojun ROERE - - - - -
Independent non-executive Directors: B FHTES
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BEALE 217 - - - 217
Dr. Han Qinchun BREMEL 217 - - - 217
Mr. Han Xiaoping BEREYRAE 217 - - - 217
651 5,670 - 239 6,560

On 27 April 2018, Mr. Yuen Chi Ping was appointed as the executive
Director, the vice-chairman of the Board of Directors and the Co-Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

On 29 June 2017, Mr. Li Haichao and Ms. Zhen Xiaojing resigned as
executive Directors of the Company. On 30 August 2017, Mr. Wang Hui
resigned as executive Director of the Company.

These represent the fair value of share options granted to the Directors
under the Company’s share option scheme and recognised as equity-
settled share-based payment expense for the respective years. The
value of these share options is measured according to the Group’s
accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in
Note 2.22, including adjustments to reverse accrued in previous periods
where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to the vesting date.
The principal terms and the number of options granted, are disclosed in
Note 10(b).
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RZEBE-NFWA-++HB TEFE
ARETRBARANTES E528
EHERBEITBAE -

RZZE—+EXAZ+TNB ZF8H%E
ERBEFLLTEEARANTES -
R-ZZE—tENA=1+RH TEBELH
EARAMITES -

ZARIE R R IR AR A B A B AR R B
TARRIEEBRENIABERR
EEFNERASRBEERE AN X
NORERY - ZEBEENEERE
MiFE2. 22 T B AN SR B A B LARR ) X 19 2
SHMEHHRERGTE BRYBEHBRE
REEE T A0 5 R AT 4O WO B AT A B
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Financial Summar

By} 55 ek 22

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS ReER

A summary of consolidated results and of the assets, liabilities and equity of ANEBBA R AN K EE 2 G A X EURE
the Group for the last five financial years is set out below: E BERERMEHNWDOT :

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+-HLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-ONF ZETE—RHF —ZZT—RF ZE—tF —ZZ-N\E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT ARBTIT ARKETT AR TR AR%ETR

Restated
&t

Turnover =t 61,828 324,168 563,913 897,902 708,493
Income tax expense Fri8®i sz i (3,696) (6,446) (12,321) (22,328) (10,386)
Profit for the year FE A (70,164) 12,976 51,946 135,488 108,501
Attributable to: LA A fEfh -
Shareholders of the Company 7ZX A &) i% 3 (70,164) 12,976 51,456 135,197 107,720
Non-controlling interests JEIERR = - - 490 291 781
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Financial Summary (continued)

B #5118t B ()

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND

REeEE -RARER

EQUITY
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E—mOF ZZE-—HF ZE—RF E—+F ZZ-)\HF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFRT AREBTT ARETT AE¥ETR
ASSETS E5E
Non-current assets ERBEE 19,161 24,386 317,375 547,537 799,002
Current assets RENEE 752,544 823,483 955,121 1,404,387 1,370,646
Total assets BEBTE 771,705 847,869 1,272,496 1,951,924 2,169,648
LIABILITIES a8E&
Non-current liabilities ERBEGE - 300,000 681,320 662,352 549,077
Current liabilities mEAE 506,265 477,305 284,294 514,771 140,622
Total liabilities BEQEE 506,265 777,305 965,614 1,177,123 689,699
EQUITY =
Total equity attributable AR B R R RE
to shareholders of
the Company 265,440 70,564 306,882 773,587 1,473,790
Non-controlling interests FEPE R R =S - - - 1,214 6,159
Total equity W 5 4R KR 265,440 70,564 306,882 774,801 1,479,949
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